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Enhancing the quality of life of cancer patients through
the development of efficacious and well-tolerated
drugs stands behind every activity undertaken at Lorus.
Our commitment to our shareholders is a lifelong
commitment, one that ensures we deliver products
with the potential to be used alone or in combination
chemotherapy to manage cancer. Qur capable and
experienced team of professionals remains focused on
this mission.




COMMITTED TO quahlb)f()]‘ l!fe

Lorus Therapeutics Inc. is a biopharmaceutical company
specializing in research and development of pharmaceutical
products and technologies for the management of cancer.
Lorus carries out basic drug discovery research and clinical
development, but also seeks to reduce the risks associated
with the drug development process by acquiring promis-
ing new technologies from research institutions and other
companies.

The focus of Lorus is on the development of well-tolerated

All of the drugs being developed by the research team at
Lorus have one similar characteristic: they are designed with
the goal of being well-tolerated by patienis. For successful
drug candidates, this may contribute to an improved quality
of life for cancer patients, and may alsec make Lorus' drugs
more commercially attractive as they could more easily be
investigated in combination with other leading therapies
without significantly adding to the current side effect profiles
of existing drugs.

cancer therapy drugs. Since cancer progression is a complex
process involving the accumulation of multiple genetic
alterations leading to changes in many specialized cell
functions, Lorus dees not hold the view that a single drug will
emerge as a cure for all cancers. Instead, Lorus believes that
cancer will continue to be treated by many different drugs
with a variety of mechanisms of action. Since Lorus takes a
multi-mechanistic approach for the treatment of cancer, the
Company concentrates on the discovery and the development
of different classes of anticancer compounds.

PLATFORM TECHNOLOGIES

The Company focuses on three therapeutic areas, and in addition has a number of promising preclinical technologies that we beiieve will
continue to expand the product pipeline.

Antisense
Lead Products » GTI-2040 and GTI-2501

Major Accomplishments in Fiscal 2006 « Six Phase Il clinical trials underway for a variety of cancer indications, sponsored and funded
by the US National Cancer Institute

Pending Milestones » Advancement of GTI-2040 in its clinical development program

* New study in high-grade myelodysplastic syndrome/acute myeloid leukemia (MDS/AML)
sponscred and funded by US National Cancer Institute for initiation in early fiscal 2007

Immunotherapy
Lead Product e Virulizin®

Major Accomplishments in Fiscal 2006 + Completion of pivotal Phase |11 clinical study of Virulizin® in combination with GEMZAR®
* Released clinical trial results

Anticancer Small Molecules
Lead Products ¢ ML series: LT-253 selected as iead compound

Maijor Accomplishments in Fiscal 2006 « Identification of lead candidate

Pending Milestones * Advancement of LT-253 into toxicity studies

« Upon successful completion of toxicity studies, advancement of LT-253 into Phase |
clinical study

LGRUS THERAPEUTICS INC. 1







PRODUCT ipeline

IN THE CLINIC

Antisense Technology

Antisense therapy represents a powerful means to selectively
decrease expression of disease-causing genes, providing the
potential of reducing malignancy while avoiding adverse side
effects associated with inhibition of multiple targets commeon with
other forms of therapy.

We had further evidence of the safety and clinical efficacy of our
antisense drugs GT1-2040 and GTI- 2501. These oligonucleotides
comprise our lead clinical antisense platform, based on inhibition
of expression of ribonuclectide reductase (RNR). We have shown
that RNR is important in cancer malignancy and is elevated in a
wide range of tumors.

PRECLINICAL

Small Molecule Program

The Company has several very interesting preclinical technologies
under development with the Small Molecule Program as one of the
most advanced. Currently we are focused on the development of
the ML-Series of compounds, particularly LT-253, which is a potent
inhibitor of cancer cell growth for a number of different cancers.

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Immunotherapy

Major advances in cancer therapy have been made in the past
two decades. One of the most significant advances has been the
emergence of immunotherapy, which is a class of therapies that
work against disease by attempting to produce active or passive
imsmunity.

Our lead immunotherapy candidate is Virulizin®. At the center of
the Virulizin® mechanism of action are macrophages, which are
white blood cells that play an important role in the recognition
and destruction of tumor cells. Virulizin® induces macrophages
to produce a variety of molecules that kill tumor cells directly, as
well as indirectly through activation of Natural Killer {NK) cells.
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LETTER TO shareholders

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

It was a challenging year and Lorus came through it a stronger
and more agile company. Above all else, we've shown that Lorus
has the human and financial resources to meet the many chal-
lenges required to develop a diverse pipeline of safe, effective
anticancer drugs.

True, we experienced a disappointing result in the Phase
clinical trial for Virulizin®. The clinical trial didn't reach its overall
endpoint, but results from the trial indicate that the drug has
anticancer activity in certain patient populations and a high safety
profile. At a recent meeting with the FDA, we received positive
feedback regarding the study results. We are actively tooking for a
partner to further share in the development of Virulizin®.

Strength in diversity

Our mantra over the years has been that Lorus is committed to
mitigating the risks of new drug development by ensuring a strong
pipeline of potential cancer treatments. Never has the wisdom

of this approach been more evident than now. Our antisense

drug program is progressing well in clinical studies. A total of six
¢linical trials supported by the US National Cancer Institute (NCI}
are underway this year involving GTI-2040, which is a noteworthy
achievement for a company of our size. We've already reported
positive interim findings this year from our trials, particularly the
clinical study which focuses on the responses of patients with
recurrent or refractory Acute Myeloid Leukemia {AML) to GTI-
2040 combined with cytarabine. These results have positioned
AML as a priority area for further development of GTI1-2040.

Another drug in the antisense program, GTI-2501, is in a Phase
il clinical trial for the treatment of prostate cancer. Qur small
molecule program has demaonstrated strong preclinical results and
will be advancing tnte the clinic upon successful completion of
toxicity studies. A number of other initiatives including research
into siRNA technology and the discovery of a new drug candidate
IL-17E, which belongs to a larger family of cytokine proteins, has
added to the success of our preclinical program to ensure that the
next several years will bring more positive advances from Lorus.

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

The ability to execute such a targe scope of activities lies chiefly
with our talented and hard working employees. They have faced
the challenges of this year with a resolve and positive attitude that
makes me proud to be working with them. They understand that
Lorus is a growing company, a company that is optimistic about
its future, a company that has strong expertise, and they are
excited about what the future will bring.

Unlike many companies of our size, we were able to complete a
very large Phase |1} clinical trial with more than 430 patients at
well over 100 different sites in Europe and across the Americas,
relying primarily on our own resources. This has helped build &
sense of purpose and common interest, among members of our
team, that stretches across all of the organizational functions.

The future is our promise

A general “cure” for cancer is still an elusive dream, but the pos-
sibility of delivering a high quality of life to cancer patients is very
real, Qur focus on developing drugs with high safety profiles that
will manage the cancer patient over a long and productive lifetime
means that Lorus is well positioned to be one of the leaders in
bringing a new generation of drugs to the market.

We are in the enviable position of having many possible choices.
Now however, with so many options to choose from, Lorus will be
making priority decisions in the course of this fiscal year, about
which drugs and indications we will focus on. This is an exciting
opportunity to evaluate our programs and pick the ones that will
add the most value. In the course of making these decisions,

we will focus on strengthening our research capabilities through
mutually beneficial partnerships with other organizations. Our
products, whether in early, middte or late stages of development,
are potential candidates for partnership arrangements, and we wilt
make decisions based on the potential value that each partnership
will bring to Lorus and its shareholders.

QOur thanks to our shareholders will come in the success that we
hope to achieve this coming year. You have supported us in this
great journey and we want to assure you that we are working hard
on your behalf to achieve the goals that will bring us success.

Sincerely,

G 19—

Dr. Jim Wright
Fresident and Chief Executive Officer

Lorus Therapeutics



TECHNOLOGY Overview

Lorus continues to advance its multifaceted clinical and
pre-clinical programs designed to deliver innovative, safe
and effective cancer management therapies.

Antisense Program

Lorus saw significant progress in its antisense portfolio throughout
the past fiscal year. GTI-2040Q, an antisense drug that specifically
targets the R2 component of human ribonucleotide reductase
(RNR}, continues to advance in the clinic with six Phase Il clini-
cal trials sponsored by the US NCI in multiple cancer indications
including: colorectal cancer, non-small cell lung cancer, breast
cancer, hormone refractory prostate cancer, AML and a variety

of solid tumors. Lorus has continued this US NCI-sponsored
GTI-2040 program as an important part of its business strategy to
maximize opportunity and mitigate risk. Multiple target diseases
in the GTI-2040 development program provide the opportunity for
selecting the best strategies for further clinical development.

This US NCl-sponsored program also offers Lorus an excellent
opportunity to assess target gene expression in a large number of
patient samples, These data will provide very valuable information
regarding how GT1-2040 functions in the clinical setting. An
assessment of the progress of the six ongoing US NCI sponsored
GTI-2040 clinic studies shows that all six studies continue to
progress without unacceptable toxicity.

Lorus has already announced positive findings from the trial, of
GT1-2040 combined with cytarabine, in patients with recurrent
or refractory AML. The data show complete responses in 44%

of patients 60 years of age or younger. Patients in this trial had
either failed to respond to prior therapy or had rapidly relapsed.
Such patients usually have a very low expectation of complete
response on salvage therapies such as high-dose cytarabine.
Notably, complete responses in the triat directly correlated with

a significant decrease in target gene expression, demonstrating
drug specificity and providing strong evidence for an antisense
mechanism of action. Based upon these positive clinical findings,
coupled with favorable pharmacodynamic assessments and strong
supporting preclinical data, Lorus has selected AML as a priority
area for further development of GTI-2040.

Lorus also entered into a research collaboration with Dr, Guido
Marcucci, a prominent leukemia researcher and clinician at the
Ohio State University Comprehensive Cancer Center, on a program
of {aboratory experiments on AML cell lines. These experiments,
which will be conducted in both tissue culture and animal models,

will provide important insights into the correlation between antitu-
mor response and the cellular effects of GT1-2040 and cytarabine
when given together, as well as provide additional support for the
ongoing clinical trial in AML. The research will assist in optimizing
the treatment responses of combining GT1-2040 with cytarabine in
the treatment of AML.

A new clinical investigation, sponsored by the US NCI, of
GTI-2040 as a single-agent in patients with high-grade myelo-
dysplastic syndrome (MDS) and AML is also planned to begin
shortly. These two disease conditions may represent a continuum
in malignant progression of the abnormal production of blood
cells in the bone marrow that results in a rapidly progressing
form of leukemia. Patients that have MDS which progresses to
AML have been identified as an especially high-risk group for
poar survival.

Interim results were also published from the clinical trial of
GTI-2040 in combination with docetaxel and prednisone in
patients with hormone refractory prostate cancer (HRPC). The
publication reported that in patients evaluable for prostate-spe-
cific antigen (PSA) there were seven PSA responses (reductions of
greater than 50%), seven disease stabilizations and one disease
progression. One patient was inevaluable and eight were not

yet assessed. PSA is overproduced in prostate cancer cells and

is commonly used to assess disease progression and response.
Median survival in HRPC is a dismal 18 months despite initial
responses to chemotherapy, so there is a need for novel combina-
tion therapies.

Lorus™ other antisense agent GTi-2501, designed to specifically
target the R1 component of human RNR, is currently in a Phase
Il clinical trial for the treatment of prostate cancer in combina-
tion with docetaxel. Pre-clinical studies have demonstrated that
GTi-2501 is well tolerated in standard animal models at concen-
trations that exceed commensurate therapeutic doses in humans.
In March 2006, Lorus announced publication of pre-clinical data
demonstrating broad anticancer activity of GT1-2501 as a single
agent. Sequence specific anticancer activity was demonstrated in
a dozen animal models of human cancer including solid tumor,
hematological tumor and metastasis models.
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In addition to the clinical stage antisense drugs targeting

RNR, Lorus has four additionat antisense agents in various
stages of pre-clinical development, targeting IGF I, neuropilin,
thioredoxin and thioredoxin reductase. The most advanced of
these projects targets thioredoxin, a gene that is over-expressed
in tumor tissues and has been correlated with poor prognosis
and chemotherapy resistance. In March 2006 Lorus announced
publication of data describing our thioredoxin-targeting lead
antisense, GTI-2601, with sequence specific anticancer activity
in in vitro and in vivo models of human colon cancer. Col-
taborative studies are being conducted on novel formulations of
GTI-2601 with Japan's Sumitomo Pharmaceuticals Co. Ltd. and
Koken Co. Ltd.

Virulizin®

The past year has been one of mixed results for Lorus’ most
advanced oncology product Virulizin®, Lorus reported during

the second quarter that the data from the Virulizin® Phase 111
chinical trial treating patients with locally advanced or metastatic
pancreatic cancer did not reach statistical significance in terms
of median overall survival. However, the data did show promising
statistical trends in certain patient populations. These findings

are from exploratory analysis of the data, and are not sufficient for
regulatory approval without additional clinical investigation.

Subgroups of patients, that demonstrated increased survival
times, include those patients with either low Eastern Coopera-
tive Oncology Group (ECOG) scores, or patients with metastatic
disease. The company is particularly encouraged by the observed
clinical benefit of increased survival time of almost 2 months

for patients on Virulizin® plus gemcitabine treatment with ECOG
performance status of O or 1. One year survival rates in the
efficacy evaluable population were 32.2% in the Virulizin® plus
gemcitabine patients compared to 20.1% in the gemcitabine pius
placebo treatment arm in this ECOG O/1 population.

The data also indicate a survival benefit for a subgroup of patients
who continued to receive Virulizin® after entering optional Stage 3
second-line therapy. Stage 3 patients who remained on Virulizin®
demonstraied a median survival time of 10.9 months, compared
with 7.4 months for both intent to treat and efficacy evaluable
patients on placebo. Stage 3 patients are those who enteraed
optional second-line therapy, and were offered Virulizin® / placebo
plus 5-fluorouracil, or Virulizin® / placebo alone, or best supportive
care. {These data aliow Lorus to pursue partnership arrangements
to assist with further clinical development.)

A further important observation, in line with Lorus' corporate
mission of enhancing the quality of life of cancer patients, is that
the Virulizin® treatment was well tolerated with no major differ-
ences observed between the Virulizin® plus gemcitabine arm and
the control group.

Small Molecule Program

The past year has seen success in the development of the small
molecule anticancer program and Lorus is actively working

on advancing this program into the clinic. In August of 2005,
based on the results of pre-ctinical studies, Lorus announced the

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

selection of two molecules from a sub-class of lead motecules

in the program, ML-133 and LT-253, as candidates for further
development as novel anticancer drugs. Subsequently, Lorus
selected L7-253 as the focus of future development. LT-253 is
part of a group of low molecular weight compounds that show
significant anti-proliferative activity against many human cancer
cell lines. LT-253 has shown promising anti-tumor activity in vivo,
demonstrating potent growth inhibition in xenograft models of
various human cancers, including colon carcinoma and non-small
cell lung cancer.

Lorus presented mechanism of action data on this novel series of
compounds at the annual AACR meeting in April 2006. The data
indicate that these compounds act through a novel mechanism
invalving the displacement of zinc from a transcription factor
that leads to the induction of Krippel-like factor 4 expression, a
protein known to suppress tumor cell growth in several important
hurman cancers. The data were based on gene expression studies
from human tumor tissue implanted in mice treated with the
compounds. Further development of these compounds continues
in 2006.

In March 2006, Lorus announced the publication of a novel
liposomal formulation of anticancer compound ML-220, also from
the small molecule program. The study showed that liposomal
ML-220 retained anti-proliferative activity against human ovarian
and breast cancer cell lines in vitro and significant in vivo efficacy
when administered intravenously into mice harboring colon
carcinoma tumors, with no overt signs of toxicity.

SiRNA

siRNA technology has literally changed the way in which research-
ers and drug discovery companies explore disease causes and
mechanisms of progression. Lorus has been working since 2003
to develop an anticancer therapeutic based on siRNA-mediated
inhibition of gene expression. Early screening experiments

have identified lead siRNA's and preliminary /n vitro and in vivo
characterization of these molecules has confirmed their activity.

IL-17E

In the past year, Lorus discovered a new lead drug candidate,
IL-17E, which belongs to a targer family of cytokines {proteins
that function as part of the immune system}. In April 2006 Lorus
presented novel antitumor function of IL-17E at the annual
American Association for Cancer Research meeting. IL-17E dem-
onstrated antitumor activity against a variety of human tumors,
including melanoma, pancreatic, colon, lung and ovarian tumors
grown in mice, supporting further investigation of the potential
clinical application of IL-17E.

Gene Therapy

Lorus had demonstrated that the R1 subunit of RNR, plays an
important role in determining the malignant potential of tumor
cells, and acts as a unigue tumor suppressor. Based on these
novel findings, Lorus has built a preclinical platform whereby
adenovirus-mediated gene therapy demonstrated significant
growth inhibition of human colon cancer cells in vitro, and growth
suppression of xenografted human colon tumors.






MANAGEMENT'S (Jiscussion & anab)sis

August G, 2006

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the
audited consotidated financial statements for the year ended
May 31, 2006 and the accompanying notes (the “Financial
Statements”} set forth elsewhere in this report. The Financial
Statements, and all financial information discussed below, have
been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”). Significant differences between
Canadian and United States GAAP are identified in Note 17 to
the Financial Statements. All amounts are expressed in Canadian
dollars unless otherwise noted. in this Management's Discussion
and Analysis, “Lorus”, the “Company™, “we", “us" and "our"
each refers to Lorus Therapeutics Inc.

OVERVIEW

Lorus Therapeutics Inc. is a life sciences company focused on

the discovery, research and development of effective anticancer
therapies with a high safety profile. Lorus has worked diligently to
establish a diverse, marketable anticancer product pipeline, with
products in various stages of development ranging from preclinical
to multiple Phase |l clinical trials. A growing intellectual property
portfolio supports our diverse product pipeline.

Our success is dependent upon severat factors, including estab-
lishing the efficacy and safety of our products in clinical trials,
securing strategic partnerships, obtaining the necessary regulatory
approvals to market our products and maintaining sufficient leveis
of funding through public and/or private financing,

We believe that the future of cancer treatment and management
lies in drugs that are effective, safe and have minimai side ef-
fects, and therefore improve a patient's quality of life. Many of the
cancer drugs currently approved for the treatment and manage-
ment of cancer are toxic with severe side effects, and we therefore
believe that a product development plan based on effective and
safe drugs could have broad applications in cancer treatment.
Lorus’ strategy is {o continue the development of our product
pipeline using several therapeutic approaches. Each therapeutic
approach is dependent on different technologies, thereby mitigat-
ing the development risks associated with a single technology
platform. We evaluate the merits of each product throughout the
clinical trial process and consider commercialization as appropri-
ate. The most advanced anticancer drugs in our pipeline, gach of
which flow from different platform technologies, are: antisense,
immunotherapeutics and small molecules.

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

Qur net loss for 2006 totated $17.9 million ($0.10 per share)
compared to a net loss of $22.1 mitlion ($0.13 per share} in
2005. Research and development expenses in 2006 decreased

to $10.2 million from $14.4 million in 2005. The close of the
Virulizin® Phase |1l clinical trial in 2006 as well as staff reductions
resulting from the November 2005 corporate changes (described
below) contributed to the decrease over 2005. We utilized cash of
$13.1 million in our operating activities in 2006 compared with
$18.7 million in 2005; the lower utilization is consistent with
lower research and development activities and lower general and
administrative expenses offset by lower interest income. At the
end of 2006 we had cash and cash equivalents and short term
investments of $8.3 million compared to $21.5 million at the end
of 2005,

RESULTS OF QPERATIONS

Revenues

Revenues for the year increased to $26 thousand compared with
2005 revenue of $6 thousand which decreased compared with
$608 thousand in 2004. The increase in revenue in 2006 is due
te lab work performed by Lorus personnel on behalf of other
companies. The decrease in 2005 compared with 2004 is the
result of a licensing agreement Lorus entered into during 2004
with Cyclacel Ltd. in connection with the out licensing of our
clotrimazole analog library of anticancer drug candidates. The
agreement included an initial license fee of $546 thousand
received in 2004 with the potential of additional license fees of
up to US $11.6 million that may be earned if Cyclacel achieves
certain defined research and development milestones. We do

not expect that any of these milestones will be achieved in the
next 12 months. The balance of the revenue earned during 2004
relates to product and royalty revenues from the sale of Virulizin®
to our distributor in the Mexican market, Mayne Pharma. As of
July 31, 2005, our contract with Mayne Pharma to distribute
Virulizin® in Mexico was terminated as a result of Mayne Pharma
ceasing operations in Mexico and Brazil. We do not anticipate
product revenue in fiscal 2007 from any of our other anticancer
drugs currently under development.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses totaled $10.2 million in
2006 compared to $14.4 million in 2005 and $26.8 million in
2004, The decrease in spending compared with 2005 is due to
the clese of cur Virulizin® Phase (11 clinical trial for the treatment
of advanced pancreatic cancer in 2006 as well as a reduction
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in headcount in November 2005 as described under Corporate
Changes. Although many expenditures related to the trial contin-
ued, as the results of the trial were compiled and analyzed and
the trial was wound up, the costs were less in comparison with
the prior year when the trial was fully enrolled and underway.

The significant decrease in expenditures in 2005 in comparison
with 2004 is primarily the result of two factors. First, in 2004
the Phase |1l clinical trial of Virulizin® was progressing through a
heavy enrollment period resulting in many up front costs, includ-
ing personnel, drug manufacturing and testing, combination drug
purchases and contract research organization costs. In 2005, the
study and the associated costs wound down to the point of last
patient visit in Q1 2006. Second, we incurred expenditures in
2004 related to the upfront manufacturing of GTI-2040 for the
U.S. National Cancer Institute (NCI) sponsored Phase Il clinical
trials as well as GTI-2501 for our Phase I/Il prostate trial. We have
had, and continue to have, a sufficient drug supply on hand such
that no additional costs were incurred during 2005 and 2006.

Of the total research and development expenditures incurred
during the year, Virulizin® accounted for $6.2 million or 61% of
the total spending. During the past year as we wound down the
Phase Il clinical trial, we focused the majority of the Company's
time and resources on Virulizin®.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses totaled $4.3 million in 2006
compared to $5.3 million in 2005 and $4.9 million in 2004.

The decrease of $1.0 million during 2006 is due to reductions

in headcount in November 2005 as described under “corporate
changes” as well as lower tegal, consulting and investor relations
costs, the result of changes made to reduce our cash burn rate.
The increase in expenditures in 2005 of $400 thousand com-
pared with 2004 was primarily due to additional administrative
personnel as we were preparing for commercialization in the event
of successful Phase Il clinical results.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense totaled $1.2 million in 2006
compared with $1.5 million in 2005 and nil in 2004. The de-
crease in stock-based compensation expense in 2006, despite an
increase in the number of options issued, is the result of reduced
fair values on the stock options issued due to a decline in our
stock price, as well as a significant number of unvested options
that were forfeited during the year, reducing the overall expense.
During 2006, employees of the Company {excluding directors and
officers) were given the opportunity to choose between keeping
100% of the options they held at the existing exercise prices or
forfeiting 50% of the options held in exchange for having the
remaining 50% of the exercise prices of the options re-priced to
$0.30 per share. Employees holding 2,290,000 stock options
opted for re-pricing their options, resulting in the amendment of
the exercise price of 1,145,000 stock options and the forfeiture
of 1,145,000 stock options during the quarter ended February

28, 2006. The 2005 expense represents the amortization of the
estimated fair value of stock options granted since June 1, 2002
applicable to the current service period as well as a charge of
$208 thousand recorded in the second quarter of 2005 represent-
ing the increase in value attributed to the shareholder approved
amendment to the stock option plan to extend the contractual life
of all options outstanding from five years to ten years.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased to $771 thou-
sand in 2006 compared to $564 thousand in 2005 and $420
thousand in 2004. The increase in expense in 2006 compared
with 2005 is due to a write-down of $250 thousand taken on
certain furniture and equipment whose carrying value was deemed
to be unrecoverable and in excess of the fair value of the underly-
ing assets offset by a lower level of capital expenditures in 2006.
The increase in expense in 2005 compared with 2004 is due to
the acquisition of additional capital related to the scale up of our
manufacturing process, as well as a write-down of $75 thousand
taken on certain equipment whose carrying value was deemed to
be unrecoverable and in excess of the estimated future undis-
counted cash flows of the underlying assets.

Interest Expense

Non-cash interest expense was $882 thousand in 2006 compared
with $300 thousand in 2005 and nil in 2004, These amounts
represent interest at a rate of prime +1% on the $15 million
convertible debentures. The increase in interest expense in 2006
compared with 2005 is a combination of higher interest rates
due to increases in the prime rate, as well as the full amount of
the debentures outstanding for the entire year, rather than part of
the year as in 2005. In 2005, the interest accrued based on the
cash advanced beginning Octeber 6, 2004 when the first tranche
of $5 million was advanced through to May 31, 2005 when the
entire $15 miltion had been advanced. All interest accrued on
the debentures to date has been paid in common shares of the
Company.

Accretion in Carrying Value of Secured Convertible Dehentures

Accretion in the carrying value of the debentures amounted to
$790 thousand in 2006 compared with $426 thousand in 2005
and nil in 2004, The accretion charges arise as under GAAP and
the Company has allocated the proceeds from each tranche of the
debentures to the debt and equity instruments issued on a relative
fair value basis resulting in the $15.0 million debentures having
an initial cumulative carrying value of $9.8 million as of their
dates of issuance. Each reporting period, the Company is required
to accrete the carrying value of the convertible debentures such
that at maturity on October 6, 2009, the carrying value of the
debentures will be the face value of $15.0 million. The increase
in expense in 2006 compared with 2005 is due to a full year of
accretion in 2006 compared with a partial year in 2005.
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Amortization of Deferred Financing Charges

Amortization of deferred financing charges totaled $87 thousand
in 2006 compared with $84 thousand in 2005 and nil in

2004. The deferred financing charges relate to the convertible
debenture transaction and will be amortized using the effective
interest rate method over the five-year life of the debt commenc-
ing October 6, 2004,

Interest and Other Income

interest income totaled $374 thousand in 2006 compared to
$524 thousand in 2005 and $1.2 million in 2004. The decrease
from 2005 to 2006 is due to a lower average cash and short-term
investment balance in 2006 offset by higher interest rates during
2006. The decrease in 2005 compared with 2004 is the result
of significantly fower cash and short-term investment balances in
2005, compared with 2004.

Loss for the Year

Net loss for the year decreased to $17.9 million or $0.10 per
share in 2006 compared to $22.1 million or $0.13 per share

in 2005 and $30.3 million or $0.18 per share in 2004. The
decrease in net loss in 2006 compared with 2005 is due to lower
research and development costs resulting from the close of our
Virulizin® Phase IH clinical trial as well as staff reductions due to
corporate changes, lower general and administrative costs due to
staff reductions and lower legal, consulting and investor relations
charges off set by lower interest income due to reduced cash

and short term investment balances as weil as higher non-cash
interest, accretion and depreciation and amortization expense.
The decrease in net loss in 2005 compared with 2004 is primar-
ily due to lower research and development cosis resulting from the
wind down of the Phase 11! Virulizin® clinical trial, as well as no
GT1-2040 or GTI-2501 drug production in 2005, offset by lower
interest revenue, non-cash expenses associated with stock-based
compensation expense, and non-cash charges related to the
convertible debentures including accretion, interest and amortiza-
tion of deferred financing charges.

Corporate Changes

In November 2005, as a means to conserve cash and refocus
operations, Lorus scaled back some activities related to the
Virulizin® technology and implemented a workforce reduction

of approximately 39% or 22 employees. As a result, we have
recorded severance compensation expense for former employees
of $557 thousand. Of this expense, $468 thousand is presented
in the income statement as general and adminisirative expense
and $89 thousand as research and development expense.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at May 31, 2006 include
severance and compensation expense liabilities relating to the
Company's November 2005 corporate changes of $154 thousand
that will be paid out by December 2006.

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Since its inception, Lorus has financed its operations and
technology acquisitions primarily from equity and debt financing,
the exercise of warrants and stock options, and interest income
on funds held for future investment. We expect to continue to
finance the GTI-2501 Phase li clinical trial and the development
of our small molecule program from internal resources until their
anticipated completion, The ongoing costs of the six GTI-2040
Phase It clinical trials will continue to be borne by the US NCI
with Lorus continuing to be responsible for any additional
GTI-2040 manufacturing costs.

We have not earned substantial revenues from our drug candidates
and are therefore considered to be in the development stage.
The continuation of our research and development activities and
the commercialization of the targeted therapeutic products are
dependent upon our ability to successfully finance and complete
our research and development programs through a combination
of equity financing and payments from strategic partners. We
have no current sources of payments from strategic partners. In
addition, we will need to repay or refinance the secured convert-
ible debentures on their maturity should the holder not choose
to convert the debentures into common shares. There can be no
assurance that additional funding wilt be available at all or on
acceptable terms to permit further chinical development of our
products or to repay the convertible debentures on maturity. If
we are not able to raise additional funds, we may not be able

to continue as a going concern and realize our assets and pay
our liabilities as they fall due. The financial statements do not
reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going concern
assumption were not appropriate. If the going concern basis
were not appropriate for our financial statements, then adjust-
ments would be necessary in the carrying value of the assets and
liabilities, the reported revenues and expenses and the balance
sheet classifications used.

Our current level of cash and short-term investments and the
additional funds available upon the successful closing of the sub-
scription agreements {described below) are sufficient to execute
our current planned expenditures for the next twelve months.

Operating Cash Requirements

Lorus utilized cash in operating activities of $13.1 million in
2006 compared with $18.7 million in 2005 and $28.1 million
in 2004. The decrease in cash used in operating activities in
2006 is due to lower research and development and general and
administrative expenses, as described above, offset by lower inter-
est income. The significant decrease in cash used in operating
activities in 2005 compared with 2004 is due to lower research
and development expenses, offset by lower interest income.
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Cash Position

At May 31, 2006, Lorus had cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments totaling $8.3 million compared to $21.56
million at the end of 2005. The Company invests in highly rated
and liquid debt instruments. Investment decisions are made in
accordance with an established investment policy administered

by senior management and overseen by the Beard of Directors.
Working capital {representing primarily cash and cash equivalents
and short-term investments) at May 31, 2006 was $5.8 million as
compared to $18.5 million at May 31, 2005. As discussed below,
subsequent to year end, we entered into subscription agreements
to raise gross proceeds of $12.2 million through the issuance of
33.8 million common shares of Lorus. Cash and short-term invest-
ments will therefore increase by $12.2 million in gross proceeds.

We do not expect to generate positive cash flow from operations in
the next several years due to additional research and development
costs, including costs related to drug discovery, preclinical test-
ing, clinical trials, manufacturing costs and operating expenses
associated with supporting these activities, Negative cash flow
will continue until such time, if ever, that we receive regulatory
approval to commercialize any of our products under development
and revenue from any such products exceeds expenses.

We may seek to access the public or private equity markets from
time to time, even if we do not have an immediate need for
additional capital at that time. We intend to use our resources to
fund our existing drug development programs and develop new
programs from our portfolio of preclinical research technologies.
The amounts actually expended for research and drug develop-
ment activities and the timing of such expenditures wili depend
on many factors, including the progress of the Company's research
and drug development programs, the results of preclinical and
clinical trials, the timing of regulatory submissions and approv-
als, the impact of any internally developed, licensed or acquired
technologies, our ability to find suitable partnership agreements to
assist financially with future development, the impact from tech-
nological advances, determinations as to the commercial potential
of the Company's compounds and the timing and development
status of competitive products.

Financing

On October 6, 2004, we entered into an agreement to raise
aggregate net proceeds of $13.9 million through the issuance
of secured convertible debentures and warrants. The debentures
are secured by a first charge over all of the assets of the Company.
We received $4.4 million on October 6, 2004 (representing a
$5.0 million debenture less an investor fee representing 4%

of the $15.0 million to be received under the agreement), and
$5.0 million on each of January 14 and April 15, 2005.

All debentures issued under this agreement are due on

Cctober 6, 2009 and are subject to interest payable monthly

at a rate of prime +1% until such time as the Company's share
price reaches $1.75 for 60 consecutive trading days, at which
time, interest will no longer be charged. Interest is payable in
common shares of Lorus until Lorus’ shares trade at a price of
$1.00 or more after which interest will be payable in cash or
common shares at the option of the debenture holder. Common
shares issued in payment of interest will be issued at a price
equa! to the weighted average trading price of such shares for
the ten trading days immediately preceding their issue in respect
of each interest payment. For the year ended May 31, 2006, the
Company has issued 2,153,000 common shares in settlement
of $882 thousand in interest. For the year ended May 31, 2005
the Company issued 421,000 common shares in settlement of
$300 thousand in interest.

The $15.0 million principal amount of debentures is convertible
at the holder's option at any time into commeon shares of the
Company with a conversion price per share of $1.00.

The Company issued to the debt holder 3,000,300 warrants
expiring October 6, 2009 to buy common shares of the Company
at a price per share equal to $1.00.

In addition, in 2005, Lorus issued common shares on the exercise
of stock options for proceeds of $112 thousand.

On June 11, 2003, Lorus raised net proceeds of $29.9 million by
way of a public offering of 26,220,000 units at a price of $1.25
per unit, each unit consisting of one commaon share and one-half
of ane purchase warrant. In 2004, Lorus issued common shares
on the exercise of stock options for proceeds of $171 thousand.

Use of Proceeds

In our prospectus dated June 3, 2003, we indicated that the
proceeds to be received from that financing would be used as
follows: $12 million for the product development of our immuno-
therapy platform, $11 miltion for the product development of our
antisense platform and $2 million for preclinical and discovery
programs. It was anticipated that the balance of funding would be
used for working capital and general purposes. Since the date of
the prospectus, we have incurred $38.0 million in research and
development expenses on our immunotherapy platform, $11.6
million on our antisense platform, and $1.8 million on preclinical
and discovery programs. The additional spending on our im-
munotherapy platform was funded through cash and short term
investments held by the Company prior to the 2003 offering, as
well as the October 6, 2004 $15.0 million convertible debenture
financing, and is the direct result of the expansion of the Virulizin®
Phase Ill clinical trial. The spending anticipated in the 2003
prospectus on our antisense platform and preclinical and discov-
ery programs was to be incurred over a number of years, inciuding
2004, 2005 and 2006. We have sufficient funds available at the
end of 2006 to fund the remaining $200 thousand to be spent on
preclinical and discovery programs.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

At May 31, 2006, we had contractual obligations requiring annual payments as follows:

{Amounts in 000's)

Less than
1 year 1-3 years 4.5 years 5+ years Total
Operating leases 139 126 - - 265
Convertible Debenture! - 15,000 - 15,000
Total 139 126 15,000 - 15,265

! The convertible debentures as described above may be converted into common shares of Lorus at a conversion price of $1.00. In the
event that the holder does not convert the debentures, Lorus has an obligation to repay the $15.0 million in cash.

OFF-BALANCE SHEEY ARRANGEMENTS

As at May 31, 2006, we have not entered into any off-balance
sheet arrangements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In 2006, we did not enter into any transactions with related
parties. In order to effectively execute our business strategy, we
expect to continue outsourcing various functions to the expertise
of third-parties such as contract manufacturing organizations,
contract research organizations, and other research organizations.
These relationships are with non-related third-parties and occur at
arm's length and on normal commercial terms.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 13, 2006, we entered into an agreement with HighTech
Beteiligungen GmbH & Co. KG (HighTech) to issue 28.8 million
common shares at $0.36 per share for gross proceeds of

$10.4 million. The subscription price represented a premium of
7.5% over the closing price of the common shares on the Toronte
Stock Exchange on July 13, 2006. The closing of the transaction
is subject to certain conditions, including the approval of the
Toronto Stock Exchange and the American Stock Exchange and
the filing and clearance of a prospectus in Ontario gualifying the
issuance of the common shares. The transaction is required to
close on or before September 30, 2006. In connection with the
transaction, HighTech will receive demand registration rights that
will enable HighTech to request the registration or gualification of
the common shares for resale in the United States and Canada,
subject to certain restrictions. These demand registration rights
will expire on June 30, 2012. In addition, HighTech will have the

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

right to nominate one nominee tc the board of directars of Lorus
or, if it does not have a nominee, it will have the right to appoint
an observer to the board. Upon completion of the transaction,
HighTech will hold approximately 14% of the issued and out-
standing common shares of Lorus Therapeutics inc.

On July 24, 2006, Lorus entered into an agreement with Techni-
fund Inc. to issue on a private placement basis, 5 million common
shares at $0.36 per share for gross proceeds of $1.8 million. The
closing is subject to certain conditions, including the approval

of the Toronto Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange,
and the closing of the transaction between Lorus and HighTech
{discussed above).

RISK FACTORS

Before making an investment decision with respect to our
common shares, you should carefully consider the following risk
factors, in addition to the cther information included or incor-
porated by reference into this report. The risks set out below are
not the only risks we face. If any of the following risks occur, our
business, financial condition, prospects or results of operations
would likely suffer. In that case, the trading price of our common
shares could decline and you may lose all or part of the money
you paid to buy our common shares.

We have a history of operating losses. We expect to incur net
losses and we may never achieve or maintain profitability.

We have not been profitable since our inception in 1986. We
reported net losses of $17.9 million; $22.1 million and $30.3
million for the years ended May 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. As of May 31, 2006, we had an accumulated deficit
of $164.5 million.




To date we have only generated nominal revenues from the sale of
Virulizin® in Mexico and we stopped selling Virulizin® in Mexico in
July 2005. We have not generated any other revenue from product
sales to date and it is possible that we will never have sufficient
product sales revenue to achieve profitability. We expect to
continue to incur tosses for at feast the next several years as we or
our collaborators and licensees pursue clinical triats and research
and development efforis. To become profitable, we, either alone or
with our collaborators and licensees, must successfully develap,
manufacture and market our current product candidates, par-
ticularly Virulizin® and GTI-2040, as well as continue to identify,
develop, manufacture and market new product candidates. It is
possible that we will never have significant product sales revenue
or receive significant royalties on our licensed product candidates.
If funding is insufficient at any time in the future, we may not be
able to develop or commercialize our products, take advantage of
business opportunities or respond to competitive pressures.

Our current and anticipated operations, particularly our product
development requires substantial capital. We expect that our
existing cash and cash equivalents, along with the funds available
to us through the subscription agreements with HighTech and
Technifund described above, will sufficiently fund our current
and planned operations through at least the next twelve months.
However, our future capital needs will depend on many factors,
including the extent to which we enter inte collaboration agree-
ments with respect to any of our proprietary product candidates,
receive royalty and milestone payments from our possible collabo-
rators and make progress in our internally funded research and
development activities,

Our capital requirements will also depend on the magnitude and
scope of these activities, our ability to maintain existing and es-
tablish new collaborations, the terms of those collaborations, the
success of our collaborators in developing and marketing products
under their respective collaborations with us, the success of our
contract manufacturers in producing clinical and commercial sup-
plies of our product candidates on a timely basis and in sufficient
quantities to meet our requirements, competing technological and
market developments, the time and cost of obtaining regutatory
approvals, the extent to which we choose to commercialize our
future products through our own sales and marketing capabilities,
the cost of preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enfore-
ing patent and other rights and our success in acquiring and
integrating complementary products, technologies or companies.
We do not have committed external sources of funding and we
cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain additionat funds
on acceptable terms, if at all. If adequate funds are not available,
we may be required to:

* engage in equity financings that would be dilutive to current
shareholders;

* delay, reduce the scope of, or eliminate one or mere of our
development programs; or
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s gbtain funds through arrangements with collaborators or
others that may require us to relinguish rights to technolo-
gies, product candidates or products that we would otherwise
seek to develop or commercialize ourselves; or license rights
to technologies, product candidates or products on terms that
are less favorable to us than might otherwise be available.

We may be unable to cbtain partnerships for one or more of
our product candidates which could curtail future development
and negatively impact our share price.

Qur product candidates require significant funding to reach
regulatory approval upon positive clinical results. Such funding,

in particular for Virulizin®, will be very difficult, or impossible

to raise in the public markets. If such partnerships are not
attainable, the development of these product candidates maybe
significantly delayed or stopped altogether. The announcement of
such delay or discontinuation of development may have a negative
impact on our share price.

In addition, our strategy for the research, development and
commercialization of our products requires entering into various
arrangements with corporate collaborators, licensers, licensees
and others, and our commercial success is dependent upon these
outside parties performing their respective contractual responsibil-
ities. The amount and timing of resources that such third-parties
will devote to these activities may not be within our control. We
cannot assure you that such parties will perform their obligations
as expected. We also cannot assure you that our collaborators

will devote adequate resources to our programs. In addition, we
could become involved in disputes with our collaborators, which
could result in a delay or termination of the related development
programs or result in litigation. We intend to seek additional
collaborative arrangements to develop and commercialize some
of our products. We may not be able to negotiate collaborative ar-
rangements on favorable terms, or at all, in the future, or that our
current or future collaborative arrangements will be successful.

If we cannot negotiate collaboration, licence or partnering agree-
ments, we may never achieve profitability.

Clinical trials are long, expensive and uncertain processes and
Health Canada or the FDA may uitimately not approve any of
our product candidates. We may never develop any commercial
drugs or other products that generate revenues.

None of our products has received regulatory approval for com-
mercial use and sale in North America. We cannot market a
pharmaceutical product in any jurisdiction until it has completed
thorough prectinical testing and clinical trials in addition to that
jurisdiction’s extensive regulatory approval process. In general,
significant research and development and clinical studies are
required to demonstrate the safety and effectiveness of our
products before we can submit any regulatory applications.

Clinical trials are long, expensive and uncertain processes. Clini-
cal trials may not be commenced or completed on schedule, and
Health Canada or the FDA may not uitimately approve our product
candidates for commercial sale. Further, even if the results of
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our preclinical studies or clinical trials are initially positive, it is
possible that we will obtain different results in the later stages

of drug development or that results seen in clinical trials will not
continue with longer term treatment. Drugs in late stages of clini-
cal development may fail to show the desired safety and efficacy
traits despite having progressed through initial clinical testing. For
example, positive results in early Phase | or Phase Il clinical trials
may not be repeated in larger Phase |1 or Phase Il1 clinical trials.
The resulis of our Phase Il ciinical trial of Virulizin® did not meet
the primary endpoint of the study despite promising preclinical
and early stage clinical data. All of our potential drug candidates
are prone to the risks of faiiure inherent in drug development.

Preparing, submitting and advancing applications for regulatory
approval is complex, expensive and time intensive and entails
significant uncertainty. The results of our completed preclinical
studies and clinical trials may not be indicative of future clinical
trial results. A commitment of substantial resources to conduct
time-consuming research, preclinical studies and clinical trials will
be required if we are to complete development of our products.
Clinical trials of our products require that we identify and enrol a
large number of patients with the iliness under investigation. We
may not be able to enrol a sufficient number of appropriate patients
to complete our clinical trials in a timely manner particuiariy

in smaller indications such as Acute Myeloid Leukemia. If we
experience difficulty in enrolling a sufficient number of patients

to conduct our clinical trials, we may need to delay or terminate
angoing clinical trials and will not accomplish objectives material

to our success that could affect the price of our common shares.
Delays in planned patient enralment or lower than anticipated event
rates in our current clinical trials or future clinical trials may result
in increased costs, program delays, or both.

In addition, unacceptable toxicities or adverse side effects may
occur at any time in the course of preclinical studies or human
clinical trials or, if any products are successfully developed and
approved for marketing, during commercial use of any approved
products. The appearance of any such unacceptable toxicities

or adverse side effects could interrupt, limit, delay or abort the
development of any of our product candidates or, if previously
approved, nacessitate their withdrawal from the market. Further-
more, disease resistance or other unforeseen factors may limit the
effectiveness of our potential products.

The clinical trials of any of our drug candidates could be unsuc-
cessful, which would prevent us from advancing, commercializing
or partnering the drug.

Our failure to develop safe, commercially viable drugs would sub-
stantially impair our ability to generate revenues and sustain our
operations and would materially harm our business and adversely
affect our share price. We may never achieve profitability.

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC,

As a result of intense competition and technological change in
the pharmaceutical industry, the marketplace may not accept
our products or product candidates, and we may not be able to
compete successfully against other companies in our industry
and achieve profitability.

Many of our competiters have drug products that have already
been approved or are in development, and operate large, well-
funded research and developmeni programs in these fields.

Many of our competitors have substantially greater financial and
management resources, stronger intellectual property positions
and greater manufacturing, marketing and sales capabilities,
areas in which we have limited or no experience. In addition,
many of our competitors have significantly greater experience than
we do in undertaking preclinical testing and clinical triats of new
or improved pharmaceutical products and obtaining required regu-
latory approvals. Consequently, our competitors may abtain Health
Canada, FDA and other regulatory approvals for product candi-
dates sooner and may be more successful in manufacturing and
marketing their producis than we or our collaborators are. Existing
and future products, therapies and technological approaches will
compete directly with the products we seek to develop. Current
and prospective competing products may provide greater thera-
peutic benefits for a specific problem or may offer easier delivery
or comparable performance at a lower cost. Any product candidate
that we develop and that obtains regulatory approval must then
compete for market acceptance and market share. Qur product
candidates may not gain market acceptance among physicians,
patients, healthcare payers and the medical community. Further,
any procucts we develop may become cbsolete before we recover
any expenses we incurred in connection with the development of
these products. As a result, we may never achieve profitability.

If we fail to attract and retain key employees, the develop-
ment and commercialization of our products may be adversely
affected.

We depend heavily on the principal members of our scientific and
management staff. If we lose any of these persons, our ability to
develop products and become profitable could suffer. The risk

of being unable to retain key personnel may be increased by the
fact that we have not executed long term employment contracts
with our employees, except for our senior executives. Our future
success will also depend in large part on our ability te attract and
retain other highly qualified scientific and management personnel.
We face competition for personnel from other companies, aca-
demic institutions, government entities and other organizations.

We may be unable to cbtain patents to protect our technolo-
gies from other companies with competitive products, and
patents of other companies could prevent us from manufactiir-
ing, developing or marketing our products.
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Patent protection

The patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies are uncertain and involve complex legal and factual
questions, The United States (U.S.) Patent and Trademark Office
and many other patent offices in the world have not established

a consistent policy regarding the breadth of claims that it will
allow in biotechnology patents. Further, allowable patentable
subject matter and the scope of patent protection obtainable
may differ between jurisdictions. If a patent office allows broad
claims, the number and cost of patent interference proceedings
in the U.S. or analogous proceedings in other jurisdictions and
the risk of infringement litigation may increase. If a patent office
allows narrow claims, the risk of infringement may decrease, but
the value of our rights under our patents, licenses and patent
applications may also decrease, In addition, the scope of the
claims in a patent application can be significantly modified during
prosecution before the patent is issued. Consequently, we cannot
know whether our pending applications will result in the issuance
of patents or, if any patents are issued, whether they will provide
us with significant proprietary protection or will be circumvented,
invalidated or found to be unenforceable. Until recently, patent
applications in the U.S. were maintained in secrecy until the
patents issued, and publication of discoveries in scientific or
patent literature often lags behind actual discoveries. Patent
applications filed in the United States after November 2000
generally will be published 18 months after the filing date unless
the applicant certifies that the invention will not be the subject
of a foreign patent application. In many other jurisdictions, such
as Canada, patent applications are published 18 months from the
priority date. We cannot assure you that, even if published, we will
be aware of all such literature. Accordingly, we cannot be certain
that the named inventors of our products and processes were the
first to invent that product or process or that we were the first to
pursue patent coverage for our inventions.

Enforcement of intellectual property rights

Our commercial success depends in part on our ability to maintain
and enforce our proprietary rights. If third-parties engage in activi-
ties that infringe our proprietary rights, our management’s focus
will be diverted and we may incur significant costs in asserting our
rights. We may not be successful in asserting our proprietary rights,
which could result in our patents being held invalid or a court hold-
ing that the third-party is not infringing, either of which would harm
our competitive position. In addition, we cannot assure you that
others will not design around our patented technrology. Moreover, we
may have to participate in interference proceedings declared by the
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, European opposition proceed-
ings, or sther analogous proceedings in other parts of the world

to determine priority of invention and the validity of patent rights
granted or applied for, which could result in substantial cost and
delay, even if the eventual outcome is favorable to us. We cannot
assure you that our pending patent applications, if issued, would be
held valid or enforceable. Additionally, many of our foreign patent
applications have been published as part of the patent prosecution
process in such countries.
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Trademark protection

Protection of the rights revealed in published patent applications
can be complex, costly and uncertain. In order to protect goodwill
associated with our company and product names, we rely on
trademark protection for our marks. For example, we have regis-
tered the Virulizin® trademark with the U.S. Patent and Trademark
Office. A third-party may assert a claim that the Virulizin® mark is
confusingly similar to its mark and such claims or the failure to
timely register the Virulizin® mark or objections by the FDA could
force us to select a new name for Virulizin®, which could cause us
to incur additional expense.

Trade secrets

We also rely on trade secrets, know-how and confidentiality provi-
sions in our agreements with our collabarators, employees and
consultants to protect our intellectual property. However, these
and other parties may not comply with the terms of their agree-
ments with us, and we might be unable to adequately enforce our
rights against these people or obtain adequate compensation for
the damages caused by their unauthorized disclosure or use. Our
trade secrets or those of our collaborators may become known or
may be independently discovered by others.

Qur products and product candidates may infringe the intellec-
tual property rights of others, which could increase our costs.
Cur success also depends on avoiding infringement of the propri-
etary technologies of others. In particular, there may be certain
issued patents and patent applications claiming subject matter
which we or our collaborators may be required to license in order
to research, develop or commercialize at least some of our product
candidates, including Virulizin®, GTI-2040, GTI-2501 and small
molecules. In addition, third-parties may assert infringement or
other intellectual property claims against us based on our patents
or other intellectua! property rights. An adverse outcome in these
proceedings could subject us to significant liabilities to third-
parties, require disputed rights to be licensed from third-parties
or require us to cease or modify our use of the technology. If we
are required to Hicense such technology, we cannot assure you

that a license under such patents and patent applications will

be available on acceptable terms or at all. Further, we may incur
substantial costs defending ourselves in lawsuits against charges
of patent infringement or other unlawful use of another's propri-
etary technology.

if product liability claims are brought against us or we are un-
able to obtain or maintain product lability insurance, we may
incur substantial liabilities that could reduce our financial
resources,

The clinical testing and commercial use of pharmaceutical
products involves significant exposure to product liabitity claims.
We have obtained limited product liability insurance coverage for
our clinical trials on humans; however, our insurance coverage
may be insufficient to protect us against all product liability dam-
ages. Further, liability insurance coverage is becoming increas-
ingly expensive and we might not be able to obtain or maintain
product liability insurance in the future on acceptable terms or in
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sufficient amounts to pretect us against product liability dam-
ages. Regardless of merit or eventual cutcome, liability claims
may result in decreased demand for a future product, injury to
reputation, withdrawal of clinical trial volunteers, loss of revenue,
costs of litigation, distraction of management and substantial
monetary awards to plaintiffs. Additionaily, if we are required to
pay a product liability claim, we may net have sufficient financial
resources to complete development or commercialization of any of
our product candidates and our business and results of operations
will be adversely affected.

We have no manufacturing capabilities. We depend on third-
parties, including a number of sole suppliers, for manufactur-
ing and storage of our product candidates used in our clinical
trials. Product Introductions may be delayed or suspended if
the manufacture of our products is interrupted or discontinued.
We do not have manufacturing facilities to produce supplies of
Virulizin®, GTi-2040, GTI-2501, small molecule or any of our
other preduct candidates to support clinical trials or commercial
launch of these products, if they are approved. We are dependent
on third-parties for manufacturing and storage of our product
candidates. If we are unable to centract for a sufficient supply of
our product candidates on acceptable terms, or if we encounter
delays or difficulties in the manufacturing process or our relation-
ships with our manufacturers, we may not have sufficient product
to conduct or complete our clinical trials or support preparations
for the commercial launch of our product candidates, if approved.

Dependence on contract manufacturers for commercial preduction
involves a number of risks, many of which are outside cur control.
These risks include potential delays in transferring technoicgy,
and the inability of our contract manufacturer to scale production
on a timely basis, to manufacture commercial quantities at rea-
scnabie costs, to comply with cGMP and to implement procedures
that result in the production of drugs that meet our specifications
and regulatory requirements.

Our reliance on contract manufacturers exposes us to additional
risks, including:

o there may be delays in scale-up to quantities needed for
clinical trials and commerciat launch or failure to manufac-
ture such guantities to our specifications, or to deliver such
guantities on the dates we require;

e our current and future manufacturers are subject to ongoing,
periodic, unanncunced inspection by the FDA and cor-
responding Canadian and international regulatory authorities
for compliance with strictly enferced ¢cGMP regulations
and similar standards, and we do not have contro! over our
centract manufacturers’ compliance with these regulations
and standards;

¢ our current and future manufacturers may not be able to
comply with applicable regulatory requirements, which would
prehipit them from manufacturing products for us;

+ if we need to change to other commercial manufacturing
contractors, the FDA and comparable foreign regulators
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must approve these contractors prior to our use, which would
require new testing and compliance inspections, and the new
manufacturers would have to be educated in, or themselves
develop substantially equivalent processes necessary for the
praduction or our products; and

» our manufacturers might not be able to fulfill cur commercial
needs, which would require us to seek new manufacturing
arrangements and may result in substantial delays in meeting
market demand.

Any of these factors could cause us to delay or suspend clinical
trials, regulatery submission, required approvals or commercial-
ization of our products under development, entail higher costs
and result in our being unable to effectively commerciatize cur
products. We do not currently intend to manufacture any of our
product candidates, although we may choose to do so in the
future. I¥f we decide to manufacture cur products, we would be
subject to the regulatory risks and requirements described above.
We would also be subject to similar risks regarding delays or dif-
ficulties encountered in manufacturing our pharmaceutical prod-
ucts and we would require additional facitities and substantial
additional capital. We cannot assure you that we would be able 1o
manufacture any of our products successfully in accordance with
regulatory requirements and in a cost effective manner.

Our operations involve hazardous materials and we must
comply with environmental laws and regulations, which can he
expensive and restrict how we do business.

Our research and development activities involve the controlled
use of hazardous materials, radioactive compounds and other
potentially dangerous chemicals and biological agents. Although
we believe our safety procedures for these materials comply with
governmental standards, we cannot entirely eliminate the risk

of accidental contamination or injury from these materials. We
currently have insurance, in amounts and on terms typical for
companies in businesses that are similarly situated, that could
coverall or a portion of a damage claim arising from our use of
hazardous and other materials. However, if an accident or environ-
mental discharge occurs, and we are held liable for any resulting
damages, the associated liability could exceed our insurance
coverage and our financial resources.

We have limited sales, marketing and distribution experience.
We have very limited experience in the sales, marketing and dis-
tribution of pharmaceutical products. There can be no assurance
that we wili be able to establish saies, marketing, and distribution
capabilities or make arrangements with our collaborators, licens-
ees or others to perform such activities or that such efforts will be
successful. If we decide to market any of our products directly, we
must either acquire or internaily develop a marketing and sales
force with technical expertise and with supporting distribution
capabilities. The acquisition or development of a sales and distri-
bution infrastructure would require substantial rescurces, which
may divert the attention of our management and key personnel
and have a negative impact on our product development efforts.

If we contract with third-parties for the sales and marketing of our




products, our revenues will be dependent on the efforts of these
third-parties, whose efforts may not be successful. If we fail to
establish successful marketing and sales capabilities or to make
arrangements with third-parties, our business, financial condition
and results of operations will be materially adversely affected.

Our interest income is subject to fluctuations of interest rates
in our investment portfolio.

Gur investments are held to maturity and have staggered maturi-
ties to minimize interest rate risk. There can be no assurance that
interest income fluctuations will not have an adverse impact on
our financial condition. We maintain all our accounts in Canadian
dollars, but a portion of our expenditures are in foreign curren-
cies. We do not currently engage in hedging our foreign currency
requirements to reduce exchange rate risk.

Because of the uncertainty of pharmaceutical pricing, re-
imbursement and healthcare reform measures, if any of our
product candidates are approved for sale to the public, we may
be unable to sell our products profitably.

The availability of reimbursement by governmental and other
third-party payers affects the market for any pharmaceutical
product. These third-party payers continually attempt to contain or
reduce the costs of healthcare. There have been a number of leg-
islative and regulatory proposals to change the healthcare system
and further proposals are likely. Significant uncertainty exists with
respect to the reimbursement status of newly approved healthcare
products. In addition, third-party payers are increasingly chal-
lenging the price and cost effectiveness of medical products and
services. We might not be able to sell our preducts profitably or
recoup the value of our investment in product development if
reimbursement is unavailable or limited in scope.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE
DEBENTURES

COur share price has been and may continue to be volatile and
an investment in our common shares could suffer a decline in
value.

You should consider an investment in our common shares as risky
and invest only if you can withstand a significant loss and wide
fluctuations in the market value of your investment. We receive
only limited attention by securities analysts and frequently experi-
ence an imbalance between supply and demand for our common
shares. The market price of our common shares has been highly
volatite and is likely to continue to be volatile. Factors affecting
our common share price include:

s the progress of our and our collaborators’ clinical trials,
including our and our colfaborators’ ability to produce clinicat
supplies of our preduct candidates on a timely basis and in
sufficient quantities to meet our clinical trial requirements;

s announcements of technological innovations or new product
candidates by us, our collaborators or our competitors;

e fluctuations in our operating results;
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¢ published reports by securities analysts;
e developments in patent or other intellectual property rights;

¢ publicity concerning discovery and development activities by
our licensees;

¢ the cash and short term investments held us and our ability
to secure future financing;

®  public concern as to the safety and efficacy of drugs that we
and our competitors develop;

»  governmental regulation and changes in medical and
pharmaceutical product reimbursement policies; and

e general market conditions.

Future sales of our common shares by us or by our existing
shareholders could cause our share price to fall.

Additional equity financings or other share issuances by us could
adversely affect the market price of our common shares. Sales by
existing shareholders of a large number of shares of our common
shares in the public market and the sale of shares issued in
connection with strategic alliances, or the perception that such
additional sales could cccur, could cause the market price of our
common shares to drop.

Our cash flow may not be sufficient to cover interest payments
on our secured convertible debentures or to repay fhe deben-
tures at maturity.

Qur ability to make interest payments, if required to be paid

in cash, and to repay at maturity or refinance our prime +1%
convertible debentures due in 2009 will depend on our ability to
generate sufficient cash or refinance them. We have never gener-
ated positive annual cash flow from our operating activities, and
we may not generate or sustain positive cash flows from opera-
tions in the future. Our ability to generate sufficient cash flow

will depend on our ability, or the ability of our strategic partners,
to successfully develop and obtain regulatory approval for new
preducts and to successfully market these products, as well as the
results of our research and development efforts and other factors,
including general economic, financial, competitive, iegislative and
regulatory conditions, many of which are outside of our centrol.

Conversion of our secured convertible debentures will dilute
the ownership interest of existing shareholders.

The conversion of some or all of the convertible debentures will
dilute the ownership interests of existing shareholders. Any sales
in the public market of the common shares issuable upon such
conversion could adversely affect prevailing market prices of

our commeon shares. In addition, the existence of the secured
convertible debentures may encourage short selling by market
participants.
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We may violate one or more of the operaticnal covenants
related to our convertible debentures that could resuft in an
event of default and the requirement for early payment of our
convertible debentures.

Our convertible debentures are subject to certain operational
covenants. In the event that cne of those covenants is breached
by us, an event of default could be declared requiring the immedi-
ate payment of the face value of the debentures. This could result
in our inability to pay and insolvency of the Company, a dilutive
equity financing in attempt to raise funds to repay the debentures,
or a significant reduction in cash available for us to use towards
the development of our product candidates.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company periodically reviews its financial reporting and
disclosure practices and accounting policies to ensure that they
provide accurate and transparent information relative to the cur-
rent economic and business environment. As part of this process,
the Company has reviewed its selection, application and commu-
nication of critical accounting policies and financial disclosures.
Management has discussed the development and selection of the
critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosure
relating to critical accounting policies in this Management's
Discussion and Analysis. Other important accounting polices are
described in note 2 of the Financial Statements.

Drug Development Costs

We incur costs related to the research and development of
pharmaceutical products and technelogies for the management
of cancer. These costs include internal and external costs for
preclinical research and clinical trials, drug costs, regutatory
compliance costs and patent application costs. All research costs
are expensed as incurred as required under GAAP.

Development costs, including the cost of drugs for use in
clinicat trials, are expensed as incurred unless they meet the
criteria under GAAP for deferral and amortization. The Company
continually assesses its activities to determine when, if ever,
development costs may qualify for capitalization. By expensing
the research and development costs as required under GAAP, the
value of the product portfolio is not reflected on the Company’s
Financial Statements.

Stock-Based Compensation

We have applied the fair value based method to expense stock
options awarded since June 1, 2002 using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model as allowed under CICA Handbook Section
3870. The model estimates the fair value of fully transferable op-
tions, without vesting restrictions, which significantly differs from
the stock option awards issued by Lorus. The model also requires
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four highly subjective assumptions including future stock price
volatility and expected time until exercise, which greatly affect
the calculated values. The increase or decrease of one of these
assumptions could materially increase or decrease the fair value
of stock options issued and the associated expense.

Valuation Allowance for Future Tax Assets

We have a net tax benefit resulting from non-capital losses
carried forward, and scientific research and experimental
development expenditures. In light of the recent net losses

and uncertainty regarding our future ability to generate taxable
income, management is of the opinicn that it is not more likely
than not that these tax assets will be realized in the foreseeable
future and hence, a full valuation allowance has been recorded
against these income tax assets. Consequently, no future income
tax assets or liabilities are recorded on the balance sheets. The
generation of future taxable income could result in the recogni-
tion of some portion or all of these benefits, which could result
in a material improvement in our resuits of operations through
the recovery of future income taxes.

Valuation of Long Lived Assets

We periodically review the useful lives and the carrying values

of our long lived assets. We review for impairment in long lived
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. If the
sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from
the use and eventual disposition of an asset is less than its carry-
ing amount, it is considered to be impaired. An impairment loss
is measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its fair value; which is estimated as the expected
future cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the
risks associated with the recovery of the asset

ACCOUNTING POLICY CHANGES

Variable Interest Entities

Effective June 1, 2005, the Company adopted the recommenda-
tions of CICA Handbook Accounting Guideline 15 (AcG-15),
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after November 1, 2004. Variable interest entities
(VIEs) refer to those entities that are subject to control on a basis
other than ownership of voting interests. AcG-15 provides guid-
ance for identifying VIEs and criteria for determining which entity,
if any, should consolidate them. The adoption of AcG-15 did not
have an effect on the financial position, results of operations or
cash flows in the current period or the prior period presented.
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Financial Instruments—Disclosure and Presentation

Effective June 1, 2005, the Company adopted the amended
recommendations of CICA Handbook Section 3860, Financial
Instruments—Disclosure and Presentation, effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after November 1, 2004. Section 3860
requires that certain obligaticns that may be settled at the
issuer’'s option in cash or the equivalent value by a variable
number of the issuer's own equity instruments be presented as
a liability. The Company has determined that there is no impact
on the Financial Statements resulting from the adoption of the
amendments to Section 3860 either in the current period or the
prior period presented.

Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments

On October 17, 2005, the CICA issued EIC 158, Accounting

for Convertible Debt Instruments applicahle to convertible debt
instruments issued subsequent to the date of the EIC. EIC 158
discusses the accounting treatment of convertible debentures in
which upon conversion, the issuer is either required or has the
option to satisfy all or part of the obligation in cash. The EIC
discusses various accounting issues related to this type of convert-
ible debt. The Company has determined that there is no impact
on the Financial Statements resulting from the adoption of

EIC 158 either in the current period or the prior period presented.

Section 3831, Non-Monetary Transactions

In June 2005, the CICA released a new Handbook Section
3831, Non-monetary Transactions, effective for all non-monetary
transactions initiated in periods beginning on or after January 1,
2006. This standard requires all non-monetary transactions to be
measured at fair value unless they meet one of four very specific
criteria. Commercial substance replaces cuimination of the earn-
ings process as the test for fair value measurement. A transac-
tion has commercial substance if it causes an identifiable and
measurable change in the economic circumstances of the entity.
Commercial substance is a function of the cash flows expected by
the reporting entity.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Comprehensive Income and Equity

In January 2005, the CICA released new Handbook Section 1530,
Comprehensive Income, and Section 3251, Equity. Section 1530
establishes standards for reporting comprehensive income. The
section does not address issues of recognition or measurement

for comprehensive income and its components. Section 3251
establishes standards for the presentation of equity and changes
in equity during the reporting period. The requirements in this
section are in addition to Section 1530.

Section 3855, Financial Instruments—Recognition and
Measurement

CICA Handbook Section 3855 establishes standards for the
recognition and measurement of all financial instruments,
provides a characteristics-based definition of a derivative instru-
ment, provides criteria to be used to determine when a financial
instrument should be recognized, and provides criteria to be
used to determine when a financial fiability is considered to be
extinguished.

Section 3865, Hedges

CICA Handbook Section 3865 establishes standards for when
and how hedge accounting may be applied. Hedge accounting is
opticnal.

These three Sections are effective for fiscal years beginning on
or after October 1, 2006. An entity adopting these Sections for a
fiscal year beginning before October 1, 2006 must adopt all the
Sections simultaneously.
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SELECTED ANNUAL FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data have been derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the accompanying
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2006 which are prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP,

Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit

(amounts in Canadian 00Q0's except for per common share data)

Years Ended May 31

2006 2005 2004
REVENUE $ 26 $ 0 $ 608
EXPENSES
Cost of sales 3 ! 28
Research and development 10,237 14,394 26,785
General and administrative 4,334 5,348 4915
Stock-based compensation 1,205 1,475 -
Depreciation and amortization 771 564 420
Operating expenses 16,550 21,782 32,148
Interest expense 882 300 -
Accretion in carrying value of secured convertible debentures 790 426 -
Amortization of deferred financing charges 87 84 -
Interest income (374) (524) (1,239)
Loss for the period 17,909 22,062 30,301
Basic and diluted loss per common share % 0.10 % 0.13 % 0.18
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share 173,523 172,112 171,628
Total Assets $ 11,461 $ 27,566 $ 34,424
Total Long-term liabilities $ 11,002 $ 10,212 $ -

QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The foflowing table sets forth certain unaudited consolidated statements of operations data for each of the eight most recent fiscal
quarters that, in management’s opinion, have been prepared on a basis consistent with the audited consclidated financial statements

contained elsewhere in this annual report and includes all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments. necessary for a

fair presentation of the infermation presented.

Research and development expenses have decreased throughout 2006 in comparison with the same quarter in the prior year. This reduc-

tion is due to the close of our Phase NI Virulizin® clinical trial as well as corporate changes in November 2005 to reduce headcount.

General and administrative expenses increased for the quarter ended November 30, 2005 due to severance charges recorded during the

quarter resulting from the termination of personnel in the November 2005 corporate changes. Expenditures have continued to decline
since Q2 2006 due to reduced headcount as well as reduced consulting, patent costs and investor relation costs.

Net loss decreased in Q3 and Q4 of 2006 as the result of reduced research and development and general and administrative
expenditures.

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.
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(Amounts in 000's except for per common share data)

Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended

May 31, Feb. 28, Nov. 30, Aug. 31, May 31, Feb. 28, Nov. 30, Aug. 31,

2006 2006 2005 2005 2005 2005 2004 2004

Revenue $ 14 % 5 $ 6 $ 1 $ - $ 3 $ 1 $ 2

Research and development 1,353 2,296 2,631 3,957 2,332 3,175 3,838 5,049

General and administrative 730 909 1,619 1,076 1,506 1,484 1,333 1,025

Net loss (2,970} (4,095) {5,102) (5,742) (4,598) {5,274) (5,945} (6,245)
Basic and diluted

net loss per share $ (0.02) $ (002} $ (0.03) % (003} $ (0.03) $ (0.03) $ (0.03) $ (0.04)

Cash used in
operating activities $(1,940) $(3,956) $(2,360) $(4,809) $(3,789) $(4,106) $(4,966) $(5860

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

As at August 9, 2006, the Company had 175,262,548 common
shares issued and outstanding. In addition, the Company had
issued and outstanding 13,470,000 stock options to purchase an
equal number of common shares, 3,000,000 warrants to pur-
chase an equal number of common shares of Lorus at an exercise
price of $1.00 per share and a $15 million convertible debenture
convertible into common shares of Lorus at $1.00 per share. The
Company entered into subscription agreements subsequent to year
end to issue 33.8 million common shares at $0.36 per share. The
transactions must close by September 30, 2006.

CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report may contain forward-looking statements

within the meaning of Canadian and U.S. securities laws. Such
statements include, but are not limited to, statements relating

to: our expectations regarding future financings, our plans to
conduct clinical trials, the successful and timely completion of
clinical studies and the regulatory approval process, our plans to
obtain partners to assist in the further development of our product
candidates, the establishment of corporate alliances, the Com-
pany’s plans, objectives, expectations and intentions and other
statements including words such as “anticipate”, “contemplate”,
“continue”, "believe”, “plan”, "estimate”, "expect”, “intend”,

“will", “should”, “may"”, and other similar expressions.

Such statements reflect our current views with respect to future
events and are subject to risks and uncertainties and are neces-
sarily based upon a number of estimates and assumptions that,
while considered reasonable by us are inherently subject to
significant business, economic, competitive, political and social
uncertainties and contingencies. Many factors could cause our
actual results, performance or achievements to be materially dif-
ferent from any future results, performance, or achievements that
may be expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements,
including, among others:

* our ability to obtain the capital required for research and
operations;

+ the regulatory approval process;
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+ the progress of our clinical trials;

« our ability to find and enter into agreements with potential
partners;

s our ability to attract and retain key personnel;

*  our ability to obtain patent protection and protect our intel-
lectual property rights;

* commercialization limitations imposed by intellectual
property rights owned or controlled by third parties;

+ changing market conditions; and

*  other risks detailed from time-to-time in our ongoing quarterly
filings, annual information forms, annual reports and annual
filings with Canadian securities regulators and the United
States Securities and Exchange Commission, and those
which are discussed under the heading “Risk Factors”.

Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or
should the assumptions set out in the section entitled “Risk Fac-
tors” underlying those forward-looking statements prove incorrect,
actual results may vary materially from those described herein.
These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this
annual information form or, in the case of documents incorporated
by reference herein, as of the date of such documents, and we

do nct intend, and do not assume any obligation, to update

these forward-looking statements, except as required by law. We
cannot assure you that such statements will prove to be accurate
as actual results and future events could differ materially from
those anticipated in such statements. Investors are cautioned
that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and accordingly investors are cautioned not to put
undue reliance on forward-looking statements due to the inherent
uncertainty therein.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to Lorus, including Lorus' 2006
annual information form and other disclosure documents, is
available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR

financial reporting

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. and other financial information contained in this annual
repori are the responsibility of Management and have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The consolidated financiai statements have been prepared in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, using
Management's best estimates and judgments where appropriate. In the opinion of Management, these consolidated financial siatements
reflect fairly the financial position and the results of operations and cash flows of the Company within reasonable limits of materiality.
The financial information contained efsewhere in this annual report has been reviewed to ensure consistency with that in the consoli-
dated financial statements. The integrity and objectivity of data in the financial statements and elsewhere in this annuat report are the
responsibility of Management.

In discharging its responsibility for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management maintains a system of internal
controls designed to provide reasonable assurance, at appropriate cost, that transactions are authorized, assets are safeguarded and
proper records are maintained. Management believes that the internal controls provide reasonable assurance that financial records are
reliable and form a proper basis for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, and that assets are properly accounted
for and safeguarded. The internal control process includes management's communication to employees of policies that govern ethical
business conduct.

The Board of Directors, through an Audit Committee, oversees management’s responsibilities for financial reporting. This committee,
which consists of three independent directors, reviews the audited consolidated financial statements and recommends the financial
statements to the Board for approval. Other key responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing the adequacy of the Company's
existing internal controls, audit process and financial reporting with management and the external auditors.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, Chartered Accountants, who are independent auditers appointed
by the shareholders of the Company upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee. Their report follows. The independent auditors
have free and full access to the Audit Committee.

%@ g.%&.fgt’ ﬂ/,]é—f—

Jim A. Wright Elizabeth Williams
President and Chief Executive Officer Director of Finance {Acting Chief Financial Officer)
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE Shareholders

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Lorus Therapeutics inc. as at May 31, 2006 and 2005 and the consolidated state-
ments of loss and deficit and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2006 and the related consolidated
statements of loss and deficit and cash flows for the period from inception on September 5, 1986 to May 31, 2006. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financia! statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and
perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assess-
ing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as welt as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

in our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company

as at May 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended

May 31, 2006 and for the period from inception on September 5, 1986 to May 31, 2006 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. for the period from inception on September 5, 1986
to May 31, 1994. Those consolidated financial statements were audited by other auditors who issued a report without reservation on
July 8, 1994.

Kins £
7

Chartered Accountants
Toronto, Canada

August 9, 2006
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{amounts in Canadian 000's)

As at As at
May 31, 2006 May 31, 2005
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,692 $ 2,776
Short-term investments (note 5) 5,627 18,683
Prepaid expenses and other assets 515 1,126
8,834 22,5856
Long-term
Fixed assets {note 6) 885 1,581
Deferred financing charges (note 13) 481 568
Goodwill 606 606
Acquired patents and licenses {note 7) 655 2,226
2,627 4,981
$ 11,461 $ 27,566
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable $ 555 $ 1,069
Accrued liabilities 2,460 3,019
3,015 4,088
Long-term
Secured convertible debentures (note 13) 11,002 10,212
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
Share capital (note 8}
Common shares 145,001 144,119
Equity portion of secured convertible debentures (note 13) 3,814 3.814
Stock options (note 8 (c)) 4,525 4,252
Contributed surplus {note 8 (b)) 7,665 6,733
Warrants 991 991
Deficit accumulated during development stage (164,552) (146,643)
(2,556) 13,266
$ 11,461 $ 27,566

See accompanying neles fo audited consolidated financial statements
Basis of Presentation (note 1}

Commitments and Guarantees (note 14)

Canada and United States Accounting Policy Differences (note 17)

On behalf of the Board:

LLORUS THERAPEUTICS INC,

%t FD

Director

Director




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS & DEFICIT

(amounts in Canadian 000's except for per common share data)

Years Ended May 31

Period
from inception
Sept. 5, 1986 to

2006 2005 2004 May 31, 2006

REVENUE $ 26 $ 6 $ 608 $ 706
EXPENSES
Cost of sales 3 1 28 87
Research and development (note 11} 10,237 14,394 26,785 110,475
General and administrative 4,334 5,348 4,915 47,475
Stock-based compensation {note 9} 1,205 1,475 - 6,750
Depreciation and amortization (note 6) 771 564 420 8,823
Operating expenses 16,550 21,782 32,148 173,610
Interest expense (note 13) 882 300 - 1,182
Accretion in carrying value of secured

convertible debentures (nate 13} 790 426 - 1,216
Amortization of deferred financing charges 87 84 - 171
Interest income (374) (524) (1,239) (13,921)
Loss for the period 17,909 22,062 30,301 164,552
Deficit, beginning of period 146,643 121,804 91,503 -
Impact of change in accounting for

stock-based compensation (note 2} - 2,777 - -
Deficit, beginning of period (as restated) 146,643 124 581 91,503 -
Deficit, end of period $164,552 $146,643 $121,804 $£164,552
Basic and diluted loss per common share $ 0.10 $ 0.13 $ 0.18
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding used in the calculation of

basic and diluted loss per share 173,523 172,112 171,628

See accompanying notes to audited consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH

{(amounts in Canadian 000's)

Years Ended May 31

FLOWS

Period
from inception
Sept. 5, 1986 to

2006 2005 2004 May 31, 2006
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the period $ (17,909 $ (22,062) $ (30,301} $(164,552)
Add items not requiring a current outlay of cash;
Stock-based compensation (note 9} 1,205 1,475 - 6,750
Interest expense (note 13) 882 300 - 1,182
Accretion in carrying value of secured
convertible debentures {note 13} 790 426 - 1,216
Amortization of deferred financing charges (naote 13) 87 84 - 171
Depreciation and amortization {note &) 2,342 2,260 2,123 20,729
Other - (38) 245 707
Net change in non-cash working capital
balances related te operations (note 12} (462) (1,166) (129} 1,692
Cash used in operating activities (13,065) (18,7213 (28,062) (132,205}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Maturity {purchase) of short-term investments, net 13,056 6,974 {1,438) (5.627)
Business acquisition, net of cash received - - ~ (539)
Acquired patents and licenses - - - (715)
Additions to fixed assets (75) {(599) (383} {6,049)
Cash proceeds on sale of fixed assets - - - 348
Cash provided by {(used in) investing activities 12,981 6,375 (1,821) (12,582}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of debentures, net - 12,948 - 12,948
Issuance of warrants, net - 991 4,537 37.405
Issuance of common shares - 112 25,512 97,371
Additions to deferred financing charges - - - {245}
Cash provided by financing activities - 14,051 30,049 147,479
{Decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents during the period (84) 1,705 166 2,692
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 2,776 1,071 905 -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 2892 $ 2,776 $ 1,071 $ 2,692

See accompanying notes o audited consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Years ended May 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004)
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Lerus Therapeutics Inc. (“Lorus” or “the Company”) is a biopharmaceutical company specializing in the research and development of pharmaceutical
products and technologies for the management of cancer. With products in various stages of evaluation, from pre-clinical through to Phase Il trials, Lorus
develops therapeutics that seek to manage cancer with efficacious low-toxicity compounds that improve patients' quality of life,

The Company has not earned substantial revenues from its drug candidates and is therefore considered to be in the development stage. The continuation ‘
of the Company's research and development activities is dependent upon the Company's ability te successfully finance its cash requirements through a

combination of equity financing and payments from strategic partners. The Company has no current sources of payments from strategic partners. In addition, ‘
the Company will need to repay or refinance the secured convertible debentures on their maturity should the holder not chose to convert the debentures into

common shares. There can be no assurance that additional funding will be available at all or on acceptable terms to permit {urther clinical development of the
Company's preducts or to repay the convertible debentures on maturity. If the Company is not able to raise additional funds, it may not be able to continue

as a going concern and realize its assets and pay its liabilities as they fall due. The financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if

the going concern assumption were not appropriate. If the going concern basis were nat appropriate for these financial statements, then adjustments would be
necessary in the carrying value of the assets and liabilities, the reported revenues and expenses and the balance sheet classifications used.

However, management believes that the Company’s current level of cash and short-term investments and the additional funds available upan the successful
closing of the subscription agreements, described in note 19 will be sufficient to execute the Company's current planned expenditures for the next twelve months,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lorus, its 80% owned subsidiary, NuChem Pharmaceuticals inc. {*NuChem”), and its wholly
owned subsidiary, GeneSense Technologies Inc. (“GeneSense”) which are all located in Canada. The results of operations for acquisitions are included

in these consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated on
consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada and
comply, in all material respects, with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, except as disclosed in note 17, “Canada and United
States Accounting Policy Differences.”

Revenue Recognition
Revenue inctudes product sales revenue, license revenue and royalty revenue.

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the Company's price to the
customer is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. The Company allows customers 1o return product within a specified peried of time
before and after its expiration date. Provisions for these returns are estimated based on historical return and exchange levels, and third-party data with respect
to inventory levels in the Company’s distribution channels.

License fees are comprised of initial fees and milestone payments derived from a worldwide exclusive license agreement. Nen-refundable license fees are
recognized when the Company has no further involvement or ohligation to perform under the arrangement, the fee is fixed and determinable and collection of
the amount is deemed probable. Future nonrefundable milestone payments receivable upon the achievement of third party performance are recognized upon
the achievement of specified milestones when the milestone payment is substantive in nature, achievement of the milestone was not reasonably assured at the
inception of the agreement and the Company has no further significant involvement or obligation to perform under the arrangement.

The Company earned royalties from its distributor during the years ended May 31, 2005 and 2004. Royalties from the distribution agreement are recognized .
when the amounts are reasonably determinable and collection is reasonably assured. In 2006 the distribution agreement was terminated and no royalties were |
earned during the year ended May 31, 2006. |

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers unrestricted cash on hand, in banks, in term deposits and in commercial paper with original maturities of three months or less as
cash and cash equivalents.
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Short-Term Investments
Lorus invests in high quality fixed income government and corporate instruments with low credit risk.

Short-term investments, which censist of fixed income securities with a maturity of mora than three months, are recorded at their accreted value as they are
held to maturity instruments. All investments held at year end approximate fair value, mature within one year and are denominated in Canadian dollars.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost iess accumutated depreciation and amortization. The Company records depreciaticn and amortization at rates which are
expected to charge operations with the cost of the assets over their estimated useful ives as follows:

Furniture and equipment  straight line over three to five years
Leasehold improvements straight line over the lease term

Research and Development

Research cests are charged to expense as incurred. Development costs, including the cost of drugs for use in clinical trials, are expensed as incurred unless they
meet the criteria under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for deferral and amortization. Nc development costs have been deferred to date.

Goodwill and Acquired Patents and Licenses

Intangible assets with finite lives acquired in a business combination or other transaction are amortized over their estimated useful lives which have been
assessed as SEVEN years.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired in the GeneSense business combination. Goodwill
acquired in a business combination is tested for impairment on an annual basis and at any other time if an event occurs or circumstances change that would
indicaie that impairment may exist. When the carrying value of a reporting unit’s goodwll exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to the excess.

The Company capitalized the cost of acquired patent and license assets cn the acquisitions of GeneSense and the NuChem compounds. The nature of this
asset is such that it is categorized as an intangible asset with a finite life. The carrying value of acquired research and development assets does not necessar-
ily reflect its present or future value. The amount recoverable is dependent upon the continued advancement of the drugs through research, clinical trials and
ultimately to commercialization. It is not possible to pradict the outcome of future research and development programs.

The Company has identified no impairment relating to goodwill and intangible assets for 2006 and 2005.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company periedically reviews the useful lives and the carrying values of its long-lived assets. The Company reviews for impairment in long-tived assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable, If the sum of the undiscounted expected
future cash flows expected to result from the use and eventuat disposition of an asset is less than its carrying amount, it 1s considered to be impaired. An
impairment loss is measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value, which is estimated as the expected future cash
flows discounted at a rate proportionate with the risks associated with the recovery of the asset.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has z steck-based compensation plan described in note 9. Prior to June 1, 2004, stock-based awards were accounted for using the intrinsic
method with the exception of options with contingent vesting criteria for which the settlement method was used. On June 1, 2004, the Company adopted the
fair value method of accounting for stock-based awards to emptloyees, officers and directors granted or modified after June 1, 2004, This method requires
the Company to expense, over the vesting period, the fair value of all employee stock-based awards granted or modified since June 1, 2002, The Company
applied this change retroactively, without restatement of prier periods. The impact to the financial statements arising from adoption of the {air value method
was an increase to the deficit and stock option balances presented in shareholders' equity (deficiency) of $2.8 million at June 1, 2004. Stock options and
warrants awarded to non-employees are accounted for using the fair value method and expensed as the service or product is received. Consideration paid on
the exercise of stock options and warrants is credited to capital stock. The fair value of performance-based opticns 1s recognized over the estimated period to
achievement of perfermance conditions, Fair value is determined using the Black-Schotes option pricing model.

The Company has a deferred share unit plan that provides diractors the cption of receiving payment for their services in the form of share units rather than
common shares or cash. Share units entitle the directer to elect to receive, on termination of their services to the Company, an equivalent number of cemmon
shares, or the cash equivalent of the market vaiue of the common shares at that tuture date. Lorus records an expense and a liability equal tc the market value
of the shares issued. The accumulated liability is adjusted for market fluciuations on a quarterly basis.

Shares issued under the Alternate Compensation Plan are accounted for using the fair value of the commcon shares on the day they are granted.
Investment Tax Credits

The Company is entitled to Canadian federal and provincial investment tax credits, which are earned as a percentage of eligible research and development
expenditures incurred in each taxation year. Investment tax credits are accounted for as a reduction of the related expenditure for items of a current nature and a
reduction of the related asset cost for items of a long-term nature, provided that the Company has reasonable assurance that the tax credits will be realized.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are reported using the asset and liability method. Under this method, future tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and operating
loss and research and development expenditure carryforwards. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantially enacted tax rates
expected to apply when the asset is realized or the liabitity is settled. The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income
in the period that enactment or substantive enactment occurs. A valuation altowance is reccrded for the portion of the future tax assets where the realization of
any value is uncertain for which management has deemed to be 100% of the assets available.

L.oss Per Share

Basic net loss per common share is calculated by dividing the net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
net 1oss per common share is calculated by dividing the net loss by the sum of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and the dilutive
common equivatent shares outstanding during the year. Common equivalent shares consist of the shares issuable upon exercise of stock options, warrants and
conversion of the convertible debentures calculated using the treasury stock method. Commen equivalent shares are not inciuded in the calculation of the
weighted average number of shares cutstanding for diluted net loss per commen share when the effect would be anti-dilutive.

Deferred Financing Charges

Deferred financing charges, comprised primarily of legal cests, represent costs related to the issuance of the Company's convertible debentures. Deferred
financing charges are amortized using the effective interest rate method over the five year term of the convertible debentures.

Segmented Information

The Company is organized and operates as one operating segment, the research, development, and commercialization of pharmaceuticals. Substantially all of
the Company’s identifiable assets as at May 31, 2006 and 2005 are located in Canada.

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are {ranslated into Canadian dollars at rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated
into Canadian dollars at the rates an the balance sheet dates. Gains or losses resulting from these transactions are accounted for in the loss for the period and
are not significant.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP") requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the finan-
cial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ irom those estimates. Significant
estimates include the valuation of the convertible debentures, the fair value of stock options granted and warrants issued and the useful lives of capital and
intangible assets.

Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of financia! statements in accerdance with Canadian GAAP reguires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

The Company has estimated the useful lives of all depreciable assets and the recoverability of praperty and equipment and acquired technology using
estimates of future cash flows and other measures of fair values. Significant changes in the assumptions with respect to future business plans could result in
impairment of property and equipment or acquired technology.

Recent Canadian Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adepted

Comprehensive Income and Equity—In January 2005, the CICA released new Handbook Section 1530, Comprehensive income, and Section 3251, Equity.
Section 1530 establishes standards for reporting comprehensive income. The section does not address issues of recognition or measurement for comprehen-
sive income and its components. Section 3251 establishes standards for the presentation of equity and changes in equity during the reporting period. The
requirements in this section are in addition to Section 1530.

Section 3855, Financial Instruments—Recognition and Measurement—Section 3855 establishes standards for the recognition and measurement of all tinan-
cial instruments, provides a characteristics-based definition: of a derivative instrument, provides criteria to be used to determine when a financial instrument
should be recognized, and provides criteria to be used to determine when a financial liability is considered te be extinguished.

Section 3865, Hedges—Section 3865 establishes standards for when and how hedge accounting may be applied. Hedge accounting is optional.

These three Sections are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2006. An entity adopting these Sections for a fiscal year beginning before
QOctober 1, 2006 must adopt all the Sections simultaneously.

We have not yet determined the impact, if any, of the adoption of these standards on our results frem operations or financial position.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These new accounting policies were adopted during the year ended May 31, 2006, For the new accounting policy adapted during the year ended May 31,
2005, refer to note 2 under the heading 'Stock-Based Compensation.” There were no new accounting policies adopted during the year ended May 31, 2004,

Variable interest entities

Effective June 1, 2005, the Company adopted the recommendations of CICA Handhook Accounting Guideline 15 (AcG-15), Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities, effective for fiscal years beginning on or after November 1, 2004. Variable interest entities (VIEs) refer to those entities that are subject to control
on a basis other than ownership of voting interests. AcG-15 provides guidance for identifying VIEs and criteria for determining which entity, it any, should
consolidate them. The adoption of AcG-15 did not have an effect an the financial position, resubts of operations or cash flows in the current period or the prier
period presented.

Financial instruments—disclosure and presentation

Effective June 1, 2005, the Company adopted the amended recommendations of CICA Handbook Section 3860, Financial Instruments—Disclosure and
Presentation, effective for fiscal years beginning on or after November 1, 2004, Section 3860 requires that certain cbligations that may be settled at the
issuer's option in cash ar the equivatent value by a variable number of the issuer's own equity instruments be presented as a liability. The Company has
determined that there is no impact on the financial statements resulting from the adoption of the amendments to Section 3860 either in the current period or
the prior period presented.

Accounting for convertible debt instruments

Qn Qctober 17, 2005 the CICA issued EIC 158, Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments appiicable to convertible debt instruments ssued subsequent
to the date of the EIC. EIC 158 discusses the accounting treatment of convertible debentures in which upon cenversion, the issuer is either required or has
the option to satisfy afl or part of the obligation in cash. The EIC discusses various accounting issues related to this type of convertible debt. The Company
has determined that there is no impact on the financial statements resulting from the adoption of EIC 158 either in the current period or the prior period
presented.

Section 3831, Non-monetary transactions

in June 2005, the CICA released a new Handbook Section 3831, Non-monetary Transactions, effective for all non-manetary transactions initiated in periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2006. This standard requires ali nen-menetary transactions to be measured at fair value unless they meet one of four very
specific criteria, Commercial substance replaces culmination of the earnings process as the test for fair value measurement, A transaction has commercial
substance if it causes an identifiable and measurable change in the ecocnomic circumstances of the entity. Commercial substance is a function of the cash
flows expected by the reporting entity. The Company has not entered into any non-monetary transactions and as such this section is not applicatle.

CORPORATE CHANGES

In Novemter 2005, as a means to conserve cash and refocus operations, the Company sczled back some activities related to the Virulizin® technology and
implemented a workforce reduction of approximately 39% or 22 employees.

In accordance with EIC 134 —Accounting for Severance and Termination Benefits, during the period ended November 30, 2005 the Company recorded
severance compensation expense for former employees of $557 thousand. Of this expense, $468 thousand is presented in the income statement as general
and administrative expense and $89 thousand as research and development expense. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at May 31, 2006 include
severance and compensation expense liabilities relating to the Company's November 2005 corporate changes of $154 thousand that are expected 1o be paid
by December 2006.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
As at May 31 (amounts 1n 000's)

2006
Less than Greater than Yield to
one year maturities one year maturities Total maturity
Fixed income government investments $ 2,838 $ - $ 2,838 3.55-3.64%
Corporate instruments 2,789 - 2,789 3.46-3.87%
Balance $ 5,627 $ - $ 5,627
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2005

Less than Greater than Yield to

one year maturities one year maturities Total maturity

Fixed income government investments $ 3,229 $ - $ 3,229 2.37%

Corporate instruments 15,454 - 15,454 1.95-2.71%
Balance $ 18,683 $ - $ 18,683

At May 31, 2006 and 2005, the carrying values of short term investments approximate their gucted market values. Shart term investments held at May 31,
2006 have varying maturities fram one to six months (2005 - one to six menths).

FIXED ASSETS
As at May 31 (amounts in 00Q’s)

2006
Accumulated Carrying
Cost Amortization Value
Furniture and equipment $ 2,650 $ 2,136 $ 514
Leasehold improvements 908 537 371
Balance $ 3,558 $ 2,673 $ 885
2005
Accumulated Carrying
Cost Amartization Value
Furniture and equipment $ 2,575 $ 1,517 $ 1,058
Leasehold improvements 908 385 523
Balance ¢ 3,483 $ 1902 $ 1,581

During the year ended May 31, 2005, a write-down of $75,000 was taken on certain furniture and equipment whose carrying value was deemed to be unre-
coverable and in excess of the estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected from the use and residual value of the underlying assets. The impairment
charge was reported in the consolidated statements of less and deficit in depreciation and amortization.

During the year ended May 31, 2006, a write-down of $250,000 was taken on certain furniture and equipment whose carrying value was deemed to be
unrecoverable and in excess of the estimated fair value of the residual value of the underlying assets. The impairment charge was reperted in the consolidated
statements of loss and deficit in depreciation and amortization.

ACQUIRED PATENTS AND LICENSES

As at May 31 (amounts in 000's)

2006 2005
Cost $ 12,228 $ 12,228
Accumulated amortization (11,573) (10,002)
Balance $ 655 $ 2,226

Amartizaticn of $1.6 million (2005 - $1.7 million, 2004 — $1.7 million} has been included in the research and development expense reported in the
consolidated statements of loss and deficit.
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8.

SHARE CAPITAL

{a) Continuity of Common Shares and Warrants
Commeon Shares Warrants
{amounts and units in 000’s) Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at May 31, 2003 145,285 $119,438 - % -
Share issuance 26,220 24,121 13,110 4,325
Exercise of stock options 289 171 - -
Other - (60) - -
Balance at May 31, 2004 171,794 143,670 13,110 4,325
Interest payment {note 13) 421 300 - -
Issuance under ACP (note 8 (d}} 50 37
Exercise of stock options 276 112 - -
Convertible debentures (note 13) - - 3,000 991
Warrants expired unexercised (note 8 (el) - - (13,110} (4,325)
Balance at May 31, 2005 172,541 $144.119 3,000 $ 991
Interest payment (note 13) 2,153 B8z - -
Balance at May 31, 2006 174,694 $145,001 3,000 % 991
(b} Contributed Surplus
As at May 31 (amounts in 000's) 2006 2005 2004
Beginning of year $ 6,733 1,003 $ 1,003
Forfeiture of stock opticns 932 - -
Expiry of warrants (rote & (e)) - 4,325 -
Expiry of compensation options (rote 8 (e)) - 1,405 -
End of year $ 7.665 6,733 $ 1,003
(c) Continuity of Stock Options
As at May 31 (amounts in 000's) 2006 2005 2004
Beginning of year $ 4,252 2,777 $ -
Stock option expense 1,205 1,475 -
Forfeiture of stock options (932) - -
End of year $ 4,525 4,252 % -
(d) Alternate Compensation Plans ("ACP")
In 2000, the Company established a compensation plan for directors and officers, which allows the Company, in certain circumstances, to issue commaon
shares to pay directors' fees or performance bonuses of officers in lieu of cash. The number of common shares reserved for issuance under this plan is
2,500,000. Since inception, 121,000 shares have been issued under this plan. For the year ended May 31, 2006, no shares were issued under this plan
{2005 - 50,000, 2004 - nil).
The Company also established a deferred share unit plan that provides directors the option of receiving payment for their services in the form of share units
rather than commen shares or cash. Share units entitle the director to elect to receive, on termination of their services to the Company, an equivalent number cf
cemmon shares, or the cash equivalent of the market value of the coammen shares at that future date. The share units are granted based on the market value of
the comman shares on the date of issue. As at May 31, 2006, 168,581 deferred share units have been issued (2005 - 99,708, 2004 - 68,183), with a cash
value of $64 thousand (2005 - $71 thousand, 2004 — $57 thousand) being recorded in accrued liabilities,
{e) Share Issuance

On June 11, 2003, the Company raised gross proceeds of $32.8 million by way of a public offering of 26,220,000 units at a price of $1.25 per umit, Each unit
consists of one comman share and one-half of one purchase warrant. Each whole warrant entitled the holder to purchase a common share at a price of $1.75 at

any time on or before December 10, 2004, In addition, the Company issued 1,835,400 compensation options with a fair value of $1.5 million for services in
connection with the completion of the offering. Each compensation option entitled the holder to acquire one unit far $1.27 at any time on or before December 10,
2004. The Company incurred expenses of $4.4 mitlion for the issuance, which include the non-cash charge of $1.5 million being the fair value of the compensa-
tion option. The Company allocated $4.3 million of the net proceeds to the warrants, $1.4 million to the compensation option and $24.1 million to share capital.
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(f}

(a)

On December 10, 2004 the warrants and aptions described abave expired without being exercised. The expiry of these warrants and options had no impact on
earnings or the net balance of shareholders’ equity.

Employee share purchase plan {"ESPP")

The Company's ESPP was established January 1, 2005. The purpose of the ESPP is to assist the Company in retaining the services of its employees, to
secure and retain the services of new employees and to provide incentives for such persons to exert maximum efforts for the success of the Company. The
ESPP provides a means by which employees of the Company and its affiliates may purchase commaon stock of the company at a discount through accumulated
payrall deducticns. Generally, each offering is of three months' duration with purchases occurring every month. Participants may authorize payroll deductions
of up to 15% of their base compensation for the purchase of common stock under the ESPP. For the year ended May 31, 2006, a total of 293,000 (2005

~ 106,000) common shares has been purchased under the ESPP, and Lorus has recognized an expense of $46 thousand (2005 - $16 thousand) related to
this plan in the year-end financial statements.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Stock Option Plan

Under the Company's stock option plan, options may be granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company to purchase up to
25,920,797 common shares. Options are granted at the fair market value of the common shares on the date immediately preceding the date of the grant.
Options vest at various rates (immediate to three years) and have a term of ten years. Stock opticn transactions for the three years ended May 31, 2006 are
summarized as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Options Weighted average Options Weighted average Options Weighted average
(000's) exercise price {000’s) exercise price (000's) exercise price
Qutstanding at beginning of year 8,035 $ 096 6,372 $ 1.05 5,378 $ 1.05
Granted 6,721 $ 0.58 3,173 $ 077 2,629 $ 116
Exercised - - {276) $ 0.40 (289) $ 0.59
Forfeited {4,456) $ 0.83 (1,234} $ 1.05 (1,346) $1.29
Qutstanding at end of year 10,300 $ 0.70 8.035 $ 0.96 6,372 $ 1.05
Exercisable at end of year 6,714 $ 079 4,728 $ 1.04 3,542 $ 1.01

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at May 31, 2006:

Options outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted average

Range of Options remaining contractual Weighted average Options Weighted average
exercise prices cutstanding (0C0's) life (years) exercise price exercisable (000's) exercise price
$0.26 to $0.49 3.945 7.79 $0.30 1,956 $0.31
$0.50 to $0.99 4,487 7.63 $0.76 3,002 $0.73
$1.00t0 $1.99 1,580 6.90 $1.23 1,468 $1.23
$2.00 to $2.50 288 4.38 $2.46 288 $2.46

10,300 7.44 $0.70 6,714 $0.79
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For the year ended May 31, 2006 stock-based compensation expense of $1.2 million (2005 - $1.5 million) was recognized, representing the amortization
applicable to the current period of the estimated fair value of options granted since June 1, 2002.

In the year ended May 31, 2006, employees of the Company (excluding Directors and Officers) were given the opportunity to choose between keeping 100%
of their existing options at the existing exercise price and forfeiting 50% of the options held in exchange far having the remaining 50% of the exercise price
of the options re-priced to $0.30 per share. Employees holding 2,290,000 stock options opted for re-pricing their options, resulting in the amendment of the
exercise price of 1,145,000 stock options and the forfeiture of 1,145,000 stock options. This re-pricing resulted in additional compensation expense of $76
thousand representing the incremental value conveyed to helders of the optiens as a result of reducing the exercise price, of which $52 thousand has been
included in the stock-based compensation expense during the year ended May 31, 2006. The balance additional compensation expense of $24 thousand will
be recognized as the amended options vest. This increased expense is offset by $113 thousand representing amounts previously expensed on unvested stock
options due to the forfeiture of 1,145,000 stock options, which was reversed from the stock-based compensation expense for the year ended May 31, 2006.

For the year ended May 31, 2005 additional stock-based compensation expense of $208 thousand was recorded due to the shareholder approved amendment
of the 1993 Stock Option Plan to extend the life of options from 5 years to 10 years. This additiona! expense represented the incremental value conveyed to
holders of the aptions as a result of extending the life of the options.
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For the year ended May 31, 2006, stock opticn expense of $1.2 million was a'located $300 thousand to research and development and $900 thousand to
general and administrative expense,

The following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options granted during the period:

2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rate 2.25-4.00% 2.25-3.00% 2.25-3.05%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 70-81% 70-90% 89%
Expected life of options 2.5-5 years 1-5 years 5 years
Weighted average fair value of options granted or modified in the year $0.33 $0.54 $0.74

(b}

10.

The Company has assumed no forfeiture rate as adjustments for actual forfeitures are made n the year they occur,
Pro forma information—Stock-based compensation
In periods prior to June 1, 2002, the Company recognized no compensation expense when stock options were granted to employees.

For the year ended May 31, 2006, the pro forma compensation charge for stock options granted prior to June 1, 2002 was nil {2005 - $27,000,
2004 - $551,000}. These amounts have no impact on {oss per share figures.

tNCOME TAXES

Income tax recoveries attributable to losses from operations differ from the amounts computed by applying the combined Canadian federal and provincial
income tax rates to pretax income from operaticns primarily as a result of the provision of a valuation allowance on net future income tax benefits.

Significant components of the Company’s future tax assets are as follows:

As at May 31 (amounts in 000's) 2006 2005
Non-capital loss carryforwards $ 25,174 $ 23081
Research and development expenditures 22,089 20,436
Book over tax depreciation 1,995 1,529
Other 738 1,089
Future tax assets 49,996 46,135
Valuation allowance (49,996) (46,135)

$ - $ -

In assessing the realizable benelit from future tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion ¢r all of the future tax
assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of future tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers projected future taxable income, uncertainties related to the industry in which the
Company operates and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Due to the Company’s stage of development and operations, and uncertainties
retated to the industiry in which the Company operates, the tax benefit of the above amounts has been completely offset by a valuation allowance.

The Campany has undeducted research ang development expenditures, totaling $63.1 million for federal purposes and $58.1 millian for provincial purposes
and these can be carried forward indefinitely. In addition the Company has non-capital loss carryforwards of $69.1 million for federal purposes and $70.1
million for provincial purposes. To the extent that the non-capital loss carryforwards are not used, they expire as follows:

Year of expiry (amounts in G00's) Non-capital losses
2007 $ 4,626
2008 4,985
2009 6,658
2010 8,660
2011 1,131
2012 -
2013 -
2014 20,126
2015 13,340
2016 9,565

$ 69,091

LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC,
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Incame Tax Rate Reconciliation

{amounts in 000's) 2006 2005
Recovery of income taxes based on statutory rates $ (6,469) $ (7971
Expiry of losses 1,252 780
Change in valuation allowance 3,861 6,124
Non deductible accretion and stock-based compensation expense 721 687
Change in enacted tax rates - -
Other 635 380

$ - $ -

1t.

{(a)

{b)

{c}

Subsequent to year-end, federa! legislation was enacted to reduce tax rates applicable to future periods and extend the loss carryforward period. Had this
legislation been enacted prior to year-end the value of the future tax assets and the corresponding valuation allowance would have decreased to $45.5 million.
In addition, the losses currently expiring in 2016 would expire in 2026.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS
The Company's cancer drug research and development programs focus primarily on the following technology platforms:
Immunotherapy

This clinical approach stimulates the body's natural defenses against cancer. The Company’s lead immunatherapeutic drug Virulizin® completed a global
Phase Ill clinical trial for the treatment of pancreatic cancer during 2005.

Antisense

Antisense drugs are genetic molecules that inhibit the production of disease-causing proteins. GTI-2040 and GTI-2501, the Company's lead antisense drugs,
have shown preclinical anticancer activity across a broad range of cancers and are currentty in various phase If trials.

Small Motecules

Anticancer activity was discovered with an antifungal agent Clotrimazole {(“CLT"}. Based on the structural feature found te be responsible for the anticancer
effect of CLT, chemical analogues of CLT have been designed and tested. Our library of clotrimazole anatogues has been licensed to Cyclacel Limited, as
described in note 16.

Lorus scientists discovered novel low molecular weight compounds with anticanicer and anti-bacterial activity in pre-clinical investigations. Of particular irter-
est were compounds that inhibit the growth of human tumer cell lines, including hepatocellular carcinoma, pancreatic carcinoma, ovarian carcinoma, breast
adenocarcingma and metastatic melanoma.

In addition to the ahove, Lorus has a number of other technologies under pre-clinical development, including a tumor suppressor or gene therapy approach to
inhibiting the growth of tumors.

Period
from inception
Rescarch and Development Years Ended May 31 Sept. 5, 1986 to
{amoyats i 000s) 2006 2005 2004 May 31, 2006
Immunatherapy
Expensed $ 6,202 $ 11,891 $ 19944 $ 74,958
Acquired - - - -
Antisense
Expensed 2,550 2,384 6,666 29,809
Acquired - - - 11,000
Small Molecules
Expensed 1,485 119 175 5,708
Acquired - - - 1,228
Total expensed $ 10,237 $ 14,354 $ 26,785 $ 110,475
Total acquired $ - $ - $ - $ 12,228

38

Amortization of the acquired patents and licenses is included in the ‘Expensed’ line of the table.
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12. SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Changes in non-cash working capital balances for each of the periods ended are summarized as follows:

Period I
from inception
Sept. 5, 1986 to

Years ended May 3! {amounts n 000's) 2006 2005 2004 May 31, 2006
{Increase) decrease |
Prepaid expenses and other assets $ 611 $ 571 $ (593} $ 61 |
Increase (decrease)
Accounts payable {514) (1,360) 1,111 {689)
Accrued liabilities (559) {377) (647} 2,220

$ (462) $(1,166) $ (129 $ 1,592

During the year ended May 31, 2006, the Company received interest of $627 thousand (2005 -$679 thousand, 2004 - $1.2 million).

13. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

On October 6, 2004, the Company entered into a Subscription Agreement (the "Agreement”) to issue an aggregate of $15.0 million of secured convertible
debentures (the “debentures”). The debentures are secured by a first charge over all of the assets of the Company.

The Company received $4.4 million on October 6, 2004 (representing a $5.0 million debenture less an investor fee representing 4% of the $15.0 million

to be received under the Agreement), and $5.0 million on each of January 14 and April 15, 2005. All debeniures issued under this Agreement are due on
October 6, 2009 and are subject to interest payable monthly at a rate of prime +1% until such time as the Company’s share price reaches $1.75 for 60
consecutive trading days, at which time, interest will no longer be charged. Interest is payable in common shares of Lorus until Lorus' shares trade at a price
of $1.00 or more atter which interest will be payable in cash or common shares at the option of the debenture holder. Commeon shares issued in payment

of interest will be issued at a price equal to the weighted average trading price of such shares for the ten trading days immediatety preceding their issue in
respect of each interest payment. For the year ended May 31, 2006, the Cempany has issued 2,153,000 (2005 - 421 thousand) shares in settlement of
$882 thousand {2005 - $300 thousand) in interest,

The $15.0 million principal amount of debentures issued on October &, 2004, January 14 and April 15, 2005 is convertible at the halder’s option at any time
into common shares of the Company with a conversion price per share of $1.00.

With the issuance of each $5.0 million debenture, the Company issued to the debt holder from escrow 1 million purchase warrants expiring October 6, 2009

to buy common shares of the Company at a price per share equal to $1.00.

The convertible debentures contain both a liability and an equity element, represented by the conversion option, and therefore, under Canadian GAAP these
two elements must be split and classified separately as debt and equity. In addition, as noted above, the debenture holder received 1 million purchase
warrants on the issuance of each tranche of convertible debt. The Company allocated the total proceeds received from the issuance of the convertible
debentures to these three elements based on their relative fair vaiues. The fair value of the purchase warrants has been determined based on an option-pricing
model. The fair value of the debt has been based on the discounted cash flows using an estimated cost of borrowing of 15% to represent an estimate of what
the Company may borrow secured debt without a conversion option or purchase warrani. The convertible debentures conversion option was valued using a
trinomial model. The resulting allocation based on relative fair values resulted in the allocation of $2.8 million to the debt instrument, $4.1 million to the con-
version option and $1.1 million to the purchase warrants. The financing fees totaling $1.1 million related to the issuance of the convertible debentures have
been allocated pro rata between deferred financing charges of $652 thousand, against the equity portian of the convertible debentures of $322 thousand

and against the purchase warrants of $87 thousand. This allocation resulted in net amounts allecated teo the equity portion of the canvertible debentures

and warrants of $3.8 million and $991 thousand respectively. The financing charges are being amortized over the five-year life of the convertible debentures
agreement. For the year ended May 31, 2006, the Company has recognized $87 thousand (2005 - $84 thousand) in amortization expense. This amortization
expense has reduced the value of the deferred financing charges to $481 thousand at May 31, 2006 (2005 - $568 thousand).

Each reporting pericd, the Company is required to accrete the carrying value of the convertible debentures such that at maturity on Octeber 6, 2009, the
carrying value of the debentures will be their face value of $15.0 million. For the year ended May 31, 2006, the Company has recognized $790 thousand
(2005 - $426 thousand) in accretion expense. This accretion expense has increased the carrying value of the convertible debentures from $9.8 mitlion to
$11.0 million at May 31, 2006 (2005 - $10.2 million).

The lender has the opticn to demand repayment in the event cf default, including the failure to maintain certain subjective covenants, representations and
warranties. Management assesses on a guarterly basis whether or not events during the quarter could be considered an event of default, This assessment was
performed and management believes that there has not been an event of default and that, 2t May 31, 2006; the term of the debt remains unchanged.

At the end of the second quarter of fiscal 2008, subject to the completion of a tax assisted financing transaction and based on mutually agreed upan

terms with the holder, it had been the Company's intent to repay the debentures by October 1, 2006. However, during the third quarter of fiscal 2006, the
conditions precedent of the proposed tax assisted financing were not met and as such the transaction did not close and the Company's agreement with the
debenture holder to repay the debentures was terminated. As such the debentures have been recorded as a long-term liability with the original due date of
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i4.

(a)

{b)

(c)

15.

16.

17.

40

October 6, 2009. The investor paid Lorus $100 thousand to help cover the costs incurred as part of the incomplete transaction. This $100 thousand has
been recorded as a reduction in professional fee expense.

COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES
Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered into operating leases for premises under which it is obligated to make minimum annual payments of approximately $139 thousand
in 2007, $118 thousand in 2008 and $8 thousand in 2009.

During the year ended May 31, 2006, operating lease expenses were $130 thousand (2005 - $136 thousand, 2004 — $141 thousand).
Other contractual commitments

In December 1997, the Cempany acquired certain patent rights and a sub-license to develep and commercialize the anticancer application of certain
compounds in exchange for:

{i) A 20% share interest in NuChem;
{ii) A payment of US $350 thousand in shares of Lorus, and
{iii} Upto US $3.5 million in cash.

To date, the Company has made cash payments of US $500 thousand. The remaining balance of up to US $3.0 million remains payable upon the achieve-
ment of certain milestones based on the commencement and completion of clinical trials. Additional amounts paid will be classified as acquired patents and
licenses and will be amortized over the estimated useful life of the licensed asset.

The Company holds an exclusive world-wide license from the University of Manitoba (the “University"} and Cancer Care Manitoba (“CCM") to certain patent
rights to develop and sublicense certain oligonucleotide technologies. In consideration for the exclusive license of the patent rights, the University and CCM
are entitled to an aggregate of 1.67% of the net sales received by the Company from the sale of products or processes derived from the patent rights and
1.67% of all monies received by the Campany from sublicenses of the patent rights. Any and all improvements to any of the patent rights derived in whole or
in part by the Company after the date of the license agreement, being June 20, 1997, are not included within the scope of the agreement and do not trigger
any payment of royalties. To date, the Company has not paid any royalties pursuant to the license agreement.

Guarantees

The Company entered inte various contracts, whereby contractors perform certain services for the Company. The Company indemnifies the centractors against
costs, charges and expenses in respect of legal actions or proceedings against the contractors in their capacity of servicing the Company. The maximum
amounts payable from these guarantees cannot be reasonably estimated. Historically, the Company has not made significant payments related to these
guarantees,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, amounts receivable, other assets, accounts payable and accrued liabilities ap-
proximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about the financial instrument. These
estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Financial instruments potentially exposing the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents and short-term investments.
The Company mitigates this risk by investing in high grade fixed income securities.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk due to the convertible debentures that require interest payments at a variable rate of interest.

The fair value of the convertible debentures at May 31, 2006 is $13.8 million.

REVENUE

During the year ended May 31, 2004, the Company recorded license revenue of $546 thousand in connection with a worldwide exclusive license agreement
entered into with Cyclacel Limited in the United Kingdorn for the out-licensing of the Company's small molecule program. Additional license fees of up to
$11.6 million may be earned if Cyclacel achieves certain defined research and development milestenes. No such milestones were achieved during the year
ended May 31, 2006.

CANADA AND UNITED STATES ACCOUNTING POLICY DIFFERENCES

These consolidated financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP which differ in some respects from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (*US GAAP"). The following recenciliation identifies material differences in the Company's consolidated statement of
operations and deficit and consolidated balance sheets.
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(a)

Consolidated statements of loss and deficit

Years ended May 31,

2006 2005 2004
Loss per Canadian GAAP (17,909) (22,062) (30,301)
Accretion of cenvertible debentures (1) 480 329 -
Amortization of debt issue costs (i) (108) (40} -
Stock compensaticn expense fi1) 1,149 1.475 -
Loss and comprehensive loss per US GAAP (16,388) {20,298) (30,301
Basic and diluted loss per share per US GAAP $ (0.09) $ (0.12) $ (018)

(b)

Under US GAAP, the number of weighted average common shares outstanding for basic and diluted loss per share are the same as under Canadian GAAP.

Consolidated balance sheets:

May 31, 2006

Adjustments

Canadian Convertible Stock

GAAP Debentures {i) Options (i} US GAAP
Deferred financing charges 481 164 - 645
Secured convertible debentures (11,002) (3,260) - (14,262)
Equity portion of secured convertible debentures (3,814) 3,814 - -
Stock options (4,525) - 41,525 -
Cantributed surplus/Additional paid in capital {(APIC) (7,665) (1,048) 876 (7,837}
Warrants (991) 991 - -
Deficit accumulated during the development stage 164,552 {661) (5,401} 158,490

May 31, 2005
Adjustments
Canadian Convertible Stock

GAAP Debentures ) Options (i} US GAAP
Deferred financing charges 568 272 - 840
Secured convertible debentures (10,212) (3,740) - (13,952)
Equity portion of secured convertible debentures (3,814) 3,814 - -
Stock options (4,252) - 4,252 —
Contributed surplus/Additional paid in capital (APIC} (6,733) (1,048) - (7,781}
Warrants (991) 991 - -
Deficit accumulated during the development stage 146,643 (28%9) {4,252) 142,102

(i

Converfible debentures

Under Canadian GAAF, the conversion option embedded in the convertible debentures is presented separately as a compenent of shareholders’ equity. Under

US GAAPF, the embedded conversion option is net subject to bifurcation and is thus presented as & liability along with the balance of the convertible deben-
tures. Under US GAAP, Emerging Issues Task Force No,0C-19 and APB Opinion No. 14, the fair value of warrants issued in connection with the convertible

debentures financing would be recorded as a reduction to the proceeds from the issuance of convertible debentures, with the cffset to additional paid-in
capital. The warrants have been presented as a separate component of sharehelders' equity for Canadian GAAP purposes. Under US GAAP the Company
has allocated the total proceeds received from the issuance of the convertible debentures to the debt and warrant portions based an their relative fair values.
The fair value of the purchase warrants has been determined based on an option-pricing model. The resulting allocation based on relative fair values resuited
in the aliocation of $13.9 million to the debt instrument and $1.1 million to the purchase warrants, The financing fees totaling $1.1 million related to the
issuance of the convertible debentures have been allocated pro rata between deferred financing charges of $964 thousand and against the purchase warrants
of $97 thousand. This allocation resulted in the net amount atlocated to the warrants of $1.0 million. The financing charges are being amortized over the

five-year life of the convertible debentures agreement.

Each reporting period, the Company is required to accrete the carrying value of the convertible debentures such that at maturity on October 6, 2009, the carrying
value of the debentures will be their face value of $15.0 million. To date, the Company has recognized $407 thousand in accretion expense. This accretion
expense has increased the value of the convertible debentures from $13.9 miliion to $14.3 million at May 31, 20086.
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(i)

Stock-based compensation

Effective June 1, 2004, the Company adopted the fair value based method of accounting fer employee stock options granted on or after June 1, 2002,
retroactively without restatement as allowed under the transitional provisions of CICA Handbook Section 3870. As a result, the opening balances of deficit and
stock options were increased by $2.8 million at June 1, 2004. During 2006, the Company recorded stock compensation expense in the censclidated financial
statements, representing the amortization applicable to the current year at the estimated fair value of stock options granted since June 1, 2002.

During 2006, the Company recorded steck compensation expense of $1.2 million {2005 -~ $1.5 millicn) in the consolidated statemeant of operations,
representing the amortization applicable to the current year at the estimated fair value cf options granted since June 1, 2002; and an offsetting adjustment to
stock options of $1.2 million in the consotidated balance sheets. No similar adjustments are required under US GAAP as the Company has elected to continue
measuring compensation expense, as permitted under SFAS No. 123, using the intrinsic value based method of accounting for stock options. Under this
methed, compensation is the excess, if any, of the quoted market value of the stock at the date of the grant over the amount an empioyee must pay to acquire
the stock. Election of this method requires pro-forma disclosure of compensation expense as if the fair value methed has been applied for awards granted in
fiscal periods after December 15, 1994.

The Company grants performance based stock options as a compensation tool. Under Canadian GAAP, the accounting treatment of these options is consistent
with all other employee stock options. Under US GAAP, the cption is treated as a variable award and is revalued, using the intrinsic value method of account-
ing, at the end of each reporting period until the final measurement date. At each reporting date, compensation cost is measured based on an estimate of the
number of options that will vest considering the performance criteria and the difference between the market price of the underlying stock and the exercise
price at such dates. The compensation cost is being recognized over the estimated performance period. For the year ended May 31, 2006 the Company
recorded stock-based compensation expense of $20 thousand under US GAAP for performance-based options.

During 2006, employees of the Company (excluding Directors and Officers) were given the opportunity to choose between keeping 100% of their existing
opticns at the existing exercise price and ferfeiting 50% of the optiens held in exchange for having the remaining 50% of the exercise price of the options
re-priced to $0.30 per share. Employees holding 2,290,000 stock options opted for re-pricing their options, resuiting in the amendment of the exercise price
of 1,145,000 stock options and the forfeiture of 1,145,000 stock options. Under Canadian GAAP the accounting treatment of these options requires that any
incremental value resulting from the amendment be determined and recognized over the remaining vesting period. Under US GAAP, the amended cptions are
treated as a variable award and are revalued, using the intrinsic value method of accounting at the end of each reporting period until the date the options are
exercised, forfeited or expired unexercised. The Company recorded stock-based compensation of $36 thousand under US GAAP related to these amended
stock options.

Prior to the adeption of CICA Handbook Section 3870, Lorus accounted for performance based stock options using the intrinsic value methed, and a recovery
of $43,000 was included in net income in 2004 related to these options.

The table below presents the pro-forma disclosures required under US GAAP:

2006 2005 2004

Net loss to commaon shareholders—US GAAP (16,388) (20,298) {30,301)
Compensation expense under SFAS 123 (1,149) (1,475) (1,623)

Pro-forma net {oss to commaon shareholders—US GAAP (17,537) (21,773) (31,224)

Pro-forma basic and diluted loss per share—US GAAP (0.10) {0.13) (0.19)

()

(d}

42

Consolidated statements of cash flows
There are no differences between Canadian and US GAAP that impact the consclidated statements of cash fiows.
Income taxes

Under Canadian GAAP, investment tax credits and other research and development credits are deducted from research and development expense for items
of a current nature, and deducted from property and equipment for items of a capital nature. Under US GAAP, these tax credits would be reclassified as a
reduction of income tax expense. The impact would be higher research and development expense and an income tax recovery of $205 thousand for the year
ended May 31, 2006 (2005 - $400 thousand, 2004 - $180 thousand) with no net impact to net income or earnings per share.
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{e)

(N

New accounting pronouncements not yet adopted

(i)

(i)

{iii}

In December 2004, the FASB revised S$FAS No. 123 to require companies to recognize n the income statement the grant-date fair value of stock options
and other equity based compensation issued to employees, but expressed no preference for a type of valuation model (SFAS 123R). The way an award
is classified will affect the measurement of compensation cost. Liability-classified awards are re-measured to fair value at each balance sheet date until
the award is settled. Equity-classified awards are measured at grant-date fair value and the grant-date fair vaiue is recognized over the requisite service
period. Such awards are not subsequently re-measured.

In April 2005, the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (SAB 107) to provide additional guidance
regarding the application of SFAS 123R. SAB 107 permits registrants to choose an appropriate valuation technique or model to estimate the fair value
of share aptions, assuming consistent application, and provides guidance for the development of assumptions used in the valuation process. Based upon
SEC rules issued in April 2005, SFAS 123R is eifective for fiscal years that begin after June 15, 2005 and will be adopted by the Company effective
June 1, 2006. Additionally, SAB 107 discusses disclosures to be made under “Management's Biscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Resuits of Operations” in registrants’ periodic reports. The Company has not yet determined the effect of this new standard on its consolidated financial
position and results of operations.

In December 2004, FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard 153: Exchanges of Nonmoenetary Assels as an amendment of APB Opinion No. 29. The
guidance in APB Qpinion No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions, is based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be
measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged. The guidance in that Opinion, however, included certain exceptions to that principle. This
Statement amends Qpinion 29 ta eliminate the exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general excep-
tion for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. Nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash
flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. This statement is effective for years beginning after june 15, 2005,
This anncuncement will not have any impact to the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections (SFAS 154), which replaces APB No. 20, Accounting Changes
and SFAS No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statemenis—An Amendment of APB Opinion No, 28. SFAS 154 provides guidance
on the accounting for and reporting of accounting changes and error corrections. it establishes retrospective application, on the latest practicable date,
as the required method for reporting a change in accounting principle and the reporting of a correction of an error. SFAS 154 is effective for accounting
changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005, Management believes that the adoption of this statement will
not have a material effect on the Company's conselidated financial condition or resuits of operations.

Consolidated statement of shareholders equity (deficiency) for the period from June 1, 1998 to May 31, 2006:

Number of Shares Contributed

(000’s) Amount Surplus/APIC Deficit Total
Balance May 31, 1998 36,785 $ 37,180 $ 667 $ (32,946) $ 4,901
Exercise of special warrants 5,333 1.004 (1,217} - (213)
Exercise of stock cptions 46 48 - - 48
Issue of warrants - - 1,217 - 1,217
Issue of special warrants - - 213 - 213
Other issuances 583 379 - - 379
Deficit - - - (4.623) (4,623)
Balance May 31, 1999 42,747 38,611 $ 880 $ (37,569) $ 1,922
Exercise of warrants 12,591 7,546 (534) - 7012
Issuance of special and purchase warrants - - 8,853 - 8.853
Issuance of public offering 15,333 41,952 650 - 42611
Issued on acquisition 36,050 14,000 - - 14,000
Exercise of units 893 1,821 (321) - 1,500
Issuance under alternate compensation plan 18 15 - - 15
Exercise of special warrants 30,303 8,438 (8.438) - -
Exercise of stock options 1,730 1,113 - - 1,113
Stock-based compensation - 869 - - B6S
Deficit - - - (8,599} (8,599}
Balance May 31, 2000 139,665 114,365 $ 1,099 $ (46,168) $ 69,296
Exercise of warrants 168 93 {25) - 68
Issuance under alternate compensation plan 28 49 - - 49
Exercise of stock options 2,550 1,866 - - 1,866
Stock-based compensaticn - 351 - - 351
Deficit - 82 - (15,213) {15,131}
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Consolidated statement of shareholders equity (deficiency) for the period from June 1, 1998 to May 31, 2006 (continued)

Balance May 31, 2001 142,411 % 116,806 % 1,074 $ (61,381) $ 56,499
Exercise of compensation warrants 476 265 (71) - 194
Exercise of stock aptions 1,525 1,194 - - 1,194
Stock-based compensation - (100} - - (100}
Deficit - - - (13,488) (13,488
Balance May 31, 2002 144,412 $ 118,165 $ 1,003 % {74,869} $ 44,299
Exercise of stock options 873 715 - - 715
Stock-based compensation - 558 - - 568
Deficit - - - {16,634) (16.634)
Balance May 31, 2003 145,285 $ 119,438 $ 1,003 $ (91,503) $ 28,938
Share issuance 26,220 24121 4,325 - 28,446
Exercise of stock options 289 171 - - 171
Stock-based compensation - (88) - - (88)
Cther issuances - 28 - - 28
Deficit - - - {30,300 (30,301
Balance May 31, 2004 171,794 $ 143,670 $ 5,328 $ (121,804} $ 27194
Interest payment 421 300 - - 300
Exercise of stock options 276 112 - - 112
Expiry of compensation options - - 1,405 - 1,405
Issuance under alternate compensation plan 50 37 - - 37
issuance of warrants - - 1,048 - 1,048
Deficit - - - {20,298) (20,298)
Balance May 31, 2005 172,541 $ 144,119 $ 7,781 $ (142,102) $ 9,798
Interest payment 2,153 882 - - 882
Stock-based compensation - - 56 - 56
Deficit - - - {16,388) (16,388)
Balance May 31, 2006 174,694 $ 145,001 $ 7,837 $ (158,450} $ (5,652)

18,

19.

(a)

(b)
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COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the comparative figures have been rectassified to conform to the current year's method of presentation.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 13, 2006 Lorus entered into an agreement with HighTech Beteiligungen GmbH & Co. KG (HighTech) to issue 28.8 million commen shares at $0.36
per share for gross proceeds of $10.4 million. The subscription price represents a premium of 7.5% over the closing price of the common shares on the
Toronte Stock Exchange on July 13, 2006.

The closing of the transaction is subject to certain conditions, including the approval of the Toronto Stock Exchange and the American Stock Exchange and the
filing and clearance of a prospectus in Ontario qualifying the issuance of the common shares. The transaction is required to close before September 30, 2006.

In connection with the transaction, HighTech will receive demand registration rights that will enable HighTech to request the registration or qualification of the
common shares for resale in the United States and Canada, subject to certain restrictions. These demand registration rights will expire on June 30, 2012.

In addition, HighTech will have the right to nominate one nomineg for the board of directors of Lorus or, if it does not have a nominee, it will have the right to
appoint an cbserver to the board.

Subsequent to the transaction HighTech will own approximately 14.2% of the issued and outstanding common shares of Lorus. Had this transaction closed on
June 1, 2005 it would have had an anti-dilutive effect on net loss per share, reducing the loss per share from $0.10 per share to $0.09 per share.

On July 24, 2006 Lorus entered into an agreement with Technifund Inc. to issue on a private placement basis, 5 million comman shares at $0.36 per share
for gross proceeds of $1.8 million.

The closing is subject to certain conditions, including the approval of the Toronto Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange, and the closing of the
transaction between Lorus and HighTech (discussed above).
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committed to quality for life > < promise

> Lorus Therapeutics inc. is a biopharmaceutical company specializing in the development and
commercialization of pharmaceutical products and technologies for the management of cancer. Lorus
carries out basic drug discovery research and clinical development, but also seeks to reduce the risks
associated with the drug development process by acquiring promising new technologies from research
institutions and other companies.

> The focus of Lorus is on the development of well-tolerated cancer therapy drugs. Since cancer
progression is a complex process involving the accumulation of multiple genetic alterations leading to
changes in many specialized cell functions, Lorus does not hold the view that a single drug will emerge
as a cure for all cancers. Instead, Lorus believes that cancer will continue to be treated by many different
drugs with a variety of mechanisms of action. Since Lorus takes a multi-mechanistic approach for the
treatment of cancer, the Company concentrates on the discovery and the development of different
classes of anticancer compounds.

> All of the drugs being developed by the research team at Lorus have one similar characteristic: they are
designed with the goal of being well-tolerated by patients. For successful drug candidates, this may
contribute to an improved quality of life for cancer patients, and may also make Lorus’ drugs more
commercially attractive as they could more easily be investigated in combination with other leading
therapies without significantly adding to the current side effect profiles of existing drugs.

PLATFORM TECHNOLOGIES

The Company focuses on three therapeutic areas, and in addition has a number of promising preclinical
technologies that we believe will continue to expand the product pipeline.

The lead areas of research and development include:

Immunotherapy

Lead Product - Virulizin®

Major Accomplishment in Fiscal 2005 - Completion of pivotal Phase |l clinical study of Virulizin®
in combination with GEMZAR®

Pending Milestones - Release of clinical trial results

- Application for marketing approval

Antisense

Lead Products - GTI-2040 and GTI-2501

Major Accomplishments in Fiscal 2005 - Eight Phase II clinical trials underway for a variety of
cancer indications, six of which are sponsored and funded
by the U.S. National Cancer Institute

Pending Milestones - Advancement of GTI-2040 in all its clinical development
programs

Anticancer Small Molecules

Lead Products - ML-133, ML-220 and LT-253

Major Accomplishments in Fiscal 2005 - Identification of fead compounds after being included in
screening program of the U.S. National Cancer Institute

Pending Milestones — Advancement of the Company’s first small molecule drug

candidate into clinical study
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Lorus Therapeutics is developing a broad and diverse portfolio of
compounds in the battle against cancer. Knowing that this is a
disease without a singular cause, it will be necessary to offer a

number of treatment options in this battle. For our part, we have

three products representing two classes of drugs currently in

clinical development and plan to move the first candidate of our

BT Y T L T e e e )

third class of drugs into the clinic this fiscal year.

- deliver
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Clinical Development Pipeline

US NATIONAL
CANCER INSTITUTE
(NCi) COLLAB.

SMALL
MOLECULE -
LIBRARY

ANTISENSE
CANDIDATES

LEAD

s
o
o
a

W

GTI-2040 - Colon Cancer
CTI1-2040 - Lung Cancer

GT1-2040 - Breast Cancer
GTI1-2040 - Solid Tumors
GTI-2040 - AML
-2040 - Prostate

GTI1-2501 - Prostate Cancer

ML.Series (New Small Molecules}

IN THE CLINIC

immunotherapy
Majer advances in cancer therapy have been made in the past
two decades. One of the most significant advances has been
the emergence of immunotherapy; which is a class of therapies
that work against disease by attempting to produce active or
passive immunity.

Our lead immunotherapy is Virulizin® At the center of the
Virulizin® mechanism of action are macrophages, which are
white blood cells that play an important role in the
recognition and destruction of tumor cells. Virulizin® induces
macrophages to produce a variety of molecules that kill
tumor cells directly, as well as indirectly through activation of
Natural Killer (NK} cells.

Antisense Technology

Antisense therapy represents a powerful means to selectively
decrease expression of disease-causing genes, providing the
potential of reducing malignancy while avoiding adverse side
effects associated with inhibition of multiple targets common
with other forms of therapy.

S

RESEARCH PRECLINICAL

PHASE

We had further evidence of the safety and clinical efficacy of
our antisense drugs GT1-2040 and GTI-2501. These oligo-
nucleotides comprise our lead clinical antisense platform,
based on inhibition of expression of ribonucleotide reductase
(RNR}). We have shown that RNR is important in cancer
malignancy and is elevated in a wide range of tumors.

PRECLINICAL

Small Molecule Program

The Company has several very interesting preclinical
technologies under development with the Small Molecule
Program as one of the most advanced. Currently we are
focused on the development of the ML-Series of compounds,
particularly ML133 and its derivatives, which appear to be
an extremely potent inhibitor of cancer cell growth for a
number of different cancers.

PHASE NI PHASE i APPROVED

Nc-3817 \
Nc-3832 1

CTI-26013
GTI1-3008

CTI-3611
CT1-4006

- d A

Immunotherapy — Neo-Virulizin® 1

Gene Therapy i

1 Approved in Mexico for the treatment of malignant melanoma

2 Pursuant to a worldwide exclusive out-licensing agreement, these products will be developed by Cyclacel Limited of the UK.

3 Developing in collabaration with Sumitomo Pharmaceuticals Co. Ltd. and Koken Co. Ltd.
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deliver

Dear fellow shareholders:

We are almost there! As you know, we have been building a biopharmaceutical company with a
broad and diverse portfolio of well-tolerated, efficacious, anticancer drugs. We have made
steady, consistent, important progress in the development of our multiple anticancer platform
technologies with a variety of clinical and preclinical studies underway, including our now
complete global Phase Il clinical trial with Virulizin® for the treatment of pancreatic cancer. We
have developed the internal expertise to repeat our successes in the future and to mitigate the
pitfalls in the challenging bictechnology industry. We have ridden the volatile stock market
through its cycles of highs and lows, partially buffered by our fundamentals, but not exempt
from its considerable influence.

The result of these initiatives is a Company poised for multiple successes, starting with our lead
anticancer drug, Virulizin®,

Persistence, perseverance and a degree of patience have all played their part in the
development of Virulizin®, but planning has been the most important factor in reaching this
point. We have achieved a series of key milestones this past year in all of our programs, notably:

* the completion of the Virulizin® Phase Ill clinical registration trial with results anticipated by
late 2005;

¢ BioVectra, our recently selected contract manufacturer, successfully scaled-up preduction of
Virulizin® to commercial batches;

« the U.S. FDA approval of a “rolling submission” for our New Drug Application for Virulizin®,
potentially expediting the approval process;

¢ the granting of Orphan Drug Status for Virulizin® by the European Medicines Agency
(something we already have from the FDA), which provides for 10 years of market exclusivity
and enables Lorus to seek out expedited approval processes;

* completing a Phase |l trial of GTI-2040 in combination with capecitabine in patients with
advanced and metastatic renal cell carcinoma;

¢ commencing a Phase Il clinical trial in hormone refractory prostate cancer using GT1-2040,
marking the sixth clinical trial study sponsored and funded by the U.S. National Cancer
Institute;

* entering into a collaboration agreement with Sumitemo Pharmaceuticals Co. of Japan.
There may never be a “silver bullet” for the treatment of cancer. Rather, combating and

managing the disease will require a wide range of therapies and treatments. We are contributing
to this battle by developing a number of technology platforms from which we hope to be able
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to offer a range of well-tolerated therapeutic interventions. This report reviews the considerable
progress we have made on advancing our broad portfolio of anticancer drug candidates. The
breadth of our pipeline speaks to our commitment to become a leading global cancer company
with a well diversified clinical and preclinical pipeline of novel therapies. We expect low toxicity
products will be welcomed by patients, while developing a diversified portfolic represents
prudent risk management for our investors.

We have also developed internal expertise in many aspects of drug development, We expanded
our management team this past year to prepare the Company as we plan for commerdialization.
We continue to develop and expand upon our collaborative and strategic relationships with a
broad cross-section of industry players: from academic institutions such as the University of
Toronto, to the National Cancer Institute in the U.S., Sumitomo Pharmaceuticals of japan,
Cyclacel Ltd. of the UK. and BioVectra in Canada. We will continue to be focused and
opportunistic in our efforts to create shareholder value.

Since our merger in October 1999 with GeneSense Technologies, we have consistently moved
forward on a number of fronts. We fully expect solid progress in the year ahead but likely none
will equal the excitement of the results of our Phase Ill clinical trial for Virulizin® for the
treatment of pancreatic cancer

We own 100% of Virulizin®, our novel anticancer drug which has completed a pivotal Phase llI
clinical trial. We have a variety of other drug candidates in all phases of preclinical and clinical
development and expect to advance at least one of our preclinical programs into the clinic in
2006. We have a strong and independent board of directors representing our shareholders and
guiding the Corporation. It has been a difficult year for many within the life sciences sector,
but our perseverance and planning at Lorus have put us in an enviable paosition for 2006
and beyond.

Qur shareholders deserve special credit at this important juncture in our history. Thanks to al
of you who have had the patience and the confidence to support our efforts. We look forward
to great things.

Sincerely,

%&7%&2 /ét*

Dr. Jim Wright
President and Chief Executive Officer

Lorus Therapeutics




technology overview > < promise

deliver

Lorus is developing innovative therapies with high safety profiles for the management of cancer, and is achieving this
goal through a broad diversified technology base. Examples are described below.

Virulizin®

This has been an exciting year for our most advanced oncology product Virulizin®, a novel immunotherapy. One of our
most significant milestones was the successful completion of our pivotal Phase Ill clinical study of Virulizin® in
combination with GEMZAR® for the treatment of pancreatic cancer. The Phase 1l clinical registration study had been
underway since early 2002, and enrolled 436 patients at over 100 clinical sites in North America and Europe. Last
patient visit, which occurred in july 2005, will be followed by database lock later this summer. According to the study
protocol requirements for follow-up, database lock and data analysis, the results of the study are anticipated for
late 2005.

The Phase 1ll clinical study compares the efficacy and safety of Virulizin® when combined with GEMZAR®, versus a
placebo combined with GEMZAR® in patients with locally advanced or metastatic pancreatic cancer. The primary
efficacy endpoint is overall survival, while secondary endpoints include progression of symptoms of pain, deterioration
of performance status and weight loss.

We continued to receive promising news in support of regulatory approval and, ultimately, commercialization of
Virulizin®. Prior to completion of the Phase {ll trial, we received a favorable review from the Data Safety Monitoring Board
and a positive outcome of the pharmacokinetic portion of the trial. In June, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration
accepted our proposal for a rofling submission for the Company’s New Drug Application (NDA) for Virulizin®, That same
month we announced that our contract manufacturer, BioVectra, had successfully scaled up the manufacturing process
of Virulizin® to the commercial batch size of BOOD liters, representing an eight-fold increase over the clinical
manufacturing process. Virulizin® was also approved as an orphan medicinal product in the European Union for the
treatment of pancreatic cancer.

During this past year we also made several key advances towards the understanding of the mechanism of action of
Virulizin®, the findings of which we presented at international cancer conferences and published in two articles in the
journal Cancer Immunology, Immunotherapy. At the center of the Virulizin® mechanism of action are macrophages, which
are white blood cells that play an important role in the recognition and destruction of tumor cells. Virulizin® induces
macrophages to produce a variety of molecules that kill tumor cells directly, as well as indirectly through activation of
Natural Killer (NK} cells. We expanded on these findings at the annual meeting of the American Association for Cancer
Research (AACR) in April, with in vivo data demonstrating that a link between macrophage activation and NK-cell
antitumor activity was the cytokine IL-12. In May, at the American Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO), we revealed an
entirely novel aspect of Virulizin® antitumor function.

GTI-2040 and GTI-2507

This past year we had further evidence of the safety and clinical efficacy of our antisense drugs GT1-2040 and GTI-2501.
These oligonucleotides comprise our lead clinical antisense platform, based on inhibition of expression of ribonucleotide
reductase (RNR). We have shown that RNR is important in cancer malignancy and is elevated in a wide range of tumors.
Antisense therapy represents a powerful means to selectively decrease expression of disease-causing genes, with the
potential in cancer of reducing malignancy while avoiding adverse side effects associated with inhibition of multiple
targets common with other forms of therapy. We continue to be encouraged by the progress of our clinical program for
GT1-2040 and GTI-2501, which comprises eight Phase |l trials for a variety of cancer indications.

Last November we initiated a Phase |l clinical trial in hormone refractory prostate cancer using GT1-2040 in combination
with docetaxel and prednisone. This is the Company's sixth clinical trial study sponsored and funded by the U.S.
National Cancer Institute (NCI). Other ongoing GTI-2040 clinical trials involving different combinations with
chemotherapies conducted under the NCI program include studies in non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC), breast cancer,
colorectal cancer, acute myeloid leukemia (AML), and solid tumors. In May a steering committee meeting was held
with Lorus and Principal Investigators from our NCl-sponsored trials to review the ongoing program. We are pleased to
report that the program is continuing as planned.
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This past April we completed a Phase Il trial of GT1-2040 in combination with capecitabine in patients with advanced
and metastatic renal cell carcinoma, More than half (52%) of the patients on the recommended dose exhibited disease
stabilization or better, including one confirmed partial response with duration of eight months. Durable tumor reductions
observed at the recommended dose included a 23 per cent reduction of tumor burden in a patient with a disease
stabilization of 10 months' duration, while other disease stabilizations of four to nine months duration were
also observed.

Other important milestones were achieved for GTI-2040 this year. The U.S. FDA awarded orphan drug status to
GTI1-2040 for the treatment of AML. In April, Lorus and clinical investigators from the University of Chicago published
the results of a Phase | trial of GT1-2040 in solid tumors in the journal Annals of Oncology. The findings from this trial
confirmed the favorable toxicity profile of GT1-2040, and provided a dose level for subsequent Phase Il trials. Preliminary
results of a Phase Il study of GTI-2040 plus docetaxel as second-line treatment in NSCLC were presented at this year’s
ASCO meeting. The investigators reported that no dose limiting toxicities were observed in the first cycle of
combination treatment with GT1-2040 and docetaxel, which is an established cytotoxic agent for second-line treatment
of NSCLC. Early efficacy data showed disease stabilization activity in 10 of 18 patients, with some patients still on
treatment in this ongoing trial. These encouraging results indicate the safe use of GT1-2040 plus docetaxel in advanced
NSCLC, with early evidence of activity.

Earlier this year Lorus entered into an important partnership agreement with one of Japan’s leading pharmaceutical
companies, Sumitomo Pharmaceuticals Co. Ltd., and collagen manufacturer Koken Co. Ltd., to formulate one of our
promising preclinical antisense oligonucleotides, GTI-2601. Unlike our lead antisense molecules, which target RNR,
GTI-2601 specifically downregulates expression of thioredoxin, which is a protein that is elevated in multiple cancer
types, and is widely implicated in tumor formation, metastasis, and resistance to chemotherapeutic agents. Sumitomo
and Koken have developed an advanced delivery system based on collagen that, when complexed with antisense
oligonucleotides, can improve antitumor efficacy compared to naked or uncomplexed oligonucleotides. This delivery
technology holds much promise from efficacy, safety, manufacturing and commercial perspectives.

In addition, Lorus is developing the potential of RNA interference to control gene expression through the use of small
interfering RNA (siRNA). siRNA selectively decreases mRNA and protein levels in the cell by an antisense like mechanism
that differs from that of antisense gene regulation by compounds like GTI1-2040, CTI-2501 and GTI1-2601.

Anticancer Small Molecules: The ML-Series

Last year we announced the discovery of novel low molecular weight compounds with anticancer activity. Since then we
have made progress in the development of these molecules, which we have called the ML-Series. A group of selected
compounds from the ML-Series were included in the in vitro anticancer screening program of the National Cancer
Institute (USA), a screening program utilizing 60 human cancer cell lines. Two of the most active compounds, ML-133
and ML-220, passed acute toxicity tests in mice, and showed significant tumor inhibition activity in vivo in xenograft
models of severa! human cancer types. The U.S. NCI subsequently selected ML-133 for further in vivo evaluation due to
its potent anticancer activity and novel chemical structure.

In this past year we presented results of studies on the efficacy and mechanism of action of ML-220 at the 9th Annual
World Congress Drug Discovery Technology in Boston. We showed that ML-220 potently suppressed the growth of
most cancer cell types. The mechanism of action of ML-220 involves the inhibition of kinases, which are enzymes that
are often associated with abnormal cell growth and development of tumors. Targeting cancer-related kinase activity
presents novel opportunities for the development of new cancer therapies designed to be less toxic than conventional
chemotherapeutic drugs. Currently we are focused on the development of our lead compound ML-133, which appears
to be an extremely potent inhibitor of cancer cell growth for a number of different cancers.

We believe the unique mode of action and novel structures make this group of compounds promising drug candidates
for the development of novel anticancer agents with minimal or no cross resistance with existing drugs.
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AUGUST 11, 2005

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended May 31, 2005 and the accompanying notes (the “Financial Statements”) set forth elsewhere in this report.
The Financial Statements, and all financial information discussed below, have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP"). Significant differences between Canadian and United States GAAP
are identified in Mote 16 to the Financial Statements. All amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise
noted. In this Management's Discussion and Analysis, “Lorus”, the “Company”, “we”, “us” and “our” each refers to Lorus
Therapeutics Inc.

OVERVIEW

Lorus Therapeutics Inc. is a life sciences company focused on the research, development and commercialization of effective
anticancer therapies with high safety. Lorus has worked diligently to establish a diverse, marketable anticancer product
pipeline, with products in various stages of development ranging from preclinical to multiple Phase I} clinical trials, and a
global Phase Ill trial which recently completed last patient visit. A growing intellectual property portfolio supports our
diverse product pipeline.

Our success is dependent upon several factors, including establishing the efficacy and safety of our products in clinical
trials, obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals to market our products and maintaining sufficient levels of funding
through public and/or private financing.

We believe that the future of cancer treatment and management fies in drugs that are effective, safe and have minimal side
effects, and therefore improve a patient’s quality of life. Many of the cancer drugs currently approved for the treatment and
management of cancer are toxic with severe side effects, and we therefore believe that a product development plan based
on effective and safe drugs could have broad applications in cancer treatment. Lorus™ strategy is to continue the
development of our product pipeline using several therapeutic approaches. Each therapeutic approach is dependent on
different technologies, thereby mitigating the development risks associated with a single technology platform. We evaluate
the merits of each product throughout the clinical trial process and consider commercialization as appropriate. The
most advanced anticancer drugs in our pipeline, each of which flow from different platform technologies, are:
tmmunotherapeutics (Virulizin®); Antisense {GTI Compounds); Small Molecule and Tumor Suppressor Technology.

Our net loss for 2005 totalled $22.1 million ($0.13 per share) compared to a net loss of $30.3 million ($0.18 per share)
in 2004. Research and development expenses in 2005 decreased to $14.4 million from $26.8 million in 2004. The wind
down of the Virulizin® Phase Il clinical trial during 2004 and the procurement of drug supply for the U.5. NCi-sponsored
Phase Il clinical trial programs for CT1-2040 as well as GTI-2501 for our Phase I/ll clinical trial in 2004 for which we
continue to have sufficient supply on hand contributed to the decrease over 2004. We utilized cash of $18.7 million in our
operating activities in 2005 compared with $28.1 million in 2004; the lower utilization is consistent with lower research
and development activities, offset by lower revenue and interest income during the year. At the end of 2005 we had cash
and cash equivalents and short-term investments of $21.5 million compared to $26.7 million at the end of 2004.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues

Revenues for the year decreased to $6 thousand compared with 2004 revenue of $608 thousand and $66 thousand in
2003. The decrease over 2004 results from a licensing agreement Lorus entered into during 2004 with Cyclacel Ltd. in
connection with the out-licensing of our Clotrimazole analog library of anticancer drug candidates. The agreement included
an initial license fee of $546 thousand received in 2004 with the potential of additional license fees of up te $11.6 million
that may be earned if Cyclacel achieves certain defined research and development milestones. We do not expect that any
of these milestones will be achieved in the next 12 months. The balance of the revenue earned during 2004 and 2003
relates to product and royalty revenues from the sale of our lead drug Virulizin® to our distributor in the Mexican market,
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Mayne Pharma. As of July 31, 2005, Lorus’ contract with Mayne Pharma to distribute Virulizin®in Mexico was terminated as
a result of Mayne Pharma ceasing operations in Mexico and Brazil. Lorus is currently investigating alternatives to continue
our presence in the Mexican market. We do not anticipate product revenue in fiscal 2006 from any of our other anticancer
drugs currently under development.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses totalled $14.4 million in 2005 compared to $26.8 million in 2004 and $12.6 million
in 2003. The significant decrease in spending compared with 2004 is primarily the result of two factors. First, in 2004 our
Phase Ill global clinical trial of Virulizin® for the treatment of advanced pancreatic cancer was progressing through a heavy
enrollment period resulting in many up front costs, including personnel, drug manufacturing and testing, combination drug
purchases and contract research organization costs. In 2005 the study and the associated costs have wound down to the
point of last patient visit on July 5, 2005. Second. we incurred expenditures in 2004 related to the upfront procurement
of the CTI-2040 drug for the five U.S. National Cancer Institute {“NCI") sponsored Phase | clinical trials as well as the
GTI-2501 drug for our Phase I/1l prostate trial. We have had, and cantinue to have, a sufficient drug supply on hand such
that no additional costs were incurred during 2005. Research and development costs in 2004 were higher than 2003
primarily due to the reasons discussed above.

Of the total research and development expenditures incurred during the year, Virulizin® accounted for $11.9 million or 83%
of the total spending. As discussed above Virulizin® recently completed a Phase Il clinical trial, and we are preparing for
a New Drug Application (NDA) filing, both of which have required a majority of the Company's time and resources during
the year.

Ceneral and Administrative

General and administrative expenses totalled $5.3 million in 2005 compared to $4.9 million in 2004 and $4.3 million in
2003. The increase in 2005 of $400 thousand compared with 2004 is primarily due to additional administrative personnel
as we gear up for commercialization. The 2004 increase of $600 thousand compared to 2003 is due to higher professional
and filing fees related to regulatory changes and changes to the option plan, as well as a one time non-cash charge of
$245 thousand to write-off financing costs no longer deemed to have future value.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective June 1, 2004 the retroactive application of Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants {CICA) revised
Handbook Section 3870, “Stock-Based Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments” (Section 3870) with respect to
the recognition of stock-based compensation expense for the cumulative effects of the fair value of stock-based awards for
2003 and 2004 fiscal years resulted in a $2.8 million charge to the deficit and credit to the stock options account on
June 1, 2004. Prior periods were not restated.

Stock-based compensation expense increased to $1.5 million in 2005 compared with ${43} thousand in 2004 and
$674 thousand in 2003. The 2005 expense represents the amortization of the estimated fair value of stock options
granted since June 1, 2002 applicable to the current service period as well as a charge of $208 thousand recorded in the
second quarter of 2005 representing the increase in value attributed to the November 18, 2004 shareholder approved
amendment to the stock option plan to extend the contractual life of all options outstanding from five-years to 10-years.
Stock compensation expense recorded prior to June 1, 2004 represents the cost of awarding performance-based stock
options to employees. These options have contingent vesting criteria, and as such they were treated as a variable award
and revalued using the intrinsic method at the end of each reporting period until the final measurement date. In 2003 there
was a large expense due to the significant increase in our share price during the year. The negative adjustment in 2004 was
due to a general decline in our share price during the year.
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Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses totalled $564 thousand in 2005 compared to $463 thousand in 2004 and
$286 thousand in 2003. The increase in expense over 2004 is due to the acquisition of additional capital related to the
scale up of our manufacturing process, as well as a write-down of $75 thousand taken on certain equipment whose carrying
value was deemed to be unrecoverable and in excess of the estimated future undiscounted cash flows of the underlying
assets. The increase in 2004 over 2003 is due to the completion of leasehold improvements for which amortization started
in late 2003.

Interest Expense

We recognized non-cash interest expense of $300 thousand in 2005, representing interest at a rate of prime +1% on the
$15 million convertible debentures. Interest has accrued based on the cash advanced beginning October 6, 2004 when
the first tranche of $5 million was advanced through to May 31, 2005 when the entire $15 million had been advanced.
The interest accrued on the debentures during the year was paid in common shares of the Company.

Accretion in Carrying Value of Secured Convertible Debentures

Accretion in the carrying value of the convertible debentures amounted to $426 thousand in 2005. This amount reflects
the accretion charge from the date of issue (October 6, 2004} to the end of the year. This accretion charge arises as, under
Canadian GAAP, we have allocated the proceeds from each tranche of the convertible debentures to the debt and equity
instruments issued on a relative fair value basis resulting in the $15.0 million convertible debentures having an initial
carrying value of $9.8 million as of their dates of issuance. Each reporting period, the Company is required to accrete the
carrying value of the convertible debentures such that at maturity on October 6, 2009, the carrying value of the
debentures will be the face value of $15.0 million.

Amortization of Deferred Financing Charges

Amortization of deferred financing charges for 2005 increased to $84 thousand compared to nil in 2004, The deferred
financing charges relate to the convertible debenture transaction and will be amortized over the five-year life of the debt
commencing October 6, 2004,

Interest and Other Income
Interest income totalled $524 thousand in 2005 compared to $1.2 million in both 2004 and 2003. The decrease is due
to a lower average cash and short-term investment balance in 2005. Interest income was unchanged between 2004 and
2003 despite higher average cash and short-term investment balances in 2004 because of lower market interest rates in
2004 compared with 2003.

Loss for the Year

Net loss for the year decreased 27% to $22.1 million or $0.13 per share in 2005 compared to $30.3 million or $0.18 per
share in 2004 and $16.6 million or $0.12 per share in 2003. The decrease in net loss over the prior year is primarily due
to lower research and development costs resulting from the wind down of the Phase Il Virulizin® clinical trial, as well as no
GTI-2040 or GTi-2501 drug production in the current year, offset by lower interest revenue and non-cash expenses
associated with stock-based compensation expense, and charges related to the convertible debentures including accretion,
interest and amortization of deferred financing charges. Net loss was higher in 2004 compared with 2003 primarily due to
the significant increase in clinical trial activities to support the expanded Phase Il Virulizin® chinical trial, and the cost of
procuring GTl-2040 and GTI-2501 drugs te support our ongoing clinical trials.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Since its inception, Lorus has financed its operations and technology acquisitions primarily from equity and debt financing,
the exercise of warrants and stock options, and interest income on funds held for future investment. We expect to continue
to finance the remaining costs of the Virulizin® Phase Il clinical trial and the GT1-2501 Phase I/1! clinical trial from internal
resources until their anticipated completion. The ongoing costs of the six GTI-2040 Phase Il clinical trials will continue
to be barne by the NCI in the United States with Lorus continuing to be responsible for any additional GTI1-2040
manufacturing costs.

We have not earned substantial revenues from our drug candidates and are therefore considered to be in the development
stage. The continuation of our research and development activities and the commercialization of the targeted therapeutic
products are dependent upon our ability to successfully finance and complete our research and developments programs.

Our future operations are highly dependent upon the outcome of the Phase Il trial of our lead product, Virulizin®. Should
the trial prove successful, we will pursue regulatory approval and subsequent commercialization of Virulizin®. Lorus’
commercialization efforts are dependent upon our ability to raise additional financing through a combination of equity or
debt financing, or payments from strategic partners. Should our ability to raise additional financial support be delayed, we
believe that our current level of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments are sufficient to fund planned
expenditures for the next twelve months.
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In the event the result of the Phase Il trial does not warrant efforts to commercialize Virulizin® at the present time, we will
be required to re-evaluate our business operations and to reduce expenditures. Should commercialization not be pursued,
we believe that our current level of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments is sufficient to fund the planned
expenditures for the next twelve months.

Operating Cash Requirements

Lorus utilized cash in operating activities of $18.7 million in 2005 compared to $28.1 million in 2004 and $11.9 million in
2003. The significant decrease in cash used in operating activities in 2005 compared with 2004 is due to lower research
and development expenses, as described above, offset by lower interest income and a negative change in non-cash working
capital due to a reduction in the accounts payable and accrued liabilities balances at the end of the year. The increase in
cash used in operating activities in 2004 compared with 2003 was due to higher research and development activities as
well as a negative change in non-cash working capital compared with a positive change in 2003.

Cash Position

At May 31, 2005, Lorus had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments totalling $21.5 million compared to
$26.7 million at the end of 2004. The Company invests in highly rated and liquid debt instruments. Investment decisions
are made in accordance with an established investment policy administered by senior management and overseen by the
Board of Directors. Working capital (representing primarily cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments) at
May 31, 2005 was $18.5 million as compared to $22.6 million at May 31, 2004. The Company does not expect to generate
positive cash flow from operations in the next several years due to additional research and development costs, including
costs related to drug discovery, preclinical testing, clinical trials, manufacturing costs and operating expenses associated
with supporting these activities, as well as the costs associated with filing an NDA with the FDA and bringing a drug to
market. Negative cash flow will continue until such time, if ever, that we receive regulatory approval to commercialize any of
our products under development and revenue from any such products exceeds expenses.

We may seek to access the public or private equity markets from time to time, even if we do not have an immediate need
for additional capital at that time. Lorus intends to use its resources to fund its existing drug development programs and
develop new programs from its portfolio of preclinical research technologies. The amounts actually expended for research
and drug development activities and the timing of such expenditures will depend on many factors, including the progress
of the Company’s research and drug development programs, the results of preclinical and clinical trials, the timing of
regulatory submissions and approvals, the impact of any internally developed, licensed or acquired technologies, the impact
from technological advances, determinations as to the commercial potentiat of the Company's compounds and the timing
and development status of competitive products.

Financing

On October 6, 2004, we entered into an agreement to raise aggregate net proceeds of $13.9 million through the issuance
of secured convertible debentures and warrants. The debentures are secured by a first charge over all of the assets of the
Company. We received $4.4 million on October 6, 2004 (representing a $5.0 million debenture less an investor fee
representing 4% of the $15.0 million to be received under the Agreement), and $5.0 million on each of January 14 and
April 15, 2005. All debentures issued under this Agreement are due on October 6, 2005 and are subject to interest
payable monthly at a rate of prime +1% untit such time as the Company's share price reaches $1.75 for 60 consecutive
trading days, at which time, interest will no longer be charged. Interest is payable in common shares of Lorus until Lorus’
shares trade at a price of $1.00 or more after which interest will be payable in cash or common shares at the option of the
debenture holder. Common shares issued in payment of interest will be issued at a price equal to the weighted average
trading price of such shares for the ten trading days immediately preceding their issue in respect of each interest payment.
To May 31, 2005, the Company has issued 421,000 shares in settlement of $300 thousand in interest.

The $15.0 million principal amount of debentures issued on October 6, 2004, January 14 and April 15, 2005 is convertible
at the holder’s option at any time into common shares of the Company with a conversion price per share of $1.00.

With the issuance of each $5.0 million debenture, the Company issued to the debt holder 1,000,000 warrants expiring
October 6, 2009 to buy common shares of the Company at a price per share equal to $1.00.

In addition, in 2005 Lorus issued common shares on the exercise of stock aptiens for proceeds of $112 thousand.

On June 11, 2003, Lorus raised net proceeds of $29.9 million by way of a public offering of 26,220,000 units at a price
of $1.25 per unit, each unit consisting of one common share and one-half of one purchase warrant. In 2004, Lorus issued
common shares on the exercise of stock options for proceeds of $200 thousand.

In 2003, Lorus issued common shares on the exercise of stock options for proceeds of $715 thousand.
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Use of Proceeds

In our prospectus dated June 3, 2003 we indicated that the proceeds to be received from that financing would be used as
follows: $12 million for the product development of our immunotherapy platform, $11 million for the product development
of our antisense platform and $2 million for preclinical and discovery programs. It was anticipated that the balance of
funding would be used for working capital and general purposes. Since the date of the prospectus, we have incurred
$31.8 million in research and development expenses on our immunotherapy platform, $9.1 million on our antisense
platform, and $300 thousand on preclinical and discovery programs. The additional spending on our immunotherapy
platform was funded through cash and short-term investments held by the Company prior to the 2003 offering, as well as
the October 6, 2004 $15 million convertible debenture financing, and is the direct result of the expansion of the Virulizin®
Phase Wl clinical trial. The spending anticipated in the 2003 prospectus on our antisense platform and preclinical and
discovery programs was to be incurred over a number of years, including 2004 and 2005. We have sufficient funds available
at the end of 2005 to fund the remaining $1.9 million to be spent on our antisense platform and $1.7 million to be spent
on preclinical and discovery programs.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

At May 31, 2005, we had contractual obligations requiring annual payments as follows:

(amounts in 000} Less than 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5+ years Total
Operating leases 136 235 - - 371
Contract Research Organizations' 2,160 - - - 2,160
Convertible Debenture’ - - 15,000 - 15,000
Total 2,296 235 15,000 - 17,531

' Contract Research Organization expenditures relate to our Phase Il Virulizin® clinical trial.
? The convertible debentures as described above may be converted into common shares of Lorus at a conversion price of
$1.00. In the event that the holder does not convert the shares, Lorus has an obligation to repay the $15 million in cash.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As at May 31, 2005, we have not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In 2005, we did not enter into any transactions with related parties. In order to effectively execute our business strategy,
we expect to continue outsourcing various functions to the expertise of third-parties such as contract manufacturing
organizations, contract research organizations, and other research organizations. These refationships are with non-related
third-parties and occur at arm's length and on normal commercial terms.

RISK FACTORS

Before making an investment decision with respect to our common shares, you should carefully consider the following Risk Factors, in
addition to the other information included or incorporated by reference into this report. The risks set out below are not the only risks
we face. If any of the following risks occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations would likely suffer in that case,
the trading price of our common shares could decline and you may lose afl or part of the money you paid to buy our common shares.

We have a history of operating losses. We expect to incur net losses and we may never achieve or maintain profitability.
We have not been profitable since our inception in 1986. We reported net losses of $22.1 million; $30.3 million and
$16.6 million for the years ended May 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. As of May 31, 2005, we had an accumulated
deficit of $146.6 million.

To date we have only generated nominal revenues from the sale of Virulizin® in Mexico. We have not generated any other
revenue from preduct sales to date and it is possible that we will never have sufficient product sales revenue to achieve
profitability. We expect to continue to incur losses for at least the next several years as we or our collaborators and licensees
pursue clinical trials and research and development efforts. To become profitable, we, either alone or with our collaborators
and licensees, must successfully develop, manufacture and market our current product candidates, particularly Virulizin® and
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GTI-2040, as well as continue to identify, develop, manufacture and market new product candidates. It is possible that we
will never have significant product sales revenue or receive significant royalties on our licensed product candidates. if
funding is insufficient at any time in the future, we may not be able to develop or commercialize our products, take
advantage of business opportunities or respond to competitive pressures.

Our current and anticipated operations, particularly our product development and potential commercialization programs
for Virulizin®, require substantial capital. We expect that our existing cash and cash equivalents will sufficiently fund our
current and planned operations through at least the next twelve months. However, our future capital needs will depend on
many factors, including the extent to which we enter into collaboration agreements with respect to any of our proprietary
product candidates, receive royalty and milestone payments from our possible collaborators and make progress in our
internally funded research, development and commercialization activities.

Our capital requirements will also depend on the magnitude and scope of these activities, our ability to maintain existing
and establish new collaborations, the terms of those collaborations, the success of our collaborators in developing and
marketing products under their respective collaborations with us, the success of our contract manufacturers in producing
clinicai and commercial supplies of our product candidates on a timely basis and in sufficient quantities to meet our
requirements, competing technological and market developments, the time and cost of obtaining regulatory approvals, the
extent to which we choose to commercialize our future products through our own sales and marketing capabilities, the cost
of preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent and other rights and our success in acquiring and
integrating complementary preducts, technologies or companies. We da not have committed external sources of funding
and we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain additional funds on acceptable terms, if at all. If adequate funds
are not available, we may be required to:

* engage in equity financings that would be dilutive to current shareholders;
* delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of our development programs;

* obtain funds through arrangements with collaborators or others that may require us to relinquish rights to technologies,
product candidates or products that we would otherwise seek to develop or commercialize ourselves; or license rights to
technologies, product candidates or products on terms that are less favorable to us than might otherwise be available.

We expect to announce results for an ongoing Phase 1l clinical trial of Virulizin® in patients with pancreatic cancer in
fate 2005. Qur share price could decline significantly if those clinical results are not favorable, are delayed or are
perceived negatively.

We expect to announce the results of cur Phase Il clinical trial of Virulizin® in late 2005. These results may not be favorable
or viewed favorably by us or third-parties, including investors, equity research analysts and potential collaborators. Share
prices for biotechnology companies have declined significantly in certain instances where clinical results were not favorable,
were perceived negatively or otherwise did not meet expectations. Unfavorable results or negative perceptions regarding
the results of the trial could cause our share price to decline significantly.

We do rot yet have all the required approvals to market our product candidates and our clinical triais may not yield
results that will enable us to obtain regulatory approval.

We have not completed the development of any products and there can be no assurance that any products will be
successfully developed. None of our products has received regulatory approval for commercial use and sale in
North America. We cannot market a pharmaceutical product in any jurisdiction until it has completed thorough preclinical
testing and clinical trials in addition to that jurisdiction’s extensive regulatory approval process. In general, significant
research and development and clinical studies are required to demonstrate the safety and effectiveness of our products
before we can submit any regulatory applications. We may never obtain the required regulatory approvals for any of our
products in North America or elsewhere in the world. Our product candidates will require additional research and
development efforts prior to regulatory approval and potential commercialization in North America or other jurisdictions.
However, there can be no assurance that the results of all required clinical trials will demonstrate that these product
candidates are safe and effective or, even if the results of the clinical trials are considered successful by us, that the FDA
will not require us to conduct additional large-scale clinical trials before it will consider approving such product candidates
for commercial use. Approval or consent by the FDA or other regulatery authorities to commence a clinical trial does not
indicate that the drug or treatment being studied can or will be approved. Preparing, submitting and advancing applications
for regulatory approval is complex, expensive and time intensive and entails significant uncertainty. The results of our
completed preclinical studies and clinical trials may not be indicative of future clinical trial results. A commitment of
substantial resources to conduct time-consuming research, preclinical studies and ¢linical trials will be required if we are to
complete development of our products. Clinical trials of our products require that we identify and enroll a large number of
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patients with the iliness under investigation. We may not be able to enroll a sufficient number of appropriate patients to
complete our clinical trials in a timely manner particularly in smaller indications such as Acute Myeloid Leukemia and solid
tumors. If we experience difficulty in enrolling a sufficient number of patients to conduct our clinical trials, we may need to
delay or terminate ongoing clinical trials and will not accomplish objectives material to our success that could affect the
price of our common shares. Delays in planned patient enrollment or lower than anticipated event rates in our current
clinical trials or future clinical trials may result in increased costs, program delays, or both. There can be no assurance that
unacceptable toxicities or adverse side effects will not occur at any time in the course of preclinical studies or human clinical
trials or, if any products are successfully developed and approved for marketing, during commercial use of our products.
The appearance of any such unacceptable toxicities or adverse side effects could interrupt, limit, delay or abort the
development of any of our products or, if previously approved, necessitate their withdrawal from the market. Furthermore,
there can be no assurance that disease resistance or other unforeseen factors will not limit the effectiveness of our potential
products. We cannot guarantee that any products resulting from our programs will be successfully developed or made
commercially available in the near term or at all.

We may never develop any commercial drugs or other products that generate revenues.

Our product candidates will require significant additional development, clinical trials, regulatory clearances and additional
investment before they can be commercialized. Our product development efforts may not lead to commercial drugs for a
number of reasons, including the failure of our product candidates to be safe and effective in clinical trials or because we
have inadequate financial or other resources to pursue the programs through the clinicat trial process.

Because of the uncertainty of pharmaceutical pricing, reimbursement and healthcare reform measures, we may be unable
to sell our products profitably.

The availability of reimbursement by governmental and other third-party payors affects the market for any pharmaceutical
product. These third-party payors continually attempt to contain or reduce the costs of healthcare. There have been a
number of legislative and regulatory proposals to change the healthcare system and further propasals are fikely. Significant
uncertainty exists with respect to the reimbursement status of newly approved healthcare products. In addition, third-party
payors are increasingly challenging the price and cost-effectiveness of medical products and services. We might not be able
to sell our products profitably or recoup the value of our investment in praduct development if reimbursement is unavailable
or limited in scope.

We may be unable to obtain patents to protect our lechnologies from other companies with competitive products, and
patents of other companies could prevent us from manufacturing, developing or marketing our products.

The patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies are uncertain and involve complex legal and factual
questions. The United States (U.S.) Patent and Trademark Office has not established a consistent policy regarding the
breadth of claims that it will allow in biotechnology patents. If it allows broad claims, the number and cost of patent
interference proceedings in the U.S. and the risk of infringement litigation may increase. If it allows narrow claims, the risk
of infringement may decrease, but the value of our rights under our patents, licenses and patent applications may also
decrease. In addition, the scope of the claims in a patent application can be significantly medified during prosecution
before the patent is issued. Consequently, we cannot know whether our pending applications will result in the issuance of
patents or, if any patents are issued, whether they will provide us with significant proprietary protection or will be
circumvented, invalidated or found to be unenforceable. Until recently, patent applications in the U.S. were maintained in
secrecy until the patents issued, and publication of discoveries in scientific or patent literature often lags behind actual
discoveries. Patent applications filed in the United States after November 2000 generally will be published 18 months after
the filing date unless the applicant certifies that the invention will not be the subject of a foreign patent application. We
cannot assure you that, even if published, we will be aware of all such literature. Accordingly, we cannot be certain that the
named inventoars of our products and processes were the first to invent that product or process or that we were the first to
pursue patent coverage for our inventions.

Our commercial success depends in part on our ability to maintain and enforce our proprietary rights. If third-parties
engage in activities that infringe our proprietary rights, our management's focus will be diverted and we may incur significant
costs in asserting our rights. We may not be successful in asserting our proprietary rights, which could result in our patents
being held invalid or a court holding that the third-party is not infringing, either of which would harm our competitive
position. In addition, we cannot assure you that others will not design around our patented technology. Moreover, we may
have to participate in interference proceedings declared by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office or other analogous
proceedings in other parts of the world to determine priority of invention and the validity of patent rights granted or
applied for, which could result in substantial cost and delay, even if the eventual outcome is favorable to us. We cannot
assure you that our pending patent applications, if issued, would be held valid or enforceable. Additionally, many of our
foreign patent applications have been published as part of the patent prosecution process in such countries.



LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC. > < ANNUAL REPORT 2005 > 15 »

Protection of the rights revealed in published patent applications can be complex, costly and uncertain. In order to protect
goodwill associated with our company and product names, we rely on trademark protection for our marks. We registered
the Virulizin® trademark with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. A third-party may assert a claim that the Virulizin® mark
is confusingly similar to its mark and such claims or the failure to timely register the Virulizin® mark or objections by the
FDA could force us to select a new name for Virulizin®, which could cause us to incur additional expense or delay its
introduction to market. We also rely on trade secrets, know-how and confidentiality provisions in our agreements with our
collaborators, employees and consultants to protect our intellectual property. However, these and other parties may not
comply with the terms of their agreements with us, and we might be unable to adequately enforce cur rights against these
people or obtain adequate compensation for the damages caused by their unauthorized disclosure or use. Our trade
secrets or those of our collaborators may become known or may be independently discovered by others.

We are subject to extensive government regulations that may cause us to cancel or delay the introduction of our
products to market.

Our research and development activities and the clinical investigation, manufacture, distribution and marketing of drug
products are subject to extensive regulation by governmental authorities in the U.S. and other countries. Prior to marketing
in the U.S., a drug must undergo rigorous testing and an extensive regulatory approval process implemented by the FDA
under federat law, including the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. To receive approval, we or our collaborators must,
among other things, demonstrate, with substantial evidence from well-controlled clinical trials, that the product is both safe
and effective for each indication where approval is sought. Depending upon the type, complexity and novelty of the product
and the nature of the disease or disorder to be treated, that approval process can take several years and require substantial
expenditures. Data obtained from testing are susceptible to varying interpretations that could delay, limit or prevent
regulatory approvals of our products. Drug testing is subject to complex FDA rules and regulations, including the
requirement to conduct human testing on a large number of test subjects. We, our collaborators or the FDA may suspend
human trials at any time if a party believes that the test subjects are exposed to unacceptable health risks. We cannot assure
you that any of our product candidates will be safe for human use. Other countries also have extensive requirements
regarding clinical trials, market authorization and pricing. These regulatory schemes vary widely from country to country,
but, in general, are subject to all of the risks associated with U.S. approvals. If any of our products receive regulatory
approval, the approval will be limited to those disease states and conditions for which the product is safe and effective, as
demonstrated through clinical trials. In addition, results of preclinical studies and clinical trials with respect to our products
could subject us to adverse product labeling requirements, which could harm the sale of such products. Even if regulatory
approval is obtained, later discovery of previously unknown problems may result in restrictions of the product, including
withdrawal of the product from the market. Further, governmental approval may subject us to ongoing requirements for
post-marketing studies. Even if we obtain governmental approval, a marketed product, its respective manufacturer and its
manufacturing facilities are subject to unannounced inspections by the FDA and must comply with the FDAs ¢GMP and
other regulations. These regulations govern all areas of production, record keeping, personnel and quality control. If a
manufacturer fails to comply with any of the manufacturing regulations, it may be subject to, among other things, product
seizures, recalls, fines, injunctions, suspensions or revocations of marketing licenses, operating restrictions and c¢riminal
prosecution. Other countries also impose similar manufacturing requirements.

If we fail to attract and retain key employees, the development and commercialization of our products may be

adversely affected.

We depend heavily on the principal members of our scientific and management staff. If we lose any of these persons, our
ability to develop products and become profitable could suffer. The risk of being unable to retain key personnel may be
increased by the fact that we have not executed long-term employment contracts with our employees, except for our senior
executives. Qur future success will also depend in large part on our ability to atiract and retain other highly qualified
scientific and management personnel. We face competition for personnel from other companies, academic institutions,
government entities and other organizations.

If product liability claims are brought against us or we are unable to obtain or maintain product liability insurance,

we may incur substantial ligbilities that could reduce our financial resources.

The clinical testing and commercial use of pharmaceutical products involves significant exposure to product liability claims.
We have obtained limited product liability insurance coverage for our clinical trials on humans; however, our insurance
coverage may be insufficient to protect us against all product liability damages. Further, liability insurance coverage is
becoming increasingly expensive and we might not be able to obtain or maintain product liability insurance in the future on
acceptable terms or in sufficient amounts to protect us against product liability damages. Regardless of merit or eventual
outcome, liability claims may result in decreased demand for a future product, injury to reputation, withdrawal of clinical
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trial volunteers, loss of revenue, costs of litigation, distraction of management and substantial monetary awards to plaintiffs.
Additionally, if we are required to pay a product liability claim, we may not have sufficient financial resources to complete
development or commercialization of any of our product candidates and our business and results of operations will be
adversely affected.

Our operations involve hazardous materials and we must comply with enviranmental laws and regulations, which can be
expensive and restrict how we do business.

Our research and development activities involve the controlled use of hazardous materials, radioactive compounds and
other potentially dangerous chemicals and biological agents. Although we believe our safety procedures for these materials
comply with governmental standards, we cannot entirely eliminate the risk of accidental contamination or injury from these
materials. We currently have insurance, in amounts and on terms typical for companies in businesses that are similarly
situated, that could cover all or a portion of a damage claim arising from our use of hazardous and other materials. However,
if an accident or environmental discharge occurs, and we are held liable for any resulting damages, the associated liability
could exceed our insurance coverage and our financial resources.

We have no manufacturing capabilities. We depend on third-parties, including a number of sole suppliers, for
manufacturing and storage of our product candidates used in our clinical trials. Product introductions may be delayed or
suspended if the manufacture of our products is interrupted or discontinued.

We do not have manufacturing facilities to produce supplies of Virulizin®, GT1-2040, GTI-2501 or any of cur other product
candidates to support clinical trials or commercial launch of these products, if they are approved. We are dependent on
third-parties for manufacturing and storage of our product candidates. If we are unable to contract for a sufficient supply
of our product candidates on acceptable terms, or if we encounter delays or difficulties in the manufacturing process or our
relationships with our manufacturers, we may not have sufficient product to conduct or complete our clinical trials or
support preparations for the commercial launch of our product candidates, if approved.

We have entered into a sole supplier agreement with a contract manufacturer, Diagnostic Chemicals Limited operating as
BioVectra dcl (BioVectra) to manufacture commercial supplies of Virulizin® This contract manufacturer is our only source
for the commercial production of Virulizin®. To date, this contract manufacturer has produced only small quantities of
Virulizin® relative to those needed for commercialization. However, this supplier is contractually required to set up an
alternate independent manufacturing facility within their organization. In addition, we rely upon a scle supplier for the filling
portion of the manufacturing process, Draxis Pharma (a division of Draxis Specialty Pharmaceuticals Inc.) {Draxis). In terms
of the components of Virulizin®, we currently rely upon only one type of charcoal as produced by Norit Americas Inc.
{Norit), in the event that this specific type of charcoal was no longer available, we would need to perform further research
and development procedures to demonstrate to the FDA that an alternative would be acceptable. The technology transfer
process at BioVectra has been completed and commercial scale-up of the manufacturing run successfully completed. We
expect BioVectra to be able to produce sufficient drug supplies of Virulizin® on a timely basis. Due to the sole supplier status
of our relationship with BioVectra, Draxis and our reliance on Norit charcoal, we are subject to the risk that disruptions in
their operations would result in delays in Virulizin® regulatory approvals and commercial introduction. If BioVectra or Draxis
were unable to produce finished supplies of Virulizin® in required quantities, on a timely basis or at all, we could ultimately
be forced to establish a secondary manufacturing site, which would require additional regulatory approvals and delay. Any
disruption or termination of our relationship with BioVectra would materially harm our business and financial condition and
cause our share price to decline.

We will be required to establish comparability between the finished drug product used in the conduct of our clinical trials
and the commercial supplies of the finished drug product manufactured by BioVectra. Additienally, FDA and comparable
foreign regulatory approvals may also be required.

We also have arrangements with contract manufacturers for clinical supplies of GT1-2040 and GTI-2501. If clinical supplies
of these drugs are disrupted, exhausted, or fail to arrive when needed, we will have to substantially curtail or postpone
initiation of planned clinical trials with those product candidates.

Dependence on contract manufacturers for commercial production involves a number of risks, many of which are outside
our control. These risks include potential delays in transferring technology, and the inability of our contract manufacturer
to scale production on a timely basis, to manufacture commercial quantities at reasonable costs, to comply with ¢cGMP and
to implement procedures that result in the production of drugs that meet our specifications and regulatory requirements.

Our reliance on contract manufacturers exposes us to additional risks, including:

¢ there may be delays in scale-up to quantities needed for clinical trials and commercial launch or failure to manufacture
such quantities to our specifications, or to deliver such quantities on the dates we require;
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¢ our current and future manufacturers are subject to ongoing, periodic, unannounced inspection by the FDA and
corresponding Canadian and international regulatory authorities for compliance with strictly enforced cGMP regulations
and similar standards, and we do not have control over our contract manufacturers’ compliance with these regulations
and standards;

= our current and future manufacturers may not be able to comply with applicable regulatory requirements, which would
prohibit them from manufacturing products for us;

« if we need to change to other commercial manufacturing contractors, the FDA and comparable foreign regulators must
approve these contractors prior to our use, which would require new testing and compliance inspections, and the new
manufacturers would have to be educated in, or themselves develop substantially equivalent processes necessary for the
production or our proeducts; and

* our manufacturers might not be able to fulfill our commercial needs, which would require us to seek new manufacturing
arrangements and may result in substantial delays in meeting market demand.

Any of these factors could cause us to delay or suspend clinical trials, regulatory submission, required approvals or
commercialization of our products under development, entail higher costs and result in our being unable to effectively
commercialize our products. We do not currently intend to manufacture any of our product candidates. although we may
choose to do so in the future. If we decide to manufacture our products, we would be subject to the regulatory risks and
requirements described above. We would also be subject to similar risks regarding delays or difficulties encountered in
manufacturing our pharmaceutical products and we would require additional facilities and substantial additional capital. We
cannot assure you that we would be able to manufacture any of our products successfully in accordance with regulatory
requirements and in a cost-effective manner,

QOur products and product candidates may infringe the intellectual property rights of others, which could increase our
costs and negatively affect our profitability.

Our success alse depends on avoiding infringement of the proprietary technologies of others. In particular, there may be
certain issued patents and patent applications claiming subject matter which we or our collaborators may be required to
license in order to research, develop or commercialize at least some of our product candidates, including Virulizin®,
CT1-2040, GTI1-2501 and CTi-2601. In addition, third-parties may assert infringement or other intellectual property claims
against us based on our patents or other intellectual property rights. An adverse outcome in these proceedings could
subject us to significant liabilities to third-parties, require disputed rights to be licensed from third-parties or require us to
cease or modify our use of the technology. If we are required to license such technology, we cannot assure you that a license
under such patents and patent applications will be available on acceptable terms or at all. Further, we may incur substantial
costs defending ourselves in lawsuits against charges of patent infringement or other unlawful use of another’s proprietary
technology.

We have limited sales, marketing and distribution experience.

We have very limited experience in the sales, marketing and distribution of pharmaceutical preducts. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to establish sales, marketing, and distribution capabilities or make arrangements with our
collaborators, licensees or others to perform such activities or that such efforts will be successful. If we decide to market
any of our products directly, we must either acquire or internally develop a marketing and sales force with technical
expertise and with supporting distribution capabilities. The acquisition or development of a sales and distribution
infrastructure would require substantial resources, which may divert the attention of our management and key personnel
and have a negative impact on our product development efforts. If we contract with third-parties for the sales and marketing
of our products, our revenues will be dependent on the efforts of these third-parties, whose efforts may not be successful.
If we fail to establish successful marketing and sales capabilities or to make arrangements with third-parties, our business,
financial condition and results of operations will be materially adversely affected.

Clinical trials are long. expensive and uncertain processes and the FDA may ultimately not approve any of our product
candidates. We cannot assure you that data collected from preclinical studies and clinical trials of vur product candidates
will be sufficient to support approval by the FDA, the failure of which could delay our profitability and adversely affect
our share price.

Many of our research and development programs are currently in the Phase It and Phase Il clinical stage. Clinical trials are
long, expensive and uncertain processes. Clinical trials may not be commenced or completed on schedule, and the FDA may
not ultimately approve our product candidates for commercial sale. Further, even if the results of our preclinical studies or
clinical trials are initially positive, it is possible that we will obtain different results in the later stages of drug development
or that results seen in clinical trials will not continue with longer-term treatment. Drugs in late stages of clinical development
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may fail te show the desired safety and efficacy traits despite having progressed through initial clinical testing. For example,
positive results in early Phase | or Phase Il clinical trials may not be repeated in larger Phase Il or Phase Il clinical trials. All
of our potential drug candidates are prone to the risks of failure inherent in drug devetopment. The clinical trials of any of
our drug candidates, including Virulizin® could be unsuccessful, which would prevent us from commercializing or partnering
the drug. Our failure to develop safe, commercially viable drugs would substantially impair our ability to generate revenues
and sustain our operations and would materially harm our business and adversely affect our share price.

We rely on third-parties for a variety of functions and we may enter into future coflaborations. We may not receive the
benefits that we expect from these arrangements.

Our strategy for the research, development and commercialization of our products requires entering into various
arrangements with corporate collaborators, licensors, licensees and others, and our commercial success is dependent upon
these outside parties performing their respective contractual responsibilities. The amount and timing of resources that such
third-parties will devote to these activities may not be within our control. There can be no assurance that such parties will
perform their abligations as expected. There can be no assurance that our collaborators will devote adequate resources to
our programs. In addition, we could become involved in disputes with our collaboraters, which could result in a delay or
termination of the related development programs or result in litigation. We intend to seek additional collaborative
arrangements to develop and commercialize some of our products. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
negotiate collaborative arrangements on favorable terms, or at all, in the future, or that our current or future collaborative
arrangements will be successful.

As a result of intense competition and technological change in the pharmaceutical industry, the marketplace may not
accept our products, and we may not be able to compete successfully against other companies in our industry and
achieve profitabifity.

Many of our competitors have drug products that have already been approved or are in development, and operate large,
well-funded research and development programs in these fields. For example, OSI's Tarceva may become a direct competitor
of Virulizin®. Many of our competitors have substantially greater financial and management resources, superior intellectual
property positions and greater manufacturing, marketing and sales capabilities, areas in which we have limited or no
experience. In addition, many of our competitors have significantly greater experience than we do in undertaking preclinical
testing and clinical trials of new or improved pharmaceutical products and obtaining required regulatory approvals.
Consequently, our competitors may obtain FDA and other regulatory approvals for product candidates sooner and may be
more successful in manufacturing and marketing their products than we or our collaborators are. Existing and future
products, therapies and technological approaches will compete directly with the products we seek to develop. Current and
prospective competing products may provide greater therapeutic benefits for a specific problem or may offer easier delivery
or comparable performance at a lower cost. Any product candidate that we develop and that obtains regulatory approval
must then compete for market acceptance and market share. Our product candidates may not gain market acceptance
among physicians, patients, healthcare payors and the medical community. Further, any products we develop may become
obsolete before we recover any expenses we incurred in connection with the development of these products. As a result,
we may never achieve profitability.

Qur interest income is subject to fluctuations of interest rates in aur investment portfolio of debt securities.

Investments are held to maturity and have staggered maturities to minimize interest rate risk. There can be no assurance
that interest income fluctuations will not have an adverse impact on our financial condition. We maintain all our accounts
in Canadian dollars, but our revenues and a portion of our expenditures are in foreign currencies. We do not currently
engage in hedging our foreign currency requirements to reduce exchange rate risk.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON SHARES AND CONYERTIBLE DEBENTURES

Our share price has been and may continue to be volatile and an investment in our common shares could suffer

a decline in value.

You should consider an investment in our common shares as risky and invest only if you can withstand a significant loss and
wide Auctuations in the market value of your investment. We receive only limited attention by securities analysts and
frequently experience an imbalance between supply and demand for our common shares. The market price of our common
shares has been highly volatile and is likely to continue to be volatile. Factors affecting our common share price include:

¢ fluctuations in our operating results

* announcements of technological innovations or new commercial products by us, our collaborators or our competitors;
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* published reports by securities analysts;

* the progress of our and our collaborators’ clinical trials, including our and our collaborators® ability to produce clinical
supplies of our product candidates on a timely basis and in sufficient quantities to meet our clinical trial requirements;

» governmental regulation and changes in medical and pharmaceutical product reimbursement policies;
* developments in patent or other intellectual property rights;

* publicity concerning discovery and development activities by our licensees;

* public concern as to the safety and efficacy of drugs that we and our competitors develop; and

» general market conditions.

Future sales of our common shares by us or by our existing shareholders could cause our share price to fall.

Additional equity financings or other share issuances by us could adversely affect the market price of our common shares.
Sales by existing shareholders of a large number of shares of our common stock in the public market and the sale of shares
issued in connection with strategic alliances, or the perception that such additional sales could occur, could cause the
market price of our common shares to drop.

Qur cash flow may not be sufficient to cover interest payments on the secured convertible debentures or to repay the
debentures at maturity.

Our ability to make interest payments, if required to be paid in cash, and to repay at maturity or refinance our prime +1%
convertible debentures due in 2009 will depend on our ability to generate sufficient cash or refinance them. We have never
generated positive annual cash flow from our operating activities, and we may not generate or sustain positive cash flows
from operations in the future. Qur ability to generate sufficient cash flow will depend on our ability, or the ability of our
strategic partners, to successfully develop and obtain regulatory approval for new products and to successfully market these
products, as well as the results of our research and development efforts and other factors, including general economic,
financial, competitive, legislative and regulatory conditions, many of which are outside of our control.

Conversion of the secured convertible debemtures will dilute the ownership interest of existing shareholders.

The conversion of some or all of the convertible debentures will dilute the ownership interests of existing shareholders. Any
sales in the public market of the common shares issuable upon such conversion could adversely affect prevailing market
prices af our common shares. In addition, the existence of the secured convertible debentures may encourage short selling
by market participants.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company pericdically reviews its financial reporting and disclosure practices and accounting policies to ensure that
they provide accurate and transparent information relative to the current economic and business environment. As part of
this process, the Company has reviewed its selection, application and communication of critical accounting policies and
financial disclosures. Management has discussed the development and selection of the critical accounting policies with the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosure relating to critical
accounting policies in this Management's Discussion and Analysis. Other important accounting polices are described in
note 2 of the Financial Statements.
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Drug Development Costs

We incur costs related to the research and development of pharmaceutical products and technologies for the management
of cancer. These costs include internal and external costs for preclinical research and clinical trials, drug costs, regulatory
compliance costs and patent application costs. All research costs are expensed as incurred as required under GAAP

Development costs, including the cost of drugs for use in clinical trials, are expensed as incurred unless they meet the
criteria under GAAP for deferral and amortization. The Company continually assesses its activities to determine when, if
ever, development costs may qualify for capitalization. By expensing the research and development costs as required under
GAAP, the value of the product portfolio is not reflected on the Company’s Financial Statements.

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2003, the amended CICA Handbook, Section 3870 — Stock-Based Compensation and Other Stock-Based
Payments required companies to measure and expense all equity instruments awarded to employees. We adopted the new
recommendation effective June 1. 2004 retroactively, without restatement. As such, we have applied the fair value based
method to expense stock options awarded since June 1, 2002 using the Bfack-Scholes option-pricing model as allowed
under Section 3870. The model estimates the fair value of fully transferable options, without vesting restrictions, which
significantly differs from the stock option awards issued by Lorus. The model also requires four highly subjective
assumptions including future stock price volatility and expected time until exercise, which greatly affect the
calculated values. The increase or decrease of one of these assumptions could materially increase or decrease the fair value
of stock options issued and the associated expense.

Valuation Allowance for Future Tax Assets

We have a net tax benefit resulting from non-capital losses carried forward, and scientific research and experimental
development expenditures. In light of the recent net losses and uncertainty regarding our future ability to generate taxable
income, management is of the opinion that it not more likely than not that these tax assets will be realized in the
foreseeable future and hence, a full valuation allowance has been recorded against these income tax assets. Consequently.
no future income tax assets or liabilities are recorded on the balance sheets. The generation of future taxable income could
result in the recognition of some portion or all of these benefits which could result in a material improvement in our results
of operations through the recovery of future income taxes.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

We periodically review the useful lives and the carrying values of our long-lived assets. We review for impairment in long-
lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable. If the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of
an asset is less than its carrying amount, it is considered to be impaired. An impairment loss is measured at the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value; which is estimated as the expected future cash flows
discounted at a rate commensurate with the risks associated with the recovery of the asset.

ACCOUNTING POLICY CHANGES

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective June 1, 2004, the Company adopted the fair value method of accounting for stock options granted to employees
on or after June 1, 2002 as required by the CICA Section 3870. The change was adopted retroactively without restatement
as permitted under the revised section.

Under the fair value method, the estimated fair value of stock options granted is recognized over the service period, that
is, the applicable vesting period, as a charge to stock compensation expense and a credit to stock options. When options
granted on or after June 1, 2002 are exercised, the proceeds received and the related amounts in stock options are credited
to share capital. For options granted prior to June 1, 2002, the Company continues to provide pro forma disclosure of the
effect of the fair value method on the net loss and net loss per share. When options granted prior to June 1. 2002 are
exercised, the proceeds are credited to share capital. The impact to the financial statements arising from adoption of the
fair value method was an increase to the deficit and stock option balances of $2.8 million at June 1, 2004.

We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to calculate the fair value of the stock options granted, modified, or settled.
Any changes in the underlying assumptions used in the Black-Schales option pricing model could impact earnings.



LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC. > < ANNUAL REPORT 2005 > 21 >

Financial Instruments
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments. amounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about the
financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Financial instruments potentially exposing the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash
equivalents and short-term investments. The Company mitigates this risk by investing in high grade fixed income securities.

The carrying values of the convertible debentures approximate their fair values. The interest rate fluctuates as prime
fluctuates and the carrying values are being accreted to face value over the term of the convertible debentures such that
they will be recorded at their full value if and when they become due and payable.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Variable Interest Entities

In July 2004, the CICA amended Accounting Guideline AcG-15, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”, to provide
guidance for applying the principles in Handbook Section 1590, "Subsidiaries”, to certain entities. It is effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after November 1, 2004.

The Company has determined that adoption of this standard will not have a material effect on its consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Financial Instruments ~ Disclosure and Presentation

in November 2003, CICA Handbock Section 3860, Financial Instruments ~ Disclosure and Presentation, was amended to
require that certain obligations that may be settled at the issuer’s option in cash or the equivalent value by a variable
number of the issuer's own equity instruments be presented as a liability. The amendments to Section 3860 are effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after November 1, 2004,

The Company has determined that adoption of this standard will not have a material effect on its consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows,

Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement

In January 2005, the CICA released new Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement,
effective for annual and interim periods beginning on or after October 1, 2006. This new section prescribes when a financial
instrument is to be recognized on the balance sheet and at what amount, sometimes using fair value and other times using
cost-based measures. It also specifies how financial instrument gains and losses are to be presented and defines financial
instruments to include accounts receivable and payable, loans, investments in debt and equity securities, and
derivative contracts,

The Company has not yet determined the impact of the adoption of this standard on the consolidated results of operations
or financial position.

Comprehensive Income and Equity

In January 2005, the CICA released new Handbook Section 1530, Comprehensive Income, and Section 3251, Equity,
effective for annual and interim periods beginning on or after October 1, 2006. Section 1530 establishes standards for
reporting comprehensive income. The section does not address issues of recognition or measurement for comprehensive
income and its components. Section 3251 establishes standards for the presentation of equity and changes in equity during
the reporting period. The requirements in this section are in addition to Section 1530.

The Company has not yet determined the impact of the adoption of this standard on the presentation of the consolidated
results of operations or financial position.
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Non-Monetary Transactions

In June 2005, the CICA released a new Handbook Section 3831, Non-monetary Transactions, effective for fiscal periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2006. This standard requires all non-monetary transactions to be measured at fair value
unless they meet one of four very specific criteria.

Commercial substance replaces culmination of the earnings process as the test for fair value measurement. A transaction
has commercial substance if it causes an identifiable and measurable change in the economic circumstances of the entity.
Commercial substance is a function of the cash flows expected by the reporting entity.

The Company has determined that this standard will not have any impact to the Company's consolidated financial
statements.

SELECTED ANNUAL FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data have been derived from, and should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2005 which are prepared in
accordance with Canadian GAAP.

Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit
(amounts in 000’ except for per common share data)

(Canadian Dollars) Years ended May 31

2005 2004 2003

REVENUE $ 6 $ 608 $ 66
EXPENSES
Cost of sales 1 28 55
Research and development 14,394 26,785 12,550
General and administrative 5,348 4,915 4,290
Stock-based compensation 1,475 (43) 674
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets 564 463 286
Operating expenses a7 s 17855
Interest expense 300 - -
Accretion in carrying value of secured

convertible debentures 426 - -
Amortization of deferred financing charges 84 - -
Interest income (524) (1,239) (1.155)
;_;s-s_f;;;h_e_;e_r;o:j ——— — it ii_o T _30’30] ._._._,_._._._..].g,.s,g;_
Basic and diluted loss per common share s o013 § o018  $ o012
Weighted average number of common shares =

outstanding used in the calculation of

basic and diluted loss per share 17212 171,628 144,590
Total Assets $ 27566 $ 34424 § 34,255
;o.tzl. |:-,n _gt;"; h;.blTl.tle_s ............................... s_. ]_0' ;|2 _______ T St $ ——m
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QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain unaudited consolidated statements of operations data for each of the eight most
recent fiscal quarters that, in management’s opinion, have been prepared on a basis consistent with the audited
consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this annual report and include all adjustments, consisting only of
normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the information presented,

During the second quarter ended November 30, 2003 we recognized revenue from a licensing agreement Lorus entered
into with Cyclacel Ltd. in connection with the out-licensing of our Clotrimazole analog library of anticancer drug candidates.
The agreement included an initial license fee of $546 thousand with the potential of additional license fees of up to
$11.6 million that may be earned if Cyclacel achieves certain defined research and development milestones.

Research and development expenses have decreased since February 29, 2004 due to the wind down of our Phase Il
Virulizin® clinical trial which reached full enrollment in the three months ended August 31, 2004 and achieved last patient
visit in July 2005. In addition, during 2004 we incurred procurement costs for the manufacture of GT1-2040 and GTI-2501
for which we continue to have a sufficient supply on hand.

Interest income has continued to decline in line with our lower cash and short-term investment balance.

(amounts in 000 except for per common share data)
(Canadian Dollars)
Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended

May 31 Feb 28 Nov 30 Aug 3} May 31 feb 29 Nov 30  Aug 31
2005 2005 2004 2004 2004 2004 2003 2003

Revenue $ - 3 303 1 % 2 3 2 % 2 % 575 % 29
Research and

Development 2.332 3,175 3,838 5,049 6.596 7340 5,586 7263
Ceneral and

Administrative 1,506 1,484 1,333 1,025 1,498 1,010 1,176 1,231
Interest income V27 116 136 145 234 298 314 393
Net loss (4.598)  (5.274)  (5.945) (6,245) (7.973) (8,159) (5.998) (8.171)
Basic and diluted

net loss per share $ (0.03) $ (0.03) $ (0.03) % (0.04) 3 (0.05) 3% (0.05) % (0.03) § (0.05)

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

As at August 11, 2005, the Company had 172,622,386 common shares issued and outstanding. In addition, the Company
had issued and outstanding, 9,689,208 stock options to purchase an equal number of common shares, 3,000,000
warrants to purchase an equal number of common shares of Lorus at an exercise price of $1.00 per share and a $15 million
convertible debenture convertible into common shares of Lorus at $1.00 per share.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements contained herein that are not based on historical fact, including without limitation statements containing the
words “believes”, “may”, “likely”, “plans’, “will", "estimate’, “continue’, “anticipates’, “intends’, “expects” and similar
expressions, constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act

of 1995.

Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the
actual results, events or developments to be materially different from any future results, events or developments expressed
or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, without limitation, changing market conditions, our
ability to obtain patent protection and protect our intellectual property rights, commercialization limitations imposed by
intellectual property rights owned or controlled by third-parties, intellectual property liability rights and liability claims
asserted against us, the successful and timely completion of clinical studies, the impact of competitive products and pricing,
new product development, uncertainties related to the regulatory approval process, product development delays, our ability
to attract and retain business partners and key personnel, future levels of government funding, cur ability to obtain the
capital required for research, operations and marketing and other risks detailed from time-to-time in the Company's
ongoing quarterly filings, annual information forms and annual reports.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to Lorus, including Lorus” 2005 annual information form and other disclosure documents,
is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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management’s responsibility for financial reporting >

The accompanying censolidated financial statements and ail information in this annual report have been prepared by management
and have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and include
amounts that are based on the best estimates and judgments of management. Financial information presented in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles elsewhere in the annual report is consistent with that in the financial
statements.

In discharging its responsibility for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management maintains a system of internal
controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized. assets are safeguarded and proper records
are maintained. Management believes that the internal controls provide reasonable assurance that financial records are reliable and
form a proper basis for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, and that assets are properly accounted for and
safeguarded. The internal control process includes management’s communication to employees of policies that govern ethical
business conduct.

The Board of Directors, through an Audit Committee, oversees management’s responsibilities for financial reporting. This
committee, which consists of three independent directors, reviews the audited consolidated financial statements, and recommends
the financial statements to the Board for approval. Other key responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
adequacy of the Company's existing internal controls, audit process and financial reporting with management and the external
auditors,

These financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP. who are independent auditors appointed by the shareholders of the
Company upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee. Their report follows. The independent auditors have free and full
access to the Audit Committee with respect to their findings concerning the fairness of financial reporting and the adequacy of
internal controls.

Yo PRt~ 2 RN

Jim A. Wright, Patl Yan Damme,
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

August 11, 2005

auditors’ report to the shareholders >

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. as at May 31, 2005 and 2004 and the consolidated
statements of loss and deficit and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2005 and the related
consolidated statements of loss and deficit and cash flows for the period from inception on September 5. 1986 to May 31, 2005.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.

In our apinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
as at May 31, 2005 and 2004 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended May 31, 2005 and for the period from inception on September 5, 1986 to May 31, 2005 in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles.

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles vary in certain significant respects from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Information relating to the nature and effect of such differences is presented in note 16
to the consalidated financial statements.

We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. for the period from inception on September 5,
1986 to May 31, 1994, Those consolidated financial statements were audited by other auditors who issued a report without
reservation on July 8, 1994,

Kfms
T

Chartered Accountants,
Toronto, Canada

August 11, 2005
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(amounts in 000's} (Canadian Dollars)

As at May 31
_ 2005 2004
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,776 % 1,071
Short-tarm investments 18,683 25,657
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,126 1,697
22,585 28,425
Long-term
Fixed assets (note 4} 1,581 1,47)
Deferred financing charges (note 11) 568 -
Goodwill 606 606
Acquired patents and licenses {note 5) 2,226 3,922
4,981 5,999
$ 27566 $ 34,424
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable $ 1,069 $ 2,429
Accrued liabilities 3.019 3,396
4,088 5,825
Long-term
Secured convertible debentures {note 11) 10,212 -
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital (note &)
Common shares 144,119 143,670
Equity portion of secured convertible debentures (note 11} 3,814 -
Stock options (notes 3 and 7) 4,252 -
Contributed surplus (note 6 (a)) 6,733 1,003
Warrants (notes 6(c) and 11) 991 4,325
Compensation options {note 6(c}) - 1,405
Deficit accumulated during development stage (146,643) (121,804)
13,266 28,599

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
Basis of Presentation (note 1}

Commitments and Guarantees (note 12)

Canada and United States Accounting Policy Differences (note 16)

On behalf of the Board:

Tz Qe PR

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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{amounts in 000's except for per common share data) (Canadian Dollars)
Years ended May 3]

Period from
inception
Sept. 5, 1986 to
2005 2004 2003 May 31, 2005
REVENUE (note 15} _ $ 6 $ 608 $ 66 $ 680
EXPENSES
Cost of sales 1 28 55 84
Research and development {note 9) 14,394 26,785 12,550 100,238
Ceneral and administrative 5,348 4,915 4,290 43,141
Stock-based compensation (note 7) 1,475 {43) 674 5,545
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets 564 463 286 8,052
Operating expenses 21,782 32,148 17,855 157,060
Interest expense (note 11) 300 - - 300
Accretion in carrying value of secured
convertible debentures (note 11) 426 - - 426
Amortization of deferred financing charges {note 11} 84 - - 84
Interest income (524) (1.239) {1,155) (10,547)
Loss for the period 22,062 30,300 16,634 146,643
Deficit, beginning of period (as previously reported) 121,804 91,503 74,869 -
Impact of change in accounting for stock
based compensation (note 3} 2,777 - - -
Deficit, beginning of period (as restated) 124,581 91,503 74,869 -
Deficit, end of period $ 146,643 $ 121,804 91,503 $ 146,643

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding used in the calculation of
basic and diluted loss per share 172,12 171,628 144,590

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements
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{amounts in 00%) (Canadian Dollars)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Lass for the period

Add items not requiring a current outlay of cash:
Stock-based compensation (note 7)
Interest expense (note 11)
Accretion in carrying value of secured

convertible debentures (note 1)

Amortization of deferred financing charges (note 11)
Depreciation, amortization and write-down of fixed assets
Other

Net change in non-cash working capital balances
related to operations {note 10)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Maturity {purchase) of short-term investments, net
Business acquisition, net of cash received

Acquired patents and licenses

Additions to fixed assets

Cash proceeds on sale of fixed assets

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issuance of debentures, net (note 11)

Issuance of warrants, net

Issuance of common shares

Additions to deferred fnancing charges {rote 11)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
__during the penod

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements

Years ended May 31

Period from
incepticn
Sept. 5, 1986 to
2005 2004 2003 May 31, 2005
$ (22,062) $ (30,301) $ (16,634) $ (146,643)
1,475 (43) 674 5,545
300 - - 300
426 - - 426
84 - - 84
2,260 2,166 2,033 18,387
(38) 245 - 706
(1,166) (129) 2,019 2,055
(18,721} (28,062) (11,908) (n9, 141)
6.974 (1,438) 12,438 (18,683)
- - - (539)
- - - (715)
(599) (383) (1,260) (5,974)
- - - 348
6,375 (1.821) 1,178 (25.563)
12,948 - - 12,948
991 4,537 - 37405
nz 25,512 715 97.371
- - (245) (245)
14 051 30,049 470 147,479
1,705 166 (260) 2,776
1,071 305 1,165 -
$ 2776 $ 1.0N1 $ 905 $ 2776
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notes to consolidated financial statements >

For the years ended May 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Lorus Therapeutics Inc. {"Lorus” or the “Company”) is a biopharmaceutical company specializing in the research,
development and commercialization of pharmaceutical products and technologies for the management of cancer. With
products in various stages of evaiuation, from preclinical through to Phase Il trials, Lorus develops therapeutics that
seek to manage cancer with efficacious low-toxicity compounds that improve patients’ quality of life.

Future Operations

The Company has not earned substantial revenues from its drug candidates and is therefore considered to be in the
development stage. The continuation of the Company's research and development activities and the commercialization
of the targeted therapeutic products are dependent upon the Company’s ability to successfully finance and complete
its research and development programs.

The Company’s future operations is highly dependent upon the outcome of the Phase Il trial of its lead product,
Virulizin®. Should the trial prove successful, the Company will pursue regufatory approval and subsequent
commercialization of Virulizin®. The Company’s commercialization efforts are dependent upon its ability to raise
additional financing through a combination of equity or debt financing, or payments from strategic partners. Should
the Company’s ability to raise additional financial support be delayed, management believes the Company’s current
level of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments are sufficient to fund planned expenditures for the next
twelve months.

In the event the result of the Phase Il trial does not warrant efforts to commercialize Virulizin® at the present time, the
Company will be required to re-evaluate its business operations and to reduce expenditures. Should commercialization
not be pursued, management believes that the Company's current level of cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments is sufficient to fund the planned expenditures for the next twelve months.

SICNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lorus, its 80% owned subsidiary, NuChem
Pharmaceuticals Inc. ("NuChem”), and its wholly owned subsidiary, GeneSense Technologies Inc. {“CeneSense”) which
are both located in Canada. The results of operations for acquisitions are included in these consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated
on consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Canada and comply, in all material respects, with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, except as disclosed in note 16, “Canada and United States Accounting Policy Differences.”

Revenue Recognition
Revenue includes product sales revenue, license revenue and royalty revenue.

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred, the Company's price to the customer is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. The
Company allows customers to return preduct within a specified period of time before and after its expiration date.
Provisions for these returns are estimated based on historical return and exchange levels.

License fees are comprised of initial fees and milestone payments derived from a worldwide exclusive license agreement.
Non-refundable license fees are recognized when the Company has no further involvement or obligation to perform
under the arrangement, the fee is fixed and determinable and collection of the amount is reasonably assured. Future
non-refundable milestone payments receivable upon the achievement of third-party performance are recognized upon
the achievement of specified milestones when collection of the milestone payment is reasonably assured and the
Company has no further significant involvement or obligation to perform under the arrangement.
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The Company earns royalties from its distributor. Royalties from the distribution agreement are recognized when the
amounts are reasonably determinable and collection is reasonably assured.

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments
Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase.

Short-term investments, which consist of fixed income securities with a maturity of more than three months, are
recorded at their accreted value as they are held to maturity instruments. The Company invests in high quality fixed
income government (2005 - $3,229,000, 2004 - $3,811,000) and corporate (2005 - $15,452,000, 2004 -
$21,846,000) instruments with low credit risk. All investments held at year-end approximate fair value, mature within
one-year and are denominated in Canadian dollars.

Inventory

The Company purchases drugs for resale and for research and clinical development. Drugs purchased for use in research
and clinical development are expensed as purchased. Drugs purchased for resale are recorded as inventory and valued
at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The Company records depreciation
and amortization at rates which are expected to charge operations with the cost of the assets over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Furniture and equipment straight line over three to five-years
Leasehold improvements straight line over the lease term

Research and Development

Research costs are charged to expense as incurred. Development costs, including the cost of drugs for use in clinical
trials, are expensed as incurred unless they meet the criteria under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
for deferral and amortization. No development costs have been deferred to date.

Goodwill and Acquired Patents and Licenses

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired in the
GeneSense business combination. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is tested for impairment on an annual
basis and at any other time if an event occurs or circumstances change that would indicate that impairment may exist.
When the carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to the excess.

Intangible assets with finite lives acquired in a business combination or other transaction are amortized over their
estimated useful lives which have been assessed as seven years.

The Company capitalized the cost of acquired patent and license assets on the acquisitions of GeneSense and the
NuChem compounds. The nature of this asset is such that it is categorized as an intangible asset with a finite life. The
carrying value of acquired research and development assets does not necessarily reflect its present or future value. The
amount recoverable is dependent upon the continued advancement of the drugs through research, clinical trials and
ultimately to commercialization. It is not possible to predict the outcome of future research and development programs.

The Company has identified no impairment refating to goodwill and intangible assets for 2005 and 2004.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically reviews the useful lives and the carrying values of its long-lived assets. The Company reviews
for impairment in long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets may not be recoverable. If the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use
and eventual disposition of an asset is less than its carrying amount, it is considered to be impaired. An impairment
loss is measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value, which is estimated as
the expected future cash flows discounted at a rate proportionate with the risks associated with the recovery of
the asset.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has a stock-based compensation plan described in note 7. Prior to June 1, 2004, stock-based awards
granted to employees were accounted for using the intrinsic method with the exception of options with contingent
vesting criteria for which the variable accounting method was used. On June 1, 2004, the Company adopted the fair
value method of accounting for stock-based awards to employees, officers and directors granted or modified after
June 1, 2004. The change was adopted retroactively without restatement {note 3).
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Stock options and warrants awarded to non-employees are accounted for using the fair value method and expensed as
the service or product is received. Consideration paid on the exercise of stock options and warrants is credited to
capital stock.

The Company has a deferred share unit plan that provides directors the alternative of receiving payment for their
services in the form of share units rather than common shares or cash. Share units entitle the directors to elect to
receive, on termination of their services to the Company, an equivalent number of common shares, or the cash
equivalent of the market value of the common shares at that future date. The Company records an expense and a
liability equal to the market value of the shares to be issued. The accumulated liability is adjusted for market
fluctuations on a quarterly basis.

Comman shares issued under the Alternate Compensation Plan are accounted for using the fair value of the common
shares on the day they are granted.

Investment Tax Credits

The Company is entitled to Canadian federal and provincial investment tax credits, which are earned as a percentage
of eligible research and development expenditures incurred in each taxation year. Investment tax credits are accounted
for as a reduction of the related expenditure for items of a current nature and a reduction of the related asset cost for
items of a long-term nature, provided that the Company has reasonable assurance that the tax credits will be realized.
The amounts recognized as a reduction to research and development expense total $400 thousand (2004 -
$180 thousand, 2003 - $355 thousand).

income Taxes

Income taxes are reported using the asset and liability method. Under this method, future tax assets and liabilities are
recorded for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the consolidated financial statement
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and operating loss and research and
development expenditure carryforwards. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantially
enacted tax rates expected to apply when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. The effect on future tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that enactment or substantive enactment
occurs. A valuation allowance is recorded for the portion of the future tax assets where the realization of any value
is uncertain, for which management has deemed to be 100% of the assets available.

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per common share is calculated by dividing the net loss by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted loss per common share is calculated by dividing the loss by the sum of the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding and the dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding
during the year. Common equivalent shares consist of the shares issuable upon exercise of stock options and warrants
calculated using the treasury stock method. Common equivalent shares are not included in the calculation of
the weighted average number of shares outstanding for diluted net loss per common share when the effect would
be antidilutive.

Deferred Financing Charges
Deferred financing charges, comprised primarily of legal costs, represent costs related to the issuance of the Company's
convertible debentures. Deferred financing charges are amortized over the five-year term of the convertible debentures.

Segmented Information

The Company is organized and operates as one operating segment, the research, development and commercialization
of pharmaceuticals. Substantially all of the Company's identifiable assets as at May 31, 2005 and 2004 are located
in Canada.

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars at rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the rates on the balance sheet dates. Gains or losses
resulting from these transactions are accounted for in the loss for the period and are not significant.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (CAAP)
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reparted amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Significant estimates
include the valuation of the convertible debentures, the fair value of stock options granted and warrants issued and the
useful lives of capital and intangible assets.
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Recent Canadian Accounting Pronouncements

Variable Interest Entities

In July 2004, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA") amended Accounting Guideline AcG-15,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”, to provide guidance for applying the principles in Handbook Section 1590,
“Subsidiaries”, to certain entities. The Guideline is effective for the fiscal years beginning on or after November 1, 2004,

The Company has determined that adoption of this standard will not have a material effect on its consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Financial instruments — Disclosure and Presentation

In November 2003, CICA Handbook Section 3860, “Financial Instruments — Disclosure and Presentation”, was
amended to require that certain obligations that may be settled at the issuer’s option in cash or the equivalent value
by a variable number of the issuer's own equity instruments be presented as a liability. The amendments to Section
3860 are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after November 1, 2004,

The Company has determined that adoption of this standard will not have a material effect on its consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows,

Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement

In January 2005, the CICA released new Handbook Section 3855, “Financial Instruments — Recognition and
Measurement”, effective for annual and interim periods beginning on or after October 1, 2006. This new section
prescribes when a financial instrument is to be recognized on the balance sheet and at what amount, sometimes using
fair value and other times using cost-based measures. It also specifies how financial instrument gains and losses are to
be presented and defines financial instruments to include accounts receivable and payable, loans, investments in debt
and equity securities, and derivative contracts.

The Company has not yet determined the impact of the adoption of this standard on its consolidated results of
operations or financial position.

Comprehensive Income and Equity

In January 2005, the CICA released new Handbook Section 1530, “Comprehensive Income”, and Section 3251, “Equity”,
effective for annual and interim periods beginning on or after October 1, 2006. Section 1530 establishes standards for
reperting comprehensive income. The section does not address issues of recognition or measurement for
comprehensive income and its components, Section 3251 establishes standards for the presentation of equity and
changes in equity during the reporting period. The requirements in this section are in addition to Section 1530.

The Company has not yet determined the impact of the adoption of these standards on the presentation of its results
of operations or financial position,

Non-Monetary Transactions

In June 2005, the CICA released a new Handbook Section 3831, Non-monetary Transactions, effective for fiscal periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2006. This standard requires all non-monetary transactions to be measured at fair
value unless they meet one of four very specific criteria.

Commercial substance replaces culmination of the earnings process as the test for fair value measurement, A
transaction has commercial substance if it causes an identifiable and measurable change in the economic circumstances
of the entity. Commercial substance is a function of the cash flows expected by the reporting entity.

The Company has determined that this standard will not have any impact to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective June 1, 2004, the Company adopted the fair value method of accounting for stock options granted to
employees on or after june 1, 2002 as required by the amended CICA Handbook Section 3870, “Stock-Based
Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments™ {“Section 3870"). The change was adopted retroactively without
restatement as permitted under the revised section.

Under the fair value method, the estimated fair value of stock options granted is recognized over the service period,
that is, the applicable vesting period, as stock-based compensation expense and a credit to stock options. When
options granted on or after June 1, 2002 are exercised, the proceeds received and the related amounts in stock options
are credited to share capital. For options granted prior to June 1, 2002, the Company continues to provide pro forma
disclosure of the effect of the fair value method on the net loss and net loss per share. When options granted prior to
June 1, 2002 are exercised, the proceeds are credited to share capital. The impact to the financial statements arising
from adoption of the fair value method was an increase to the deficit and stock option balances presented in
shareholders’ equity of $2.8 million at June 1, 2004.
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Asset Retirement Obligations

Effective June 1, 2004, the Company adopted CICA Handbook Section 3110, “Asset Retirement Obligations”, which
harmonize Canadian GAAP with SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. This Section establishes
standards for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of liabilities for asset retirement obligations and the
associated retirement costs. This Section applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of a tangible
long-lived asset that result from its acquisition, construction, development, or normal operation. The adoption of
Section 3110 had no material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

. FIXED ASSETS

As at May 31 (amounts in 000%) 2005
Accumulated Carrying
Cost  Amortization Value
Furniture and equipment $ 2,575 $ 1,517 $ 1,058
Leasehold improvements 908 385 523
End of year $ 3,483 $ 1,902 $ 1,581
2004
Accumulated Carrying
Cost  Amortization Value
Furniture and equipment $ 1,977 $ 1,180 $ 797
Leasehold improvements 907 233 674
End of year $ 2,884 $ 1413 $ 1.4

During the year, a write-down of $75 thousand was taken on certain furniture and equipment whose carrying value was
in excess of the estimated future undiscounted cash flows and therefore deemed to be unrecoverable. The impairment
charge was reported in the consolidated statements of loss and deficit in depreciation and amortization of fixed assets.

. ACQUIRED PATENTS AND LICENSES

As at May 31 (amounts in 0005) 2005 2004
Cost $ 12,228 $12.228
Accumulated amortization {10,002) (8.306)

$ 2226 $ 3,922

Amortization of $1.7 million (2004 - $1.7 million, 2003 - $1.7 million) has been included in research and development
expense reported in the consolidated statements of loss and deficit.
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6. SHARE CAPITAL

{a) Continuity of Common Shares and Warrants

(amounts and units in 000’s) Common Shares Warrants
Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at May 31, 2002 144,412 $ M8,165 - $ -
Exercise of stock options 873 715 - -
Stock-based compensation - 558 - -
Balance at May 31, 2003 145,285 119,438 - -
Share issuance 26,220 24121 13,110 4,325
Exercise of stock options 289 171 - -
Stock-based compensation - (88) - -
Other - 28 - -
Balance at May 31, 2004 171,794 143,670 13.110 4,325
Interest payments (note 11) 421 300 - -
Issuance under ACP (note 6 (b)) 50 37
Exercise of stock options 276 n2 - -
Convertible debentures (note 11} - - 3,000 9291
Warrants expiry (note 6 {c)} - - (13,110) (4,325)
Balance at May 31, 2005 172,541 $ 144,119 3,000 $ 99

Contributed Surplus

As at May 31 (amounts in 000') 2005 2004 2003
Beginning of year $ 1,003 $ 1,003 $ 1,003
Expiry of warrants (note 6 {c)} 4,325 - -
Expiry of compensation options (note 6 (<)) 1,405 - -
End of year $ 6,733 $ 1,003 $ 1,003

(b} Alternate Compensation Plans (*ACP")
In 2000, the Company established a compensation plan for directors and officers, which allows the Company, in certain
circumstances, to issue commen shares to pay directors’ fees or performance bonuses of officers in lieu of cash. The
number of common shares reserved for issuance under this plan is 2,500,000. Since inception, 121,000 shares
have been issued under this plan. For the year ended May 31, 2005, 50,000 shares were issued under this plan
(2004 - nil, 2003 - nil).

The Company also established a deferred share unit plan that provides directors the option of receiving payment for
their services in the form of share units rather than common shares or cash. Share units entitle the directors to elect
to receive, on termination of their services to the Company, an equivalent number of common shares, or the cash
equivalent of the market value of the common shares at that future date. The share units are granted based on
the market value of the common shares on the date of issue. As at May 31, 2005, 95,708 deferred share units
have been issued (2004 - 68,183, 2003 - 45,964), with a cash value of $71 thousand (2004 — $57 thousand,
2003 - $58 thousand) being recorded in accrued liabilities.

(¢} Share Issuance

On June 11, 2003, the Company raised gross proceeds of $3.3 million by way of a public offering of 26,220,000 units
at a price of $1.25 per unit. Each unit consists of one common share and one-half of one purchase warrant. Each whole
warrant entitled the holder to purchase a common share at a price of $1.75 at any time on or before December 10,
2004. In addition, the Company issued 1,835,400 compensation options with a fair value of $1.5 million for services
in connection with the completion of the offering. Each compensation option entitled the holder to acquire one unit
for $1.27 at any time on or before December 10, 2004. The Company incurred expenses of $4.4 million for the
issuance, which include the non-cash charge of $1.5 million being the fair value of the compensation option.
The Company alfocated $4.4 million of the net proceeds to the warrants, $1.4 million to the compensation option and
$24,121,000 to share capital.

On December 10, 2004 the warrants and options described above expired without being exercised. The expiry of these
warrants and options had no impact on earnings or the net balance of shareholders’ equity.
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{d) Employee Share Purchase Plan (“ESPP”}

(a)

The Company’'s ESPP was established January 1, 2005. The purpose of the ESPP is to assist the Company in retaining
the services of its employees, to secure and retain the services of new employees and to provide incentives for such
persons to exert maximum efforts for the success of the Company. The ESPP provides a means by which employees of
the Company and its affiliates may purchase common stock of the company at a discount through accumulated payroll
deductions. Generally, each offering is of three months’ duration with purchases occurring every month. Participants
may authorize payroll deductions of up to 15% of their base compensation for the purchase of common stock under
the ESPP. At May 31, 2005, a total of 106,339 common shares have been purchased under the ESPF. and Lorus has
recognized an expense of $16 thousand related to this plan in the financial statements.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Effective June 1, 2004, the Company adopted the fair value-based method of accounting for employee stock options
granted on or after June 1, 2002. The Company adopted this new accounting policy retroactively without restatement
as allowed for under the transitional provisions of Section 3870.

For the year ended May 31, 2005, $1.5 million of stock compensation expense was recognized, representing the
amortization of stock compensation expense applicable to the current period of the estimated fair value of options
granted since June 1, 2002 which included an additional compensation expense of 5208 thousand due to the
shareholder approved amendment of the 1993 Stock Option Plan to extend the life of options from five years to
10 years. This additional expense represents the incremental value conveyed to holders of the options as a result of
extending the life of the opticns. For the year ended May 31, 2005, stock option expense of $1.5 million was allocated
$445 thousand to research and development and $1.0 million to general and administrative expense.

The following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine the fair value of stock
options granted during the period:

2005 2004 2003
Risk-free interest rate 2.25-3.00% 2.25-3.05% 3.20-3.50%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 70-90% 89% NM0%
Expected life of options 1-5 years 5 years 5 years
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 0.54 $0.74 $£0.75

The Company has assumed no forfeiture rate as adjustments for actual forfeitures are made in the year they occur.

(b) Stock Option Plan

Under the Company's stock option plan, options may be granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants of
the Company to purchase up to 20,582,081 common shares. Options are granted at the fair market value of the
common shares on the date of grant. Options vest at various rates and have a term of 10 years. Stock option
transactions for the three years ended May 31, 2005 are summarized as follows:

Stock Option Transactions

2005 2004 2003

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average

Options exercise Options exercise Options exercise

__________________ {000's) price (00Q’s) prics_r__‘__(A[:JOO's) price
Outstanding at

beginning of year 6,372 $ 1.05 5,378 $ 105 5,425 $ 7

Granted 3173 $077 2,629 $ 116 2,613 $072

Exercised (276) $ 0.40 (289) $ 059 (873) 30283

Forfeited (1,234) $ 1.05 (1.346) $ 129 (1.782) $ 101

Outstanding at end of year 8,035 $0.96 6,372 $ 105 5.378 $ 105
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at May 31, 2005:

Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted

average  Weighted Weighted
Options  remaining average Options average
Range of Outstanding contractual exercise exercisable exercise
Exercise prices (000's) life {years) price (0007) price
$0.33 to 30.49 275 5.62 $0.37 275 $ 037
$0.50 to $0.99 5218 8.04 $0.78 2,541 $0.79
$1.00 to $1.99 2,167 796 $122 1,537 $1.24
$2.00 to $2.50 375 539 $ 2.44 375 $ 2.44
8,035 7.81 $0.96 4,728 $ 1.04

{c) Pro Forma Information — Stock-Based Compensation
In periods prior to June 1, 2002, the Company recognized no compensation expense when stock options were granted
to employees.

For the year ended May 31, 2005, the pro forma compensation charge for stock options granted prior to June 1, 2002
was $27 thousand (2004 - $551 thousand, 2003 - $509 thousand). These amounts have no material impact on loss
per share figures.

8. INCOME TAXES

Income tax recoveries attributable to losses from operations differ from the amounts computed by applying the
combined Canadian federal and provincial income tax rates to pretax income from operations primarily as a result of the
provision of a valuation allowance on net future income tax benefits.

Significant components of the Company's future tax assets are as follows:

As at May 31 (amounts in 000'%s) 2005 2004
Non-capital foss carryforwards $ 23,081 $ 19,746
Research and development expenditures 20,436 17,613
Book over tax depreciation 1,529 1,307
Other 1,089 1,345
Future tax assets 46,135 40,01
Valuation allowance (46,135} (40,0m)
% - $ -

In assessing the realizable benefit from future tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the future tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of future tax assets is dependent
on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers projected future taxable income, uncertainties related to the industry in which the Company
operates and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Due to the Company's stage of development and
operations, and uncertainties related to the industry in which the Company operates, the tax benefit of the above
amounts has been completely offset by a valuation allowance.
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The Company has undeducted research and development expenditures, totaling $58.9 million for federal purposes
and, $52.8 million for provincial purposes and these can be carried forward indefinitely. In addition, the Company has
non-capital loss carryforwards of $62.7 million for federal purposes and $65.7 million for provincial purposes. To the
extent that the non-capital loss carryforwards are not used, they expire as follows:

Year of expiry (amountsin000s) ] N c_)rl-_c;ip_lt_all_o_ss_e_s_
2006 $ 3,468
2007 4,626
2008 4,985
2009 6.658
2010 8,279
20mn 1,131
2012 -
2013 -
2014 20,126
2015 13,476
$ 62,749
Income Tax Rate Reconciliation (amounts in 000') 2005 2004

Recovery of income taxes based on statutory rates $ (7971) $(11,008)
Expiry of losses 780 730
Change in valuation allowance 6.124 15,214
Non deductible accretion and stock-based compensation expense 687 -

Change in enacted tax rates - (4.541)
Other 380 5
$ - 3 -

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS
The Company's cancer drug research and development programs focus primarily on the following technology platforms:

{a) Immunotherapy
This clinical approach stimulates the body's natural defenses against cancer. The Company’s lead drug Virulizin® is
currently nearing the end of a global Phase il clinical trial for the treatment of pancreatic cancer.

(b) Antisense

Antisense drugs are genetic molecules that inhibit the production of disease-causing proteins. GTi-2040 and
GTI-2501, the Campany's lead antisense drugs, have shown preclinical anticancer activity across a broad range of
cancers and are currently in various Phase |} trials.

{c) Small Molecules

Anticancer activity was discovered with an antifungal agent Clotrimazole (“CLT"). Based on the structural feature found
to be responsible for the anticancer effect of CLT, chemical analogs of CLT have been designed and tested. In addition,
our library of Clotrimazole analogs has been licensed to Cyclacel Limited, as described in note 15.

Lorus scientists discovered novel low molecular weight compounds with anticancer and antibacterial activity in
preclinical investigations. Of particular interest were compounds that inhibit the growth of tumor celt lines, including
hepatocellular carcinoma, pancreatic carcinoma, ovarian carcinoma, breast adenocarcinoma and metastatic melanoma.
These compounds also demonstrated activity against multi-drug resistant bacteria which are responsible for a number
of life-threatening infections.

In addition to the above, Lorus has a number of other technologies under preclinical development, including a tumor
suppressor or gene therapy approach to inhibiting the growth of tumors.
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10.

1.

Years ended May 31

Period from
inception
Research and Development Sept 5,1986 to
{amounts in 000’) 2005 2004 2003 May 31, 2005
Immunotherapy
Expensed $ 1,891 $ 19,944 $ 7433 $ 68,756
Acquired - - - -
Antisense
Expensed 2,384 6,666 4,9M 27,259
Acquired - - - 11,000
Small Molecules
Expensed ne 175 206 4,223
Acquired - - - 1,228
Total expensed $ 14,394 $ 26,785 $12,550 $100,236
Total acquired $ - $ - b3 - $ 12,228
SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Changes in non-cash working capital balances for each of the periods ended are summarized as follows:
Years ended May 31
Period from
inception
Sept 5, 1986 to
(amounts in 000's} 2005 2004 2003 May 31, 2005
(Increase) decrease
Prepaid expenses and other assets $ 5N $  {593) b3 9N $  (549)
Increase (decrease)
Accounts payable {1,360} 1.m 876 (175)
Accrued liabilities (377} (647) 1,052 2,779
$ (1,166} $ (129) $ 2019 $ 2,055

During the year ended May 31, 2005, the Company received interest of $679 thousand {2004 - $1.2 million, 2003 -
$1.7 million}.

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

On October 6, 2004, the Company entered into a Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement”) to issue an aggregate
of $15.0 million of secured convertible debentures (the “debentures”} and 3,000,000 purchase warrants. The
debentures are secured by a first charge over all of the assets of the Company.

The Company received $4.4 million on October 6, 2004 (representing a $5.0 million debenture less an investor fee
representing 4% of the $15.0 million to be received under the Agreement), and 1,000,000 purchase warrants and
$5.0 million on each of January 14 and April 15, 2005. All debentures issued under this Agreement are due on
October 6, 2009 and are subject to interest payable monthly at a rate of prime +1% until such time as the Company's
share price reaches $1.75 for 60 consecutive trading days, at which time, interest will no longer be charged. Interest is
payable in common shares of Lorus until Lorus’ shares trade at a price of $1.00 or more after which interest will be
payable in cash or common shares at the option of the debenture holder. Common shares issued in payment of interest
will be issued at a price equal to the weighted average trading price of such shares for the ten trading days immediately
preceding their issue in respect of each interest payment. To May 31, 2005, the Company has issued 421,000 shares
in settlement of $300 thousand in interest.

The $15.0 million principal amount of debentures issued on October 6, 2004, January 14 and Aprif 15, 2005 is
convertible at the holder’s option at any time into common shares of the Company with a conversion price per share
of $1.00.

With the issuance of each $5.0 million debenture, the Company issued to the debt holder 1,000,000 purchase
warrants expiring October 6, 2009 to buy common shares of the Company at a price per share equal to $1.00.
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12.

The convertible debentures contain both a liability and an equity element, represented by the conversion option, and
therefore, under Canadian GAAP these two elements must be split and classified separately as debt and equity. In
addition, as nated above, the debenture holder received 1,000,000 purchase warrants on the issuance of each tranche
of convertible debt. The Company has allocated the total proceeds received from the issuance of the convertible
debentures to these three elements based on their relative fair values. The fair value of the purchase warrants has been
determined based on an option-pricing model. The fair value of the debt has been based on the discounted cash flows
using an estimated cost of borrowing of 15% to represent an estimate of what the Company may borrow secured debt
without a conversion option or purchase warrant. The convertible debenture conversion option was valued using a
trinomial model. The resulting allocation based on relative fair values resulted in the allocation of $3.8 million to the
debt instrument, $4.1 million to the conversion option and $1.1 million te the purchase warrants. The financing fees
totalling $1.1 million related to the issuance of the convertible debentures have been allocated pro rata between
deferred financing charges of $652 thousand, against the equity portion of the convertible debenture of
$322 thousand and against the purchase warrants of $87 thousand. This allocation resulted in net amounts allocated
to the equity portion of the convertible debentures and warrants of $3.8 million and $991 thousand respectively.
The financing charges are being amortized over the five-year life of the convertible debenture agreement and as at
May 31, 2005, the balance is $568 thousand.

Each reporting period, the Company is required to accrete the carrying value of the convertible debentures such that
at maturity on Qctober 6, 2009, the carrying value of the debentures will be their face value of $15.0 million. To date,
the Company has recognized $426 thousand in accretion expense. This accretion expense has increased the value of
the convertible debenture from $9.8 million to $10.2 million at May 31, 2005.

COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

(a} Operating Lease Commitments
The Company has entered into operating leases for premises under which it is obligated to make minimum annual
payments of approximately $136 thousand in 2006, $128 thousand in 2007 and $107 thousand in 2008.

During the year ended May 31, 2005, operating lease expenses were $136 thousand (2004 - $141 thousand,
2003 - $122 thousand).

(b) Other Contractual Commitments
In December 1997, the Company acquired certain patent rights and a sub-license to develop and commercialize the
anticancer application of certain compounds in exchange for:

(i) A 20% share interest in NuChem;
(i A payment of U.S. $350 thousand in shares of Lorus, and
{iiy Up to U.S. $3.5 million in cash.

To date, the Company has made cash payments of U.S. $500 thousand. The remaining balance of up to U.S.
$3.0 million remains payable upon the achievement of certain milestones based on the commencement and completion
of clinical trials. Additional amounts paid will be classified as acquired patents and licenses and will be amortized over
the estimated useful life of the licensad asset.

The Company holds an exclusive worldwide license from the University of Manitoba (the “University”) and Cancer Care
Manitoba {“CCM") to certain patent rights to develop and sublicense certain oligonuclectide technologies. In
consideration for the exclusive license of the patent rights, the University and CCM are entitled to an aggregate of
1.67% of the net sales received by the Company frem the sale of products or processes derived from the patent rights
and 1.67% of all monies received by the Company from sublicenses of the patent rights. Any and all improvements to
any of the patent rights derived in whole or in part by the Company after the date of the license agreement, being
June 20, 1997, are not included within the scope of the agreement and do not trigger any payment of royalties. To date,
the Company has not paid any royalties pursuant to the license agreement.

(¢) Guarantees

The Company entered into various contracts, whereby contractors perform certain services for the Company. The
Company indemnifies the contractors against costs, charges and expenses in respect of legal actions or proceedings
against the contractors in their capacity of servicing the Company. The maximum amounts payable from these
guarantees cannot be reasonably estimated. Historically, the Company has not made significant payments related to
these guarantees.

(d) Contracts

The Company contracts with Clinical Research Qrganizations to facilitate some of our clinical trials. These contracts
may be terminated upon sixty days written notice. Lorus is committed to $2.2 million in expenditures in the next twelve
months related to these contracts.




< 40 < notes to consolidated financial statements »

14.

15.

16.

13.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended May 31, 2003, consulting fees of $49 thousand were paid to a company which is controlled by
a director of the Company. These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the
exchange amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. There were no consulting fees
incurred during the years ended May 31, 2005 or 2004.

The amount payable to related parties as at May 31, 2005 was nil (2004 - nil, 2003 - nil).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, amounts receivable and other assets,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about
the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant
judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect
the estimates.

Financial instruments potentially exposing the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash
equivalents and short-term investments. The Company mitigates this risk by investing in high grade fixed income
securities.

The carrying value of the convertible debentures approximates their fair values, as the interest rate is variable and the
carrying values are being accreted to face value over the term of the convertible debentures such that they will be
recorded at their face value if and when they become due and payable.

REVENUE

During the year ended May 31. 2004, the Company recorded license revenue of $546 thousand (2003 - nil) in
connection with a worldwide exclusive license agreement entered into with Cyclacel Limited in the United Kingdem for
the out-licensing of the Company’s small molecule program. Additional license fees of up to $11.6 million may be earned
if Cyclacel achieves certain defined research and development milestones. No such milestones were achieved during the
year ended May 31, 2005.

CANADA AND UNITED STATES ACCOUNTING POLICY DIFFERENCES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian CAAP which differ in some
respects from accounting principles genenally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP). The following reconciliation
identifies material differences in the Company's consolidated statements of loss and deficit and consclidated
balance sheets.

{a) Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit

Years ended May 31

(emounts in 000’s) . 2005 2004 __299_3_
Loss per Canadian GAAP $(22,062) $(30,301) $ (16,634)
Accretion of convertible debenture (i) 329 - -
Amortization of debt issue costs (i) {40) - -
Stock compensation expense (ii) 1,475 - -
toss and comprehensive loss per U.S. GAA $(20,298) $£(30,301) % (16,634)
Basic and diluted loss per share per U.S. GAAP $ (012) $ (@©18) $ (0.32)

Under .S, GAAP, the number of weighted average common shares outstanding for basic and diluted loss per share are
the same as under Canadian GAAP.




LORUS THERAPEUTICS INC.

> < ANNUAL REPORT 2005 > 471 >

(b)Y Consolidated Balance Sheets:

May 31, 2005
Adjustments
Canadian Convertible Stock U.s.
{amounts in 000's) CAAP Debentures (i)  Options (ii) Other GAAP
Deferred financing charges $ 568 $ 272 $ - 3 - $ 840
Secured convertible debenture (10,212) (3.740) - - (13,952)
Equity portion of secured
convertible debentures (3.814) 3.814 - - -
Stock options {4.252) - 4,252 - -
Contributed surplus/Additional paid
in capital (APIC) (6.733) (1.048) - - (7.781)
Warrants (9291) an - - -
Deficit accumulated during
development stage 146,643 (289) (4.252) - 142,102
May 31, 2004
Adjustments
Canadian Convertible Stock u.s.
{amounts in 000%) GAAP Debentures (i)  Options (ii) Other (iii) GAAP
Contributed surplus/APIC $ (1.003) $ - $ - $ (4325 3 (5328)
Warrants (4.325) - - 4,325 -
Deficit accumulated during
development stage 121,804 - - - 121,804

(i} Convertible Debenture

Under Canadian GAAP, the conversion option embedded in the convertible debentures is presented separately as a
component of shareholders’ equity. Under U.5. GAAP, the embedded conversion option is not subject to bifurcation
and is thus presented in the balance of the convertible debentures. Under U.S. GAAP, Emerging Issues Task Force 00-19
and APB Opinion No. 14, the fair value of warrants issued in connection with the convertible debenture financing would
be recorded as a reduction to the proceeds from the issuance of convertible debentures, and are classified as
additional paid-in capital. The warrants have been presented as a separate component of shareholders” equity for
Canadian GAAP purpases. The Company has allocated the total proceeds received from the issuance of the convertible
debentures to the debt and warrant portions based on their relative fair values. The resulting allocation based on
relative fair values resulted in the allocation of $13.9 million to the debt instrument and $1.1 million to the purchase
warrants. The financing fees totaling $1.1 million related to the issuance of the convertible debentures have been
allocated pro rata between deferred financing charges of $1.0 million and against the purchase warrants of
$97 thousand. This allocation resulted in the net amount allocated to the warrants of $1.0 million. The financing
charges are being amortized over the five-year life of the convertible debentures.

Each reporting period, the Company is required to accrete the carrying value of the convertible debentures such that
at maturity on October 6, 2009, the carrying value of the debentures will be their face value of $15.0 million. To date,
the Company has recognized $97 thousand in accretion expense. This accretion expense has increased the value of the
convertible debenture from $13.9 million to $14.0 million at May 31, 2005.

{ii) Stock-Based Compensation

Effective June 1, 2004, the Company adopted the fair value based method of accounting for employee stock options
granted on or after June 1, 2002, retroactively without restatement as allowed under the transitional provisions of
CICA Handbook Section 3870. As a result, the opening balances of deficit accumulated during development stage
and stock options were increased by $2.8 million at June 1, 2004. During 2005, the Company recorded stock
compensation expense of $1.5 million in the consolidated statements of loss, representing the amortization applicable
to the current year at the estimated fair value of options granted since June 1, 2002; and an offsetting adjustment to
stock options of $1.5 million in the consolidated balance sheets. No similar adjustments are required under U.S. GAAP
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(c

S

(d)

(e)

as the Company has elected to continue measuring compensation expense, as permitted under SFAS No. 123, using the
intrinsic value based method of accounting for stock options. Under this method, compensation expense is the excess,
if any, of the quoted market value of the stock at the date of the grant over the amount an employee must pay to
acquire the stock. Election of this method requires pro forma disclosure of compensation expense as if the fair value
method has been applied for awards granted in fiscal periods after December 15, 1994,

The Company grants performance based stock options as a compensation tool. Under Canadian GAAP, the fair value
treatment of these options is consistent with all other employee stock options. Under U.S. GAAP, the option is treated
as a variable award and is revalued, using the intrinsic value method of accounting, at the end of each reporting period
until the final measurement date. Due to the decline in our common share price during the year, there was no expense
recorded for U.S. CAAP purposes. Prior to the adoption of CICA Handbook Section 3870, Lorus accounted for
performance based stock options using the intrinsic value method, and a recovery of $43 thousand was included in
the statements of loss in 2004 and an expense of $674 thousand was included in net income in 2003 related to
these options.

The table below presents the pro forma disclosures required under U.5. GAAP:

........................................................................... - 2005 r—— 2004 hm——————— 2003_
Net loss to common shareholders — U.S. GAAP (20,298) (30,301) (16,634}
Compensation expense under SFAS 123 e 473) (1.623) . (1.418)
Pro forma net loss to common shareholders — U.S. GAAP (21,773) (31,924) (18.052)
Pro forma basic and diluted loss per share - US. GAAP | ©13) (©19) o (012)

The following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine the fair value of stock
options granted during the period:

2005 2004 2003
Risk-free interest rate 2.25-3.00% 2.25-3.05% 3.20-3.50%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 70-90% 89% No%
Expected life of options 1-5 years 5 years 5 years
Weighted average grant date fair value 3$0.54 $0.74 $0.75

(iiy Warrants

These warrants were issued in connection with the June 11, 2003 financing. Under Canadian GAAP, the fair value of
the warrants have been presented as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Under U.5. GAAPF. the fair value
of the warrants issued would be recorded as additional paid in capital.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

There are no differences between Canadian and U.5. GAAP that impact the amounts of cash used or provided by
operating activities, investing activities and financing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the
years ended May 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Income Taxes

Under Canadian GAAP, investment tax credits and other research and development credits are deducted from research
and development expense for items of a current nature, and deducted from property and equipment for items of a
capital nature. Under U.S. CAAP, these tax credits would be reclassified as a reduction of income tax expense. The
impact would be higher research and development expense and an income tax recovery of $400 thousand for the year
ended May 31, 2005 (2004 -~ $180 thousand, 2003 - $355 thousand) with no net impact to shareholders’ equity.
net income or earnings per share.

New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (which supercedes
Statements No. 123 and 95) that addresses the accounting for share-based payments transactions in which an
enterprise receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of the enterprise, or (b) liabilities that are
based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity
instruments. The new standard eliminates the ability to account for share-based compensation transactions using
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APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and instead requires that such transactions be accounted
for using a fair value based method. The new standard is effective for interim or annual periods beginning after
January 1, 2006, meaning that an entity must apply the guidance to all employee awards of share-based payment
granted, modified, or settled in any interim or annual period beginning after January 1, 2006. The cumulative effect of
initially applying this standard, if any, must be recognized as of the required effective date. The Company is reviewing
the standard to determine the potential impact, if any, on the consolidated financial statements.

In March 2005, FASB issued FIN 47 Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations as an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 143 Accounting For Asset Retirement Obligations (FAS 143). This Interpretation clarifies that the term
conditional asset retirement obligation as used in FAS 143, refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement
activity in which the timing and (or} method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be
within the control of the entity. The obligation to perform the asset retirement activity is unconditional even though
uncertainty exists about the timing and (er) method of settlement. Thus, the timing and {or) method of settlement may
be conditional on a future event. Accordingly, an entity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a
conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. This Interpretation
is effective no later than the end of fiscal years ending after December 15, 2005. The Company does not expect this
standard to have any impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2005, FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154 Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections. This Statement replaces APB Opintan Ne. 20, Accounting Changes, and FASB Statement No. 3, Reporting
Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements, and changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting
of a change in accounting principle. This Statement applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle. Opinion
20 previously required that most voluntary changes in accounting principle be recognized by including in net income
of the period of the change the cumulative effect of changing to the new accounting principle. This Statement requires
retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it is
impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. When it is
impracticable to determine the period-specific effects of an accounting change on one or more individual prior periods
presented, this Statement requires that the new accounting principle be applied to the balances of assets and liabilities
as of the beginning of the earliest period for which retrospective application is practicable and that a corresponding
adjustment be made to the opening balance of retained earnings for that period rather than being reported in an
income statement. When it is impracticable to determine the cumulative effect of applying a change in accounting
principle to all prior periods, this Statement requires that the new accounting principle be applied as if it were adopted
prospectively from the earliest date practicable. This Statement should be effective for accounting changes made in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.

In December 2004, FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard 153: Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets as an amendment
of APB Opinion No. 29, The guidance in APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions, is based on the
principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged.
The guidance in that Opinion, however, included certain exceptions to that principle. This Statement amends
Opinion 29 to eliminate the exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a
general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. Nonmonetary
exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result
of the exchange. This Statement is effective for years beginning after June 15, 2005. This standard will not have any
impact to the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders Equity for the Period From june 1, 1998 to May 31, 2005:
This Statement is prepared in compliance with US CAAP
Number of Contributed

Shares (000's} Amount  Surplus/APIC Deficit Total
Balance May 31, 1998 36,785 $ 37180 3 667 $(32,946) $ 4,901
Exercise of special warrants 5,333 1,004 (1.217} - {213)
Exercise of stock options 46 48 - - 48
Issue of warrants - - 1,217 - 1,217
Issue of special warrants - - 213 - 213
Other issuances 583 379 - - 379
Loss for the year - - - (4,623) (4.623)
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Amount

Contributed
Surplus/APIC

41,952
14,000
1,821

15
8.438
1,113
869

$144,365
93

49
1,866
351

$ 880
(534)

8,853
659

(321)

$ (37.569)

$ (46,168)

(15, 21;)

8,853
42,611
14,000
1,500

15
113

369
(8.599)

$ 69,296
68

49

1,866

351
(15.131)

$ 116,806
265
1,194
(100)

$ (61,381)

(13, 488)

$ 56,499
194

1,194
(100)
(13,488)

$ 118,165
715
558

$ (74,869)

(16, 634)

$ 44,299
715

558
(16,634)

$ 119,438
24,121
171

27

28

$ (91,503)

(o, 301_)

$ 28,938
28,446
171

27

28
(30,301)

$143, 670
300
12

$(121,804)

(20,298)

37
1,048
(20,298)

Number of
Shares (000's)
Balance May 31, 1999 42,747
Exercise of warrants 12,591
Issuance of special and
purchase warrants -
Issuance of public offering 15,333
Issued on acquisition 36,050
Exercise of units 893
Issuance under alternate
compensation plan 18
Exercise of special warrants 30,303
Exercise of stock options 1,730
Stock-based compensation -
Loss for the year -
Balance May 31, 2000 139,665
Exercise of warrants 168
Issuance under alternate
compensation plan 28
Exercise of stock options 2,550
Stock-based compensation -
Loss for the year -
Balance May 31, 2001 142,41
Exercise of compensation warrants 476
Exercise of stock options 1,525
Stock-based compensation -
Loss for the year -
Balance May 31, 2002 144,412
Exercise of stock options 873
Stock-based compensation -
Loss for the year -
Balance May 31, 2003 145,285
Share issuance 26,220
Exercise of stock options 289
Stock-based compensation -
Other issuances -
Loss for the year -
Balance May 31, 2004 171,794
Interest payment 421
Exercise of stock options 276
Expiry of compensation options -
Issuance under alternate
compensation plan 50
Issuance of warrants -
Loss for the year -
Balance May 31, 2005 172,541

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's method of presentation.
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MISSION STATEMENT

multiple opportunities for dinical success and increased shareholder value.

Lorus Therapeutics Inc.’s mission is the discovery, research and development of well-tolerated therapies that
successfully manage cancer and promote improved quality of life. Our uniquely diversified product pipeline provides
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! Approved for sale in Mexico (private market} pursuant to the applicable regulatory process. We are not currently seeking approval for this indication in the
United States or Canada.

2 Studies conducied under Investigational New Drug Applications filed with the FDA,

3 Combination chemotherapy study in hormone refractory prostate cancer at three study sites in Canada.

4 pursuant to a worldwide exclusive out-licensing agreement, these products will be developed by Cyclacel Limited of UK.

* The dotted lines indicate the commencemen: of the relevant phase of development.




i Annual Report 2004

Lorus Therapeutics Ing,

TRANSFORMING OUR SCIENCE INTO PRODUCTS FOR THE MARKET

HIGHLIGHTS

In June 2004, completed full patient enrollment with over 400 patients in the pivotal Phase |ll FDA registra-
tion clinical trial of Lorus’ lead immunotherapeutic drug Virulizin® for the treatment of advanced
pancreatic cancer. The number of patients enrolled exceeded the target and enrollment was achieved ahead
of schedule.

On October 5, 2004, Lorus entered into an agreement to raise aggregate net proceeds of $14.4 million
through the issuance of 515 million of secured convertible debentures. We received $4.4 million on October
5, 2004, and will receive $5.0 million on each of January 15, 2005 and April 15, 2005.

Entered into a worldwide exclusive out-licensing agreement with Cyclacel Limited of the UK for NC381 and
a library of clotrimazole analogs.

Initiated five clinical trials in collaboration with the U.S. National Cancer Institute {NCI) for a Phase Il clinical
program of GTI-2040 in patients with Acute Myeloid Leukemia (AML), breast cancer, non-small cell lung
cancer, solid tumors and advanced unresectable colon cancer.

Initiated a Phase Il clinical trial in hormone refractory prostate cancer patients with GTI-2501, one of the
Company’s lead antisense drug candidates at three prominent Canadian cancer centers.

After three years of research, discovered novel low molecular weight compounds with anti-cancer and anti-
bacterial activities. Lorus subsequently signed a collaboration agreement with the University of Toronto to
provide further development of the compounds.

Interim data were analyzed from the Phase |l clinical trial of GTI-2040 in combination with capecitabine for
patients with advanced end-stage renal cell carcinoma who had failed two or more prior therapies before
entering the study, exhibited extensive metastases, and were representative of a population with very poor
prognostic outcome. The data showed that more than half of the 21 evaluable patients in this study
exhibited disease stabilization, ranging up to eight months. Tumor shrinkages of index tumors compared to
baseline measurements were also observed in some patients.

To increase Company exposure to U.S. investors, obtained approval to list on the American Stock Exchange
and commenced trading on the exchange on February 23, 2004,
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LORUS' TRANSFORMATION ON THE ROAD TO COMMERCIALIZATION

Last year, | was pleased to report that 2003 was marked by our "getting the important things right” at Lorus. For a
Company focused on the development of cancer therapies, that meant we moved forward in a number of important
areas: in the clinical development of our diversified pipeline of products; in attracting ongoing support from investars;
in attracting the right people to the Company, and in strengthening and establishing new relationships within the
scientific community. Together, we had put in place the elements that are enabling us to control our destiny as a drug
development company; the human, financial and scientific resources necessary to move forward,

We have added several new people to our senior management team during the past year and subsequent to our fiscal
year end. Germaine Gross joined Lorus in May 2004, as our Director of Business Development from a Canadian based
pharmaceuticat company where she had spent the previous seven years in business development. Our new Director of
Regulatory Affairs, Sue Fekete arrived in October 2003. Prior to Lorus, Sue was with the Canadian division of a large
international pharmaceutical company. In December 2003, Hanif Sachedina started with Lorus as our Director of
Cormnpliance. Hanif had most recently been Director, Corporate Compliance with a Canadian pharmaceutical company.
In September 2004, Paul Van Damme joined Lorus in the capacity of Chief Financial Officer. Pau! is an experienced
biotechnology executive whose presence on the senior management team at Lorus will have an immediate impact. Also
in September 2004, Dr. Shafik Dharamshi began his duties as Lorus’ Director of Medical Affairs. Dr. Dharamshi’s previ-
ous experience includes positions as Director, Clinical Research and Director, Study Operations with clinical research
organizations in Canada. Dr. Aiping Young was promoted to the position of Chief Operating Officer and Dr. Yoon Lee
was promoted to Directar of Research. Bruce Rowlands joined the managementi team in the role of Senior Vice President
Planning & Public Affairs after having spent the previous year as a consultant to the company and prior to that as vice
president and director of the Canadian operations of a U.S. invesiment banking firm,

In 2004, this foundation helped us build a strong and well-positioned company, an organization that we believe offers
our investors the prospective financial rewards for their confidence in our business rmodel and offers those afflicted with
cancer hope for safer and more effective treatment options. Let me take this opportunity to recap why | feel we have
continued to “get the important things right” and why we are “on the right track”.

OUR PIPELINE

One clear sign that we are continuing on the right track is our extensive clinical and pre-clinical programs currently
underway. Only 18 months ago, Lorus had two clinical studies underway: today we have eight clinical studies initiated
representing two technology platforms: immunotherapy and antisense, and three products in clinical development;
Virulizin®, GTI 2040 and GTi 2501. Additionally, our pipeline includes a number of novel pre-clinical drug candidates that
we are assessing to determine development strategies for these assets either on our gwn or in collaboration with a devel-
opment partner.

Virulizin®
Our most clinically advanced anti-cancer therapeutic is Virulizin®, a novel immunotherapy that has demonstrated strong

anti-tumor efficacy with an excellent safety profile in clinical trials to date. Virulizin® stimulates a patient's innate immune
system through the activation of macrophages and the infiltration of NK cells into tumors.




| Annual Report 2004

Lorus Therapeutics Inc.

p3

One of the critical clinical milestones we achieved was the completicn of patient enrolment in our Virulizin® Phase Il reg-
istration clinical trial, approximately six months ahead of cur original schedule and with a larger patient
population than originally contemplated. We have registered over 400 patients with locally advanced or metastatic
pancreatic cancer in clinical study sites in North America, South America and Europe, comparing the efficacy and safe-
ty of Virulizin® when combined with gemcitabine versus a placebo combined with gemcitabine. We expect to receive the
results of this important clinical trial in the second half of 2005.

With this pivotal registration clinical trial well advanced, we have also made good progress in expanding the awareness
of Virulizin® within the scientific, medical and pharmaceutical communities. Representatives from the Company were
present at the American Society of Clinical Oncology (ASCO) Gastrointestinal Cancers Symposium early in 2004, where
our scientists made an oral presentation. In March, we presented a summary of the studies on the mechanism of action
of Virulizin® at the annual meeting of the American Association for Cancer Research (AACR), ane of the largest gather-
ings of cancer specialists held each year. We also returned to the Lustgarten Foundation Scientific Conference this year,
both as a sponsor and presenter on Virulizin®. This conference targets clinical researchers, oncologists, post-doctorate
fellows and allied medical professionals worldwide. An international immunology conference held in Montreal this past
summer also heard how Virulizin® elicits an expansion and activation of specialized immune cells, called NK celis, in the
spleen, and in turn how that leads to increased NK cell infiltration into tumors. Data on Virulizin® published in The
International fournal of Oncology added further to our peer presence and demonstrated how'the drug inhibits tumor
growth via stimuiation of macrophages, important cells that play a key rote in our immune system.

The presentations at these international cancer and immunology conferences in North America and Europe have signifi-
cantly raised the profile of Virulizin®, precisely at the time when the clinical development process for this drug is nearing
completion, and as we continue to explore marketing and distribution options with potential pharmaceutical partners.

At the same time, we strengthened our inteliectual property position with Virulizin® this year by obtaining a new
European patent that protects the composition and use of the drug for the treatment of cancer. It is the first Virulizin®
patent that has been allowed in Eurcpe and adds to the roster of countries that have already awarded Lorus similar
patents, including the U.5., Canada, Mexico, Australia, South Africa, New Zealand, Korea and Singapore.

As our Phase Ill clinical program with Virulizin® proceeds, we continue to make the product available on a compassion-
ate use basis to patients, primarily following failure of approved therapy This compassionate use data will further
supplement our regulatory filings with additional safety data. And while efficacy data from this program is not directly
usable in regulatory filings, it is encouraging to all of us at the Company to hear the anecdotal feedback from those who
believe they have benefited from using Virulizin® as part of their treatment regiment.
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GTI-2040
GTI-2501

Development of our antisense drugs, GT1-2040 and GTI-2501, also saw considerable progress in fiscal 2004, with seven
Phase Il studies with the two anti-cancer drugs currently underway. A common feature of a number of diseases like
cancer is that the diseased celis produce increased amounts of imporiant proteins that play key roles in the initiation and
progression of the illness. Antisense technology provides an exciting opportunity to develop new drug treatment strate-
gies to selectively prevent the production of disease-causing proteins, leading to the inhibition of further disease
development. In contrast, conventional chemotherapy drugs usually work by binding directly to disease-causing proteins,
but their tack of specificity often results in the binding to other proteins too, leading to unwanted side effects which
can be very severe in patients with cancer. The specificity exhibited by the antisense approach provides the potential
to design a novel class of drugs for the treatment of chronic iflnesses such as cancer, while avoiding unwanted
cytotoxic side effects. Our work in this field helped us cement a very valuable relationship with the U.5. National Cancer
Institute (NCI},

The NCi is the American government’s principal institute for research and training in cancer treatment. We entered into
a clinical trials agreement with them in which the Institute is sponsoring a number of studies of GTl-2040, in a Phase Il
clinical trials program now underway in patients with acute myeloid leukemia (AML), breast cancer, non-small cell lung
cancer, solid tumers and advanced unresectable colon cancer. We also saw encouraging interim data from the Phase Il
GTI-2040 triat in combination with capecitabine for patients with |ate-stage renal cell carcinoma. More than half of the
21 evaluable patients in the interim analysis of this study exhibited disease stabilization, ranging up to eight months.
Tumor shrinkages of index tumors compared to baseline measurements were also observed in some patients, a particu-
larly encouraging development given that those in the trial had failed two or more prior therapies before entering the
clinical study, exhibited extensive metastases, and were representative of a population with a very poor prognostic out-
come. In July, oncology investigators from our Phase Il renal cell cancer clinical trial presented clinical findings at the First
international Congress on Kidney and Bladder Cancer. These findings demonstrated that GTi-2040 is well tolerated in
combination with capecitabine, with no reduction in the starting capecitabine dose required, up to and induding the
target GTI-2040 dose that was previously established as a monotherapy in a Phase | clinical investigation. These latter
clinical results are important because they support our strategy of developing novel anti-cancer agents that show mini-
mal additional toxicities when combined with traditional cytotoxic chemaotherapies.

Another clinical program we initiated in the last year was a Phase 1l clinical trial in hormone refractory prostate cancer
patients using GTI-2501, our second clinical antisense anti-cancer drug, at three prominent Canadian cancer centres.
With prostate cancer second only to lung cancer in the number of deaths among men in North America, there is a real
sense of urgency in providing new therapies for patients suffering from this disease. Qur trial will investigate the safety
and efficacy of GTI-2501 in combination with docetaxe!, a widely used active chemotherapy in hormone refractory
prostate cancer. And, as was the case with Virulizin®, we actively participated in international conferences to discuss
our clinical work with researchers from around the world. We were invited to provide an update on our clinical and
pre-clinicat antisense program to leaders in the field of ogligonuclectide technology in April at the TIDES international
conference in Las Vegas and earlier in the year at the Annual Antisense and siRNA Technologies Conference in
tondon, England.
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TOMQRROW'S PROMISE

In addition te our well-developed clinical programs, our drug pipeline contains a number of other novel, proprietary drug
candidates that hold great promise far Lorus and in which we made some very positive advances this past year,

Lorus’ tumor suppressor/gene therapy discovery recently received patent protection in Europe, which follows previous
patents issued by the U.S. patent office and the Australian patent office. These patents and others pending pratect
Lorus’ discovery of a gene whose expression suppresses the growth of human tumors in pre-clinical models, and repre-
sents a considerable asset for the company with great potential. We are working diligently to determine how best this
exciting discovery can be developed for the benefit of cancer patients.

After three years of in-house research, we were rewarded with the discovery of novel low molecular weight compounds
with both anti-cancer and anti-bacterial activities. Lorus subsequently signed a collaboration agreement with the
University of Toronto to provide further formulation development for the compounds using a cutting edge nanotechnol-
ogy approach. This work is being supported by a grant from the Natusal Sciences and Engineering Research Council of
Canada. This type of technology aleng with such other assets as our gene therapy program represent the future of Lorus’
drug development programs as Virulizin® and our antisense drugs emerge from the clinic as commercial products.

Through our subsidiary, NuChem Pharmaceuticals, we entered into a worldwide exclusive out-licensing agreement with
Cyclacel Limited of the UK for a library of clotrimazale {(CLT} analogs originally in-licenced by Lorus from the Medical
School at Harvard University in 1997. CLT is an anti-fungal drug that has demonstrated anti-cancer activity, but its
potential is limited by the presence af high liver toxicity. The goal in developing this library of drug candidates was to
identify drugs like NC 381 with anti-cancer activity but with significantly reduced toxic effects. Pre-clinical data on NC
381 were recently published in both the Journal of Pharmacology and Experimental Therapies and Bioorganic and
Medicinal Chemistry Letters. Further experimental studies demonstrated that in addition to NC 381, there were a
number of other derivatives of CLT in the library of analogs that represent promising drug candidates with anti-cancer
activity and low toxicity profiles. The agreement with Cyclacel provides Lorus with an upfront payment and the
potential for approximately US$11.6 miltion in milestone payments, as well as a royalty on future sales far each
compound commercialized from the CLT library of about 100 drug candidates. Cyclacel will also fund all future devel-
opment work on this program, allowing Lorus to focus on its remaining pre-clinical technologies and on its more
advanced clinical products.

Cancer progression is a complex pracess, which includes at least 100 different diseases; this is why the Company does
not hold the view that a single drug will emerge as a cure. Instead, we believe that cancer will continue to be treated
by combination therapy using many different drugs with a variety of mechanisms of action. Using this multi-mechanis-
tic approach in the devetopment of new cancer therapies essentially reduces the risk inherent in the drug development
process, by ensuring we have multiple technologies and multiple products under development, and therefore avoiding
the trap of being a "one product company.”
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OUR COMPANY

Much of our focus in 2004 has been on advancing our clinical programs for a number of our drug products. With
significant progress having been made, we now foresee our priority in 2005 to focus on arrangements for the commer-
cialization of Virulizin® and on partnerships and further development of our lead technologies. We have done much of
the ‘heavy lifting’ in our drug development: bringing drugs to a late stage in the process. Now, "being on the right
track” means putting in place the means to reap the rewards of this considerable investment.

It is our shareholders whe allow us to continue our work in developing a broad portfolio of cancer therapies and we are
committed to maximizing the value of the Company and its assets for the shareholders, Part of doing this, and another
sign of “being on the right track,” is the work we did over the last 12 months to raise the profile of the Company with
key audiences.

Of paramount importance in this regard was our decision to seek a listing for our common shares in the warld’s biggest
capital market. On February 23, shares of Lorus began trading for the first time on the American Stock Exchange under
the symbo! LRP. Providing exposure to U.S. investors is an important step in ensuring the Company will have access to
additional capital in the future and to help us obtain maximum valuation for the milestones we are achieving,

Listing in the U.S. market in and of itself is not, however, sufficient to achieve these goals. We spent considerable time
in fiscal 2004 meeting with many participants in the U.S. capital markets, introducing them to our Company and our
portfolio of products. Participating in major international conferences such as BIO, BioPartnering Europe, Bio-Europe,
BioContact and the Rodman & Renshaw Techvest Global Healthcare Conference helps achieve an ongoing objective of
ensuwring major global healthcare investors know the Company and are aware of owr exciting prospects,

The pharmaceutical industry is poised for a transformation. The impetus for change can be seen on its business side,
where an era of surging profits fuelled by blockbuster drugs grinds to a halt. Research pipelines at big pharmaceutical
companies, directed at over-served therapeutic categories, are running dry, and the sector may be hitting the limit on
growth through consolidation. We see, therefore, an industry that is Jooking for the kind of products that Lorus has been
successfully developing: those that appear to be safe, efficacious, and address growing therapeutic opportunities. In
short, we see a promising scenario unfolding for Larus.
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OUR COMMITMENT

In 2004, Lorus continued to create shareholder value as it achieved several significant milestones in the fight against
cancer. Both the full enrolment in the expanded Virulizin® Phase Ilf registration clinical trial earlier than anticipated and
the expansion and initiaticn of the GTI-2040 and GTI-2501 Phase il clinical triais, demonstrate Larus’ commitment to
bringing novel and effective cancer therapies with attractive safety profiles to a hard-to-treat patient popuiation. But
there is still much to do,

Based on the most recently available data from the American Cancer Society, more than 1,500 Americans die every day
from cancer. In Canada, almost 400 new cases of cancer are diagnosed every day according to the National Cancer
Institute of Canada.

The technology curve of medical science continues to advance with biotechnology at the forefront of discovery. The
number of innovative biotechnology product opportunities continues to increase and successfully advance in clinical
development. We are coliectively getting better at our work in the field, providing promise to the thousands newly
diagnosed with cancer. We believe Lorus is at the forefront in developing new therapies and we are proud of the many
achievements that we made in the last year.

We would not have achieved our many successes and milestones in 2004 without the valuable contributions of
so many. In the biotechnology fieid, human capital is the most critical resource and Lorus’ employees, advisors and
collaborators demonstratad that time and again. We have developed a number of partners in our history and their
contributions in financial and intellectual capital have been of significant benefit to us. With eight clinical studies
currently underway, | would also like to personally thank the many physicians and patients who are participating in
these trials. We fearn a considerable amount from both of these groups of front-line participants in the battle against
cancer. And to our investors new and old, we thank you for having the faith in our technology, in our people and in
our work. We are on the right track and that is good news for everyone who helped us get 1o this point. 2005 will be
an important year as Lorus transforms itself from a pure research and development company into a significant com-
mercial entity in Canada’s maturing biopharmaceutical industry.

Gy

Dr, Jim Wright

President and Chief Executive Officer
Lorus Therapeutics

September 2004
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The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended May 31, 2004 and the accompanying notes (the “Financial Statements”) set forth else-
where in this report. The Financial Statements and all financial information discussed below have been
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). Significant dif-
ferences between Canadian and United States GAAP are identified in Note 14 to the Financial Statements.
All amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted. In this Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, "Lorus”, the “Company”, “we", "us” and “our” each refers to Lorus Therapeutics Inc.

OVERVIEW

Lorus Therapeutics Inc. is a life sciences company focused on the research, development and commercial-
ization of effective anti-cancer therapies with high safety. Lorus has worked diligently to establish a diverse,
marketable anti-cancer product pipeline, with products in various stages of development ranging from pre-
clinical to a global Phase Il clinical trial which has reached full enrollment. This product pipeline is support-
ed by a growing intellectual property portfolio.

Our success is dependent upon several factors, including establishing the efficacy and safety of our prod-
ucts in clinical trials, obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals to market our products and maintaining
sufficient levels of funding through public and/or private financing. Lorus has not commercially marketed
any product other than Virulizin®, which is being sold in the private market in Mexico.

We believe that the future of cancer treatment and management lies in drugs that are effective, safe
and have minimal side effects and therefore improve a patient’s quality of life. Many of the drugs
currently approved for the treatment and management of cancer are toxic with severe side effects and we
therefore believe that a product development plan based on effective and safe drugs could have broad
applications in cancer treatment, Lorus’ strategy is to continue the development of our product pipeline
using several therapeutic approaches. Each therapeutic approach is dependent on different technologies,
thereby mitigating the development risks associated with a single technology platform. We evaluate
the merits of each product throughout the clinical trial process and consider commercialization. The most
advanced anti-cancer drugs in our pipeline, each of which flow from different platform technologies,
are: Immunotherapeutics (Virulizin®); Antisense (GTI compounds); small molecule and Tumor
Suppressor Technology.

Our net loss for 2004 totaled $30.3 million ($0.18 per share) compared to a net loss of $16.6 million
($0.12 per share) in 2003. Research and development expenses in 2004 increased to $26.8 million from
$12.6 million in 2003. The Virulizin® Phase Il clinical trial expansion, that resulted in full enroliment in June
2004, increased manufacturing and compliance activities and the procurement of drug supply for the U.S.
NCI-speonsored Phase I clinical trial programs for GTI-2040 contributed to the increase in net loss in 2004.
We utilized cash of $28.1 million in our operating activities in 2004 compared with $11.9 million in 2003;
the higher utilization was necessary to support our expanded research and development activities. At the
end of 2004 we had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments of $26.7 million compared to
$25.1 million at the end of 2003.

As products progress through clinical trials, the size of the trials and cost of these development activities
increase dramatically. The Company completed enrollment in its Virulizin® Phase Ill clinical trial shortly after
the fiscal year end. A substantial amount of the costs of the trial were incurred in the year and particular-
ly in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. We anticipate lower guarterly clinical trial costs in fiscal 2005.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company periodically reviews its financial reporting and disclosure practices and accounting policies to
ensure that they provide accurate and transparent information relative to the current economic and busi-
ness environment. As part of this process, the Company has reviewed its selection, application and com-
munication of critical accounting policies and financial disclosures. Management has discussed the devel-
opment and selection of the critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
and the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosure relating to critical accounting policies in this
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis. Other important accounting polices are described in Note 2 of the
Financial Statements.
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Drug Development Costs

We incur costs related 10 the research and development of pharmaceutical products and technologies for
the management of cancer. These costs include internal and external costs for pre-clinical research and clin-
ical trials, drug costs, requlatory compliance costs and patent application costs. All research costs are
expensed as incurred as required under GAAP.

Development costs, including the cost of drugs for use in dlinical trials, are expensed as incurred unless they
meet the criteria under GAAP for deferral and amortization. The Company continually assesses its activi-
ties to determine when, if ever, development costs may qualify for capitalization. By expensing the research
and development costs as required under GAAP, the value of the product portfolio is not reflected in the
Company’s Financial Statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues

Revenues for the year increased to $608 thousand, representing an increase of $542 thousand over 2003
sales of $66 thousand and nil in 2002. The increase results from & licensing agreement Lorus entered into
during the year with Cyclacel Ltd. in connection with the out-licensing of our clotrimazole analog library
of anti-cancer drug candidates. The agreement included an initial license fee of $546 thousand with the
potential of additional license fees of up to $11.6 million that may be earned if Cyclacel achieves certain
defined research and development milestones. We do not expect that any of these milestones will be
achieved in the next 12 months. The balance of the revenue earned during 2004 relates to product and
royalty revenues from the sale of Virulizin® to our distributor in the Mexican market, Mayne Pharma. The
Company processed a change in the formulation of Viruhizin® for sale in Mexico in order to increase the
shelf life of the product, however, as this change in formulation was not approved by the Mexican Minister
of Health until subsequent to year end, there were no sales of Virulizin® in Mexico during the last five
months of the fiscal year. We do not anticipate product revenue in fiscal 2005 from any of our other anti-
cancer drugs currently under development.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditures totaled $26.8 million in 2004 compared to $12.6 million in 2003
and $8.7 million in 2002. The significant increase in 2004 expenditures is primarily the result of two fac-
tors. First, we incurred increased costs associated with the expanded pivotal Phase Ill global clinical trial of
Virulizin® for the treatment of advanced pancreatic cancer, including personnel, drug manufacturing and
testing, combination drug purchases and contract research organization costs. Second, we incurred expen-
ditures related to the upfront procurement of the GTI-2040 drug for the five U.S. National Cancer Institute
{"NCI") sponsored Phase Il clinical trials initiated during 2004 for patients with Acute Myeloid Leukemia
{"AML"), breast cancer, non-small cell lung cancer, solid tumors and advanced unresectable colon cancer.
Research and development costs in 2003 were higher than 2002 primarily due to: (i) the initial expansion
of the Phase Ili Virulizin® clinical trial; (ii) the expansion of the Phase Il clinical trial of GTI-2040 in renal cell
carcinoma to more than 8 major oncology centres in the U.S.; and {iii) the preparation for the National
Cancer Institute sponsored GTI-2040 Phase Il clinical trial programs.

Of the total research and development expenditures incurred during the year, Virulizin® accounted for
$19.9 million or 74% of total spending. As discussed above, our lead drug Virulizin® is undergoing a Phase
HE chinical trial for which full enrollment was reached shortly after year end. During fiscal 2005 we expect
our research and development costs to decrease, as no further start-up costs associated with this trial will
be incurred.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses totaled $4.9 million in 2004 compared to $4.3 million in 2003 and
$4.9 million in 2002. The increase in 2004 of $600 thousand compared to 2003 is due to higher profes-
sionaf and filing fees related to regulatory changes and changes to the option plan, as well as a one time
non-cash charge of $245 thousand to write-off financing costs no longer deemed to have future value. The
decrease in 2003 compared to 2002 resulted mainly from lower lega! and advisory service fees.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

plo

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenses totaled $420 thousand in 2004 compared to $1.0 million in 2003
and $2.0 million in 2002, The decrease in 2004 over 2003 is due primarily to the amortization of stock-based
compensation that was a recovery of $43 thousand in 2004 and an expense of $700 thousand
in 2003 due to a decline in Lorus’ use of the compensation tool during 2004, The decrease in 2003 over 2002
is related primarily to the adoption of the new accounting pronouncement for goodwill and other intangible
assets whereby the Company ceased amortizing goodwill on June 1, 2002 upon adoption of CICA Handbook
section 3062 “Goodwill and other intangible assets”. Amortization of goodwill totaled $1.5 million in 2002.

Amortization of stock-based compensation in 2003 totaled $700 thousand as compared to $300 thousand
in 2002,

Interest and Other Income

Interest income totaled $1.2 million in 2004 and in 2003 and $2.0 million in 2002. Interest income was
unchanged between 2004 and 2003 despite higher average cash and short-term investment balances in
2004 because of lower market interest rates in 2004 compared with 2003. The decrease in 2003 interest
income compared to 2002 was due to a lower average cash and short-term investment balance in 2003
and the general decline in market interest rates.

Loss for the Period

The loss for the year totaled $30.3 million or $0.18 per share in 2004 compared to $16.6 million or
$0.12 per share in 2003 and $13.5 million or $0.09 per share in 2002, The increase in net loss in 2004
compared to 2003 is primarily due to the significant increase in clinical trial activities to support the expand-
ed Phase Il Virulizin® clinical trial. The increase in net loss in 2003 compared to 2002 relates primarily to
increased clinical trial activities, which was partially offset by lower administrative costs and the discontin-
uance of amortization of goodwill in accordance with the adoption of the new CICA accounting
proenouncement described above. On a comparative basis, the loss for the year ended May 31, 2002 would
have been $12.0C million or $0.08 per share after adjustment to remove the amortization of goodwill.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Since its inception, Lorus has financed its operations and technology acquisitions primarily from equity
financing, the exercise of warrants and stock options, and interest income on funds held for future invest-
ment. We expect to continue to finance the costs of the global Virulizin® Phase Il clinical trial from
internal resources until its anticipated completion in Q1 of fiscal 2006. The costs of the five GTI-2040 Phase
It clinical trials will continue to be borne by the NCl in the United States. We believe that our available cash,
cash equivalents and short-term investments, and the interest earned thereon, together with the post
year-end convertible debenture financing discussed below, will be sufficient to finance our operations and
capital needs for at least the next 12 months.

Financing

On June 11, 2003, Lorus raised net proceeds of $29.9 million by way of a public offering of 26,220,000
units at a price of $1.25 per unit, each unit consisting of one common share and one-halt of one share
purchase warrant. In addition during fiscal 2004, Lorus issued common shares on the exercise of stock
options for proceeds of $200 thousand. In 2003, Lorus issued commeon shares on the exercise of stock
options for proceeds of $700 thousand. In 2002, Lorus issued common shares on the exercise of warrants
and stock options for proceeds of $1.4 million.

On October 5, 2004, subsequent to the 2004 fiscal year-end, we entered into an agreement to raise
aggregate net proceeds of $14.4 million through the issuance of $15 million of secured convertible debentures.
The debentures are secured by a first charge over all of the assets of the Company. We received $4.4 mil-
lion on October 5, 2004, and will receive $5.0 million on January 15, 2005 and on April 15, 2005. The
debentures will expire on October 1, 2009 and interest will accrue and be paid monthly at a rate of prime
+ 1% unti! the Company's share price reaches $1.75 for 60 consecutive trading days, at which time interest
will no fonger accrue. Interest is to be payable in commoen shares of Lorus until such shares trade at a price
of $1.00 or more after which interest will be payable in cash or common shares at the option of the deben-
ture holder. Common shares issued in payment of interest will be issued at a price equal to the weighted
average trading price of such shares for the ten trading days immediately preceding their
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issue in respect of each interest payment. The $5.0 million principal amount of debentures issued on
October 5, 2004 is convertible at the holder’s option into common shares of the Company with an
exercise price per share of $1.00. The $10.0 mitlion principal amount of debentures issued thereafter is
convertible at an exercise price per share equal to the greater of $1.00 and the weighted average trading
price of our common shares for the tweniy trading days prior to the investment of the funds, less any
discount permitted by the Toronto Stock Exchange. The agreement also provides for the issuance of
up to 4 million warrants, with a life of five years, to buy common shares at a price per share of $1.00.

Use of Proceeds

In our prospectus dated June 3, 2003 we indicated that the proceeds to be received from that financing
would be used as follows: $12.0 million for the product development of our immunotherapy platform,
$11 million for the product development of our antisense platferm and $2.0 million for pre-diinical and dis-
covery programs. It was anticipated that the balance of funding would be used for working capital and
general purposes, During fiscal 2004 we incurred $19.9 million in research and development expenses on
our immunotherapy platform, $6.7 million on our antisense platform, and $200 thousand on pre-clinical and
discovery programs. The additional spending on our immunaotherapy platform was funded through cash and
short-term investments held by the Company prior to the 2003 offering and is the direct result of the expan-
sion of the Virulizin® Phase lll clinical trial. The spending anticipated in the 2003 prospectus on our antisense
platform and pre-clinical and discovery programs was to be incurred over a number of years, not solely in
2004. We have sufficient funds available at the end of 2004 to fund the remaining $4.3 million to be spent
on our antisense platform and $1.8 million to be spent an pre-clinical and discovery programs.

Operating Cash Requirements

Lorus utilized cash in operating activities of $28.1 million in 2004 compared to $11.9 million in 2003 and
in 2002. The cash used in operating activities in 2004 is higher than the prior year due to higher expen-
ditures throughout the year to support the Virulizin® Phase Il clinical trial. The cash used in operating
activities in 2003 was comparable with that experienced in 2002 despite a higher net loss in 2003 due
primarily to changes in the timing of payments of accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

We expect the cash used in operating activities to decrease in 2005 from the amount experienced in 2004
as our major clinical trial with Virulizin® will be underway and no further initiation costs associated with this
trial witl be incurred in 2005.

Cash Position

At May 31, 2004, Lorus had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments totaling $26.7 million
compared to $25.1 million at the end of 2003. The Company invests in highly rated and liquid debt instru-
ments. Investment decisions are made in accordance with an established investment policy administered by
senior management and overseen by the Board of Directors. Working capital {representing primarily cash
and cash equivalents and short-term investments) at May 31, 2004 was $22.6 million as compared to $20.9
million in 2003. As discussed above, subsequent to the year-end, we entered into an agreement to issue 315
million in convertible debentures for net proceeds of $14.4 million. Cash and short-term investments will
therefore increase by $14.4 million (gross proceeds of issuance net of issuance costs). The Company does
not expect to generate a positive cash flow from operations for the next few years due to substantial addi-
tional research and development costs, including costs related to drug discovery, pre-clinical testing, dinical
trials, manufacturing costs and operating expenses associated with supporting these activities. Negative cash
flow will continue until such time, if ever, that we receive regulatory approval to commercialize any of our
products under development and revenue from any such products exceeds expenses.

We may seek to access the public or private equity markets from time to time, even if we do not have an
immediate need for additional capital at that time. Lorus intends to use its resources to fund its existing drug
development programs and develop new programs from its portfolio of pre-clinical research technologies.
The amounts actually expended for research and drug development activities and the timing of such expen-
ditures will depend on many factors, including the progress of the Company's research and drug develop-
ment programs, the results of pre-clinical and clinical trials, the timing of regulatory submissions and
approvals, the impact of any internally developed licenses or acquired technologies, the impact from tech-
nological advances, determinaticns as to the commercial potential of the Company’s compounds and the
timing and development status of competitive products.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCING
At May 31, 2004, we had contractual obligations requiring annual payments as follows:
{amoants in 000's) Less than 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years S5+ years Total
Operating leases 110 - - - 110
Contract Research Organizations' 2,585 2,213 - - 4,798

Off-balance sheet financing arrangements are limited to operating lease contracts in respect of office
equipment, and a building lease.

* Contract Research Qrganization expenditures relate to our Phase II} Virulizin® cfinical trial

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

As at August 30, 2004 the Company had 171,804,989 common shares issued and outstanding. In addi-
tion, the Company had 8,235,998 stock options issued and outstanding, 1,835,400 compensation options
issued and outstanding with an exercise price of $1.27 and warrants to purchase 13,110,000 common
shares of Lorus at an exercise price of $1.75 per share.

SELECTED ANNUAL FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data has been derived from, and should be read in conjunc-
tion with the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2004
which are prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP.

Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit

(amounts in 000's except for per common share data) (Canadian doflars) Years Ended May 31

2004 2003 2002
Revenues $ 608 $ 66 $ -
Operating expenses
Cost of sales 28 55 -
Research and development 26,785 12,550 8,659
General and administrative 4,915 4,290 4,867
Depreciation and amortization 420 960 1,956
Operating loss 31,540 17,789 15,482
Interest and other income (1,239) {1,155) (1,995)
Loss for the year 30,301 16,634 13,487
Basic and fully diluted loss per common share $ o0.18 $ 0.12 $ 0.09
Total assets 34,424 34,255 47,572

QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The foliowing table sets forth certain unaudited consolidated statements of operations data for each of the
eight most recent fiscal quarters that, in management’s opinion, have been prepared on a basis consistent
with the audited consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this annual report and include
all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the
information presented.

During Q3 2003, we began selling Virulizin® for the treatment of malignant melanoma through our distrib-
utor, Mayne Pharma, in the Mexican private market. Sales continued to Q2 2004 when Lorus filed a change
in formulation with the Mexican Minister of Health which was not approved until subsequent to year end.
Sales through Mayne Pharma inciude both product sales and royalty revenue. Revenue increased signifi-
cantly in Q2 2004 due to the initial license fee from Cyclacel Ltd. discussed above.

Research and development expenses increased significantly throughout 2004 in comparison to 2003 due
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to the expansion of the Phase Il Virulizin® clinical trial. Research and development payments fluctuated dur-
ing 2004 primarily due to the timing of milestone payments to our Contract Research Organizations, as
well as the manufacturing of our study drugs (Virulizin® and GT1-2040) and the purchase of the study com-
bination drug.

Fiscal 2004 Fiscat 2003
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended

Aug31  Nov30 Feb29 May31 Aug3l Nov30 Feb28 May 31

2003 2003 2004 2004 2002 2002 2003 2003

Revenue $ 29 §$ 575 % 2% 2 5 - 3% - % 27 % 39

Cost of Sales - 26 1 1 - - 27 28

Research and development 7,263 5,586 7,340 6,596 3,047 3,323 2876 3304

General and administrative 1,231 1,176 1,010 1,498 1,304 796 960 1,230

Depreciation and amortization 99 99 108 114 95 164 224 477

Operating loss 8,564 6,312 8,457 8,207 4,446 4,283 4,060 5,000

Interest and other income (393) {314} {298) (234) (370) (314) {258} (213)

Loss for the period 8,171 5,998 8,159 7,973 4,076 3,969 3,802 4,787
Basic and fully diluted loss

per common share $005 $ 003 % 005% 005 % 003 % 003 % 002 % 004

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Lorus has not produced or commercially marketed any product other than Virulizin®, which has been
approved for sale and is being sold in the private market in Mexico. Although we have commenced commer-
cial sales of Virulizin®, there can be no assurance that the Company will realize future revenues from the
product. In addition, there can be no assurance that we will ever realize revenues from any of our products
in development, or that we will ever be profitable.

Lorus’ products are in various stages of development. There can be no assurance that we will have funds
available to permit the successful commercialization of our products. The Company’s funding needs may vary
depending on many factors inctuding: the progress and number of research and drug development programs;
costs associated with clinical trials and the regulatory process; costs related to maintaining drug manufactur-
ing sources; costs of prosecuting or enforcing patent claims and other intellectual property rights; collabora-
tive and license agreements with third parties; and opportunities to in-license or acquire new products.

In order to commercialize our products, we must obtain regulatory approvals. Regulatory approvals can take a
number of years and involve substantial expenditures. There can be no assurance that the Company will ever
cbtain necessary approvals or licenses for any of its products; that the Company will not encounter difficulties
or excessive costs in its efforts to secure necessary approvals and licenses; or that the Company will be able to
obtain sufficient funds to meet the necessary expenditures associated with obtaining regulatory approvals.

Even if our product candidates receive all necessary regulatory approvals and clearances, they may not gain
market acceptance. Physicians, patients, third party payors and the medical community may not accept or
utilize our products, and if our products do not achieve significant market acceptance our business and finan-
cial condition wilt be materially adversely affected. In addition, market acceptance is affected by the extent to
which reimbursement for the cost of such products will be available from government health administration
authorities, private health coverage insurers and other organizations.

Lorus relies upon third parties to provide certain key sewvices, including contract manufacturers to
manufacture its products and independent investigators and contract research organizations to assist it in
conducting its clinical trials. These third parties may encounter difficulties in meeting regulatory
requirernents and in maintaining quality control and quality assurance to meet Lorus’ clinical development
needs. If these third party service providers are unable to meet regulatory requirements or maintain
quality control and quality assurance, or we are unable to retain such suppliers or obtain new third party sup-
pliers, we may not be able to effectively conduct clinical trials or ultimately commercialize our products.
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We currently hold licenses from third parties for certain technologies, including in respect of our antisense plat-
form. We cannot assure you that these licenses will not terminate or that they will remain in good standing.

Our strategy is to enter into various arrangements with corparate and academic collaborators, licensors,
licensees and others for the research, development, clinical testing, manufacturing, marketing and commer-
cialization of our products. There can be no assurance, however, that we will be able to establish such addi-
tional collaborations on favourable terms, if at all, or that our current or future collaborative arrangements
will be successful or may not be terminated by our partners. We do not have any sales, marketing or distri-
bution capabilities. In order to commercialize our products, if any are approved, we must either acquire or
internally develop sales, marketing and distribution capabilities or make arrangements with third parties to
perform these services for us. The inability to market our products could have a material adverse effect on our
business and financial condition.

The sale and use of the products we develop could carry the risk of product liability proceedings. While we
currently maintain limited product liability insurance, we cannot assure you that product liahility insurance will
continue to be available to us on commercially reasonable terms. Product liability claims might also exceed the
amounts of such coverage.

Our discovery and development processes involve the controlled use of hazardous and radioactive materials.
Although we believe that our safety procedures for handling and disposing of such materials comply with the
standards prescribed by local laws and regulations, the risk of accidental contamination or injury from these
materials cannot be completely eliminated. In the event of such an accident, we could be held liable for any
damages that result and any such liability could exceed our resources.

Our interest income is subject to fluctuations of interest rates in our investment portfolio of debt securities.
Investments are held to maturity and have staggered maturities to minimize interest rate risk. There can be
no assurance that interest income fluctuations will not have an adverse impact on Lorus’ financial condition.
The Company maintains s accounts in Canadian dollars, but its revenues and a portion of its expenditures
are in foreign currencies. Lorus does not currently engage in hedging its fareign currency requirements to
reduce exchange rate risk.

Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain patents, maintain trade secret protection and operate
without infringing the proprietary rights of third parties. We cannot assure that our pending patent applica-
tions will result in patents being granted, that we will be able to develop additional proprietary products that
are patentable, that patents already granted to us will provide us with any competitive advantage, or that
patents of others will not have an adverse effect on our ability to do business.

Our success depends in large part upon our ability to attract and retain highly qualified scientific and man-
agement personnel. We face competition for such personnel from other companies, academic institutions,
government entities and other organizations. We cannot assure you that we will retain our current personnel
and will be able to continue to attract qualified perscnnel.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Effective June 1, 2003, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143,
"Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” ["FAS 143"} The standard requires us to estimate
and accrue for the present value of our obligations to restore leased premises at the end of the lease.
At lease inception, the present value of this obligation would be recognized as other long-term liabilities with
a correspending amount recognized in fixed assets. The fixed asset amount would be amortized, and the lia-
bility amount would be accreted, over the period from lease inception to the time the Company expects to
vacate the premises resulting in hoth depreciation and interest charges in the consolidated statements of
income. There is no material impact on the consolidated financial statements resulting from the adoption of
FAS 143 either in the current or pricr years presented.

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board [“FASB“] amended Interpretation No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” ["FIN 46R”]). FIN 46R requires that a variable interest entity ["VIE"]
be consclidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the VIE's activ-
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ities and/or is entitled to receive a majority of the VIE's residual returns. For the Company, the requirements
of FIN 46R apply in 2003 for all VIE's created after January 31, 2003. For VIE's created before lanuary 31,
2003, the requirements of FIN 46R apply as of May 31, 2005 for a VIE that does not meet the definition of a
special-purpose entity [“SPE”] and as of June 1, 2004 for a VIE that is an SPE. The application of this
Interpretation will not have an effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2003, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants [“CICA”] revised Section 3870 'Stock-
Based Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments’ to require that, effective June 1, 2004, the fair value
method of accounting for stock options be recognized in the consoiidated financial statements. The Company
intends to apply these provisions retroactively without restatement for the year commencing June 1, 2004. The
cumulative compensation cost of options on cormmon shares of the Company, using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, will be charged to deficit with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus at June 1, 2004,

In Novernber 2003, the CICA issued Accounting Guideline AcG-15, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities”, to provide guidance for applying the principles in Handbook Section 1590, “Subsidiaries”, to cer-
tain entities. Althaugh the CICA is contemplating amendments to the Guideline, it is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after November 1, 2004. Although the Company is currently reviewing AcG-15, the impact
of the Guideline, if any, on the Company's consolidated financial statements has not been determined.

In March 2003, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3110, “Asset Retirement Obligations”, which establishes
standards for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of asset retirement obligations and the
related asset retirement costs. This new Section is effective June 1, 2004 for the Company and harmonizes
Canadian requirements with existing United States GAAP There will be no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements resulting from the adoption of Section 3110 either in the current or prior
years presented.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements contained herein that are not based on historical fact, including without limitation statements
containing the words "believes,” “may," “likely,” "plans," "will," "estimate," "continue,” "anticipates,”
"intends," "expects” and similar expressions, canstitute “forward-fooking statements” within the meaning
of the UU.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may
cause the actual results, events or developments to be materially different from any future results, events or
developments expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, without limita-
tion, changing market conditions, our ability to obtain patent protection and protect
our intellectual property rights, commercialization limitations imposed by intellectual property rights owned
or controlled by third parties, intellectua property liability rights and liability claims asserted against us,
the successful and timely completion of clinical studies, the impact of competitive products and pricing, new
product development, uncertainties related to the regulatory approval process, product development delays,
our ability to attract and retain business partners and key personnel, future ievels of government funding, our
ability to obtain the capital required for research, operatiens and marketing and other
risks detailed from time-to-time in the Company’s ongoing quarterly filings, annual information forms and
annual reports.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to Lorus, including Lorus’ annual information form and other disclosure
documents, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.




MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and all information in this annual report have been prepared by man-
agement and have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and
include amounts that are based on the best estimates and judgments of management. Financial information presented in
accordance with Canadian generally accepied accounting principles elsewhere in the annual report is consistent with that in
the financial statements.

In discharging its responsibility for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management maintains a system of
internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets are safeguarded and
proper records are maintained. Management believes that the internal controls provide reasonable assurance that financial
records are reliable and form a proper basis for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, and that assets are
properly accounted for and safeguarded. The internal control process includes management’s communication to employees
of policies that govern ethical business conduct.

The Board of Directors, through an Audit Committee, oversees management's responsibilities for financial reporting. This
committee, which consists of three independent directors, reviews the audited consolidated financial statements, and rec-
ommends the financial statements to the Board for approval. Other key responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
reviewing the adequacy of the Company’s existing internal controls, audit process and financial reporting with management
and the external auditors.

These financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, who are independent auditors appointed by the shareholders of
the Company upan the recommendation of the Audit Committee. Their report follows. The independent auditors have free
and full access to the Audit Commitiee with respect to their findings concerning the fairness of financial reporting and the
adequacy of internat controls

G Pl i @m&u\

Jim A. Wright, Chief Executive Officer Paul Van Damme, Chief Financial Officer
July 16, 2004

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. as at May 31, 2004 and 2003 and the consoli-
dated statements of loss and deficit and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2004 and
the related consolidated statements of loss and deficit and cash flows for the period from inception on September 5, 1986
to May 31, 2004. These financia! statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material mis-
statement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence suppoerting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation,

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at May 31, 2004 and 2003 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended May 31, 2004 and for the period from inception on September 5, 1986 to May 31, 2004 in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles vary in certain significant respects from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. information relating to the nature and effect of such differences is presented in
note 14 1o the consolidated financial statements.

We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of Lorus Therapeutics Inc. for the period from inception on September
5, 1986 to May 31, 1994. Those consolidated financial statements were audited by other auditors who issued a report
without reservation on July 8, 1994,

Kbns 48
o

Chartered Accountants, Toronto, Canada
luly 16, 2004, except as to note 13 which is as of October 5, 2004
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{amounts in 000's) {Canadian dollars)

pl7
As at May 31 2004 2003
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1.0Mm 3 905
Short-term investments 25,657 24,219
Prepaid expenses and amounts receivable 1,697 1,104
Total current assets 28,425 26,228
Fixed assets {rote 3} 1,471 1,507
Goodwill 606 606
Acquired research and development (note 4) 3,922 5,669
Deferred financing costs - 245
$ 34,424 § 34,255
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 3 2,429 $ 1,318
Accrued liabilities 3,396 4,042
Total current liabilities 5,825 5,360
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital (note 5)
Common shares
Authorized: unlimited number of shares;
Issued and outstanding (000's):
May 31, 2004 - 171,794
May 31, 2003 — 145,285 144,673 120,441
Warrants 4,325 -
Compensation options fnote 5(d) 1,405 -
Deferred stock-based compensation - (43)
Deficit accumulated during development stage (121,804) (91,503}
Total shareholders’ equity 28,599 28,895
$ 34,424 § 34,255

Commitments and Guarantees (note 9

Subsegquent event (note 13

Canada and United States accounting policy differences (note 14)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

On behalf of the Board:

=23 P

Director Director




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS AND DEFICIT

{amounts in 000's except for per common share data} {Canadian dollars)

pl8
Period from
inception
Years Ended May 31 Sept. 5, 1986 to
2004 2003 2002 May 31, 2004
Revenue (note 12) $ 608 $ 66 - $ 674
Operating expenses
Cost of sales 28 55 - 83
Research and development {note 7) 26,785 12,550 8,659 85,844
General and administrative 4,915 4,290 4,867 37,793
Depreciation and amortization 420 960 1,956 8,781
Operating expenses 32,148 17,855 15,482 132,501
Interest and other income (1,239 {1,155) (1,995) (10,023)
Loss for the period 30,301 16,634 13,487 121,804
Deficit, beginning of period 91,503 74,869 61,382 -
Deficit, end of period $121,804 § 91,503 74,869 $121,804
Basic and diluted loss
per common share (note 2} $ 0.18 $ 012 0.09
Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding
used in the calculation of basic
and diluted loss per share 171,628 144,590 143,480

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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{amounts in 000's} (Canadian dollars)

pi9

Period from
inception
Years Ended May 31 Sept. 5, 1986 to
2004 2003 2002 May 31, 2004
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the period $ (30,301) $ (16,634) $ (13,487) $(121,804)
Add items not requiring a current outlay of cash:
Depreciation and amortization 2,166 2,033 3,407 16,127
Stock-based compensation (43) 674 296 1,293
Other 245 - - 745
Net ¢hange in non-cash working capital
balances related to operations (note 8) (129} 2,019 (2.124) 3,220
Cash used in operating activities (28,062) (11,908) (11,908) (100,419)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale (purchase) of shori-term investments, net {1,438) 12,438 9,378 {25,657}
Acquisition, net of cash received - - - (539}
Acquired research and development - - - (715)
Additions to fixed assets (383) (1,260) 477) (5,375)
Cash proceeds on sale of fixed assets - - - 348
Cash provided by {used in) investing activities (1,821) 11,178 8,501 (31,938)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of warrants 4,537 - - 36,414
Issuance of common shares 25512 715 1,389 97,259
Additions to deferred financing costs - {245) - {245)
Cash provided by financing activities 30,049 470 1,389 133,428
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents during the period 166 (260) {1,618} 1,07
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 905 1,165 2,783 -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 1,07 b3 905 $ 1,165 $ 1,071

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Lorus Therapeutics Inc. {*Lorus” or "the Company"} is a biopharmaceutical company specializing in the research, devel-
opment and commercialization of pharmaceutical products and technologies for the management of cancer. With
products in all stages of evatuation, from pre-clinical through to Phase Il trials, Lorus develops therapeutics that seek
to manage cancer with efficacious low-toxicity compounds that improve patients’ quality of life.

The Company has not earned substantial revenues from its drug candidates and is therefore considered to be in the
development stage.

The continuation of the Company’s research and development activities and the commercialization of the targeted ther-
apeutic products is dependent upon the Company’s ability to successfully complete its research and development programs
and finance its cash requirements through a combination of equity financing and payments from strategic partners.
The Campany's current level of cash and short-term investments and the additional funds available under a convertibie
debenture entered into on October 1, 2004 {note 13) is sufficient to execute the Company’s current planned expenditures
for the next twelve months.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lorus, its 80% owned subsidiary NuChem Pharmaceuticals
Inc. (“NuChem”), and its wholly-owned subsidiary GeneSense Technologies inc. (*GeneSense”). The results of opera-
tions for acquisitions are inctuded in these consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. All significant
intercompany bhalances and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepied in Canada and comply in all material respects with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, except as disclosed in note 14 "Canada and United States Accounting Policy Differences.”

Revenue Recognition
Revenue includes product sales revenue, license revenue and royalty revenue.

The Company recognizes revenue from product sales when title has passed and collection is reasonably assured, which
typically is upon delivery to the distributor.

License fees are comprised of initial fees and milestone payments derived from a worldwide exclusive license agreement.
Non-refundable license fees are recognized when the Company has no further involvement or obligation to perform
under the arrangement, the fee is fixed and determinable and collection of the amount is deemed probable. Future non-
refundable milestone payments receivable upon the achievement of third party performance are recognized upon the
achieverment of specified milestones when the milestone payment is substantive in nature, the achievement of the
milestone was not reasonably assured at the inception of the agreement and the Company has no further significant
involvement or obligation to perform under the arrangement.

The Company earns royalties from its distributor. Royaities from the distribution agreement are recognized when the
amounts are reascnably determinable and collection is reasonably assured.

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments
Lorus invests in high quality fixed income government (2004 - $3,811,000, 2003 — $4,214,000) and corporate (2004 —

$21,846,000, 2003 - $20,005,000) instrurnents with low credit risk. Cash equivalents censist of highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase,

Short-term investments, which consist of fixed income securities with a maturity of three months or more, are recorded
at their accreted value as they are held to maturity instruments.

Inventory

The Company purchases drugs for resale and for research and clinical development. Drugs purchased for use in research

and dlinical develapment are expensed as purchased. Drugs purchased for resale are recorded as inventory and valued
at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
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For the years ended May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
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Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The Company records depreciation and
amortization at rates which are expected to charge operations with the cost of the assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Furniture and equipment straight-line over three to five years
Leasehold improvements straight-line over the lease term
Research and Development

Research costs are charged to expense as incurred. Development costs, including the cost of drugs for use in clinical tri-
als, are expensed as incurred unless they meet the criteria under generally accepted accounting principles for deferral
and amortization. No development costs have been deferred to date.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is not amortized but tested for impairment at least annually. Intangible assets with finite lives acquired in a
business combination or other transaction are amortized over their estimated useful lives which have been assessed as
seven years.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired in the
GeneSense business combination. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is tested for impairment on an annual
basis and at any other time if an event occurs or circumstances change that would indicate that an impairment may exist.
When the carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to the excess.

The Company capitalized the cost of acquired research and development assets, comprised of patents and licences, on
the acquisitions of GeneSense and the NuChem compounds. The nature of this asset is such that it is categorized as an
intangible asset with a finite life. The carrying value of acquired research and development assets does not necessarily
reflect its present or future value. The amount recoverable is dependent upon the continued advancement of the drugs
through research, clinical trials and ultimately to commercialization. It is not possible to predict the outcome of future
research and development programs.

No impairment relating to goodwill and intangible assets has been identified by the Company for 2004 and 2003.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Effective June 1, 2003, the Company adopted the new standard in CICA Handbook Section 3063, “Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Under the new standard the Company performs an impairment assessment of long-
lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount of the assets
may not be recoverable. If the sum of the undiscounted expected future cash flows expected to result from the use and
eventual disposition of an asset is less than its carrying amount, it is considered to be impaired. An impairment loss is
measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value, which is estimated as the
expected future cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risks associated with the recovery of the asset.
Prior to june 1, 2003 the Company periodically assessed and measured impairment by comparing the carrying amount
to the undiscounted future cash flows the long-lived assets were expected to generate.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock options granted to employees are accounted for using the intrinsic value method. Under the intrinsic value
method, compensation cost is recorded if, on the measurement date of the grant, the fair value of an underlying com-
man share exceeds the exercise price per share. For options with contingent vesting criteria, the option is treated as a
variable award and is revalued, using the intrinsic value method of accounting, at the end of each reporting period until
the final measurement date. Deferred stock-based compensation is recognized as an expense over the vesting pericd of
the option.

Options issued to consultants and other non-employees are accounted for using the fair value method and are recog-
nized as an expense over the period which the services are performed or options earned using the Biack-Scholes option
pricing model.

The Company also has a deferred share unit plan that provides directors the alternative to receive payment for their cur-
rent services in the form of share units rather than common shares or cash. Share units entitle the holder to receive, in
the future, either an equivalent number of common shares or the cash equivalent of the shares at the date the units are
exercised. As the award entitles the holder to settle the award through the receipt of cash, the value of the share units
are recorded as a liability and the share units are revalued each reporting date with any increase or decrease in value
being recorded in the consolidated statements of loss.
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Investment Tax Credits

The Company is entitled to Canadian federal and provincial investment tax credits, which are earned as a percentage of
eligible research and development expenditures incurred in each taxation year. Investment tax credits are accounted for
as a reduction of the related expenditure for items of a current nature and a reduction of the related asset cost for items
of a long-term nature, provided that the Company has reasonable assurance that the tax credits will be realized.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are reported using the asset and liability method. Under this method future tax assets and liabilities are
recorded for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the consolidated financial statement car-
rying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and operating loss and research and development
expenditure carry forwards. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantially enacted tax rates
expected to apply when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that substantive enactment or enactment occurs. A valuation
allowance is recorded for the portion of the future tax assets where the realization of any value is uncertain.

Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per commeon share is calculated by dividing the net loss by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted net loss per common share is calculated by dividing the net loss by the sum
of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and the dilutive common equivalent shares out-
standing during the year. Common equivalent shares consist of the shares issuable upon exercise of stock options and
warrants calculated using the treasury stock method. Common equivalent shares are not included in the calculation
of the weighted average number of shares outstanding for diluted net loss per common share when the effect would
be anti-dilutive.

Segmented Information

The Company is organized and operates as one operating segment, the research and development of cancer therapies.
Substantially all of the Company's identifiable assets as at May 31, 2004 and 2003 are located in Canada.

Foreign Currency Translation

Fareign currency transactions are translated into Canadian dollars at rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the rates on the balance sheet dates. Gains or losses result-
ing from these transactions are accounted for in the loss for the period and are not significant.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consclidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and lfabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the years. Actual results could dif-
fer from those estimates.

Recent Canadian Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2003, the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants {”CICA”] revised Handbook Section 3870 “Stock-
Based Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments” to require that, effective June 1, 2004, the fair value method
of accounting for stock options be recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The Company intends to apply
these provisions retroactively without restatement far the year commencing lune 1, 2004. The cumulative compensation
cost of options on common shares of the Company, using the Black-5choles option pricing model, will be charged to
deficit with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus at June 1, 2004,

In November 2003, the CICA issued Accounting Guideline AcG-15, “Consclidation of Variable Interest Entities”, to
provide guidance for applying the principles in Handbook Section 1580, *Subsidiaries”, to certain entities. Although
the CICA is contemplating amendments to the Guideline, it is effective for the fiscal years beginning on or after
November 1, 2004. Although the Company is currently reviewing AcG-15, the impact of the Guideline, if any, on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements has not been determined.

in March 2003, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3110, "Asset Retirement Obligations”, which establishes standards
for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of asset retirement obligations and the related asset retirement costs.
This new Section is effective for June 1, 2004 for the Company and harmonizes Canadian requirements with existing
United States GAAP. There will be no material impact on the consclidated financial statements resulting from the adop-
tion of Section 3110 either in the current or prior years presented.
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FIXED ASSETS

As at May 31 (amounts in 000's) 2004 2003
Furniture and equipment $ 1,977 $ 1,603
Leasehold improvemenits 907 898
2,884 2,501
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,413) {994)
$ 140 $ 1,507

ACQUIRED RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

As at May 31 {amounts in 000's) 2004 2003
Cost $ 12,228 $ 12,228
Accumulated amortization (8,306) {6,559)

$ 3,922 $ 5,669

SHARE CAPITAL

{a) Continuity of common shares and warrants

{amounts and units in 000s) Comman Shares Warrants

Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at May 31, 2001 142,411 $ 117,150 1,242 s 729
Exercise of compensation warrants (b) 476 265 (476) (70)
Expiry of compensation warrants - 659 (766) (659)
Exercise of stock options (e) 1,525 1,194 - -
Stock-based compensation (f) - (100} - -
Balance at May 31, 2002 144, 412 119,168 - -
Exercise of stock options (&) 873 715 - -
Stock-based compensation ) - 558 - -
Balance at May 31, 2003 145,285 $ 120,441 - b -
Share issuance (d)y 26,220 24,121 13,110 4,325
Exercise of stock options (e) 289 171 - -
Stock-based compensation f) - {88) - —
Other - 28 - -
Balance at May 31, 2004 171,794 $ 144,673 13,110 $ 4,325

{b) October 1999 Private Placement of Special Warrants

In connection with the October 27, 1999 special warrants offering the Company issued 2,824,849 compensation
warrants (stated capital $0.147 per warrant) for services in connection with the completion of the offering. Each com-
pensation warrant entitles the holder to acquire one common share for $0.41 at any time prior to October 27, 2001.
During fiscal year 2002, 475,700 compensation warrants were exercised.

{¢) Alternate Compensation Plans

In 2000, the Company established a compensation plan for directors and officers, which allows the Company, in certain
circumstances, to issue common shares to pay directors’ fees or performance bonuses of officers in lieu of cash. The
number of commaon shares reserved for issuance under this plan is 2,500,000. Since inception, 71,000 shares have been
issued under this plan.

The Company also established a deferred share unit plan that provides directors the option of receiving payment for their
services in the form of share units rather than common shares or cash. Share units entitle the director to elect to receive,
on termination of their services to the Company, an equivalent number of common shares, or the cash equivalent of the
market value of the common shares at that future date. The share units are granted based on the market value of the
common shares on the date of issue, As of May 31, 2004, 68,183 deferred share units have been issued (2003 - 45,964,
2002 - 83,057), with a cash value of $57,000 (2003 - $58,000, 2002 - $62,000) being recorded in accrued liabilities.
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(d) Share Issuance

On June 11, 2003, the Company raised gross proceeds of $32,775,000 by way of a public offering of 26,220,000 units
at a price of $1.25 per unit. Each unit consists of one cormmon share and one-half of one purchase warrant. Each whole
warrant entitles the holder to purchase a common share at a price of $1.75 at any time on or before December 10, 2004,
In addition, the Company issued 1,835,400 compensation options with a fair value of $1,468,000 for services in connec-
tion with the completion of the offering. Each compensation option entitles the holder to acquire one unit for $1.27 at
any time on or before December 10, 2004, The Company incurred expenses of $4,392,000 for the issuance, which include
the non-cash charge of $1,468,000 being the fair value of the compensation option. The Company allocated $4,325,000
of the net proceeds to the warrants, $1,405,000 to the compensation option and $24,121,000 to share capital.

(e) Stock Option Plan

Under the Company's stock option plan, options may be granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants of the
Company to purchase up to 20,582,081 common shares. Options are granted at the fair market value of the common
shares on the date of grant. Options vest at various rates and have a term of five years to ten years. Stock option trans-
actions for the three years ended May 31, 2004 are summarized as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
average average average
Options exercise Options exercise Options exercise
(000's) price {000's) price (000's) price
CQutstanding at
beginning of year 5,378 $ 105 5,425 $ 1.17 4,144 § 1.19
Granted 2,629 $ 1.6 2,613 $ 072 3,188 $ 098
Exercised (289) $ 059 (873) $ 083 {1,525} $ 078
Forfeited (1,346) $ 1.29 (1,787) $ 1.01 (382) $  1.39
Qutstanding at
end of year 6,372 $ 1.05 5,378 9 1.05 5,425 $ 117
Exercisable at
end of year 3,542 3} 1.0 2,921 3 1.26 2,183 3 132
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at May 31, 2004:
Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted-
average Weighted-
Options remaining Weighted- Options average
ouistanding contractuat life average exercisable exercise
Range of Exercise prices (000's) {years) exercise price {0005} price
$0.33 10 $0.49 552 .01 $ 039 552 $ 039
$0.50 1o 30.99 2,767 2.79 $ 0.80 2,085 $ 079
$1.00 to $1.99 2,588 5.04 3 1.21 440 $ 1.37
$2.00 to $3.63 465 1.44 241 465 1 2.
6,372 3.45 $ 1.05 3,542 $ 1,00

(f) Deferred Stock-based Compensation

The Company issues performance based options to employees which give rise to stock option expense based on the
intrinsic value of the option on the date the performance is met. The Company also issues options to non-employees for
services which are fair valued and expensed over the performance period.

The Company recorded a deferred stock-based compensation recovery relating to options issued under the Company’s
stock option plan amounting to $88,000 for the year ended May 31, 2004 (2003 — charge $558,000 and 2002 -
recovery $100,000). Amortization of deferred stock-based compensation was a recovery of $43,000 for the year ended
May 31, 2004 (2003 - charge of $674,000 and 2002 - charge of $296,000).

{g) Pro forma disclosure for Employee Stock Based Compensation

The Cormpany accounts for its stock options granted to employees using the intrinsic value method. CICA Section 3870 requires
companies not using the fair value method to disclose pro forma net earnings and earnings per share information as if the com-

pany had accounted for employee stock options under the fair value method. The Company has elected to disclose pro forma net
loss and pro forma net loss per share as if the Company had accounted for its options since 1995 under the fair value method.
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A summary of the pro forma impact on the statement of loss is presented in the table below.

{amounts in 000's) 2004 2003 2002
Loss for the year $ 30,301 $ 16,634 $ 13,487
Compensation expenses related to the fair value of stock options 1,580 1,925 1,574
Employee stock-based compensation expense as recorded 43 (511) {296)
Pro forma loss for the period $ 31,924 $ 18,052 $ 14,765
Pro forma basic and diluted loss per common share $ 0.19 1 0.12 $ 0.10

The fair value of each option granted or modified has been estimated at the date of grant or modification using the
Black-Schales option pricing model with the following assumptions used for options granted in the years ended May 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002: (i) dividend yield of 0%: {ii} expected volatility of 89% (2003 ~ 110%, 2002 - 80%) (iii) risk free
interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 3.05% (2003 — 3,2-3.5%, 2002 - 3.6%) and {iv} expected lives of 5 years.
The Company has assumed no forfeiture rate as adjustments for actual forfeitures are made in the year they occur.
The weighted-average grant date fair values of options issued in the years ended May 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were
$0.74, 30.75 and 30.71 respectively.

INCOME TAXES

Income tax recoveries attributable to losses from operations differ from the amounts computed by applying the combined
Canadian federal and provincial income tax rates to pretax income from operations primarily as a result of the provision of a
valuation allowance on net future income tax benefits.

significant components of the Company's future tax assets are as follows:

As a1 May 31 (amounts in 000's) 2004 2003
Non-capital loss carryforwards $ 19,746 $ 9,824
Research and development expenditures 17,613 12,905
Book over tax depreciation 1,307 1,576
Other 1,345 492
Future tax assets 40,011 24,797
Valuation allowance 40,011 24,797

] - $ -

In assessing the realizable benefit from future tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the future tax assets will not be realized. The uitimate realization of future tax assets is depend-
ent on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become
deductible. Management considers projected future taxable income, uncertainties related to the industry in which the
Company operates, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Due to the Company's stage of development
and operatians, and uncertainties related to the industry in which the Company operates, the tax benefit of the above
amounts has been completely offset by a valuation allowance.

Research and development expenditures can be carried forward indefinitely. To the extent that the non-capital loss
carryforwards are not used, they expire as follows:

Year of expiry (amounts in 004's) Non-capital losses
2005 $ 2,159
2006 3,468
2007 4,626
2008 4,985
2009 6,525
2010 8,248
2011 1,028
2012 -
2013 -
20%4 22,206

$ 53,245
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS
The Company's cancer drug research and development programs focus primarily on the following technology platforms:
{a) Immunotherapy

This clinical approach stimulates the body’s natural defenses against cancer. The Company's lead drug Virulizin® is cur-
rently in a Phase Il clinical trial for the treatment of pancreatic cancer and has been sold in the private market in Mexico
for malignant melanoma.

(b) Antisense

Antisense drugs are genetic molecules that inhibit the production of disease-causing proteins, GTI1-2040 and GTI-2501,
the Company’s lead antisense drugs, have shown pre-clinical anti-cancer activity across a broad range of cancers and are
currently in a toial of seven different Phase Il clinical trials.

{¢) Small Molecules

Anti-cancer activity was discovered with an anti-fungal agent Clotrimazole (“CLT"). Based on the structural feature
found to be responsible for the anti-cancer efiect of CLT, chemical analogues of CLT have been designed and tested.
Qur library of clotrimazole analogs has been licensed to Cyclacel Limited as described in note 12.

Lorus scientists discovered novel low molecular weight compounds with anti-cancer and anti-bacterial activity in pre-clin-
ical investigations. Of particular interest were compounds that inhibit the growth of human tumor cell lines including
hepatocellular carcinoma, pancreatic carcinoma, ovarian carcinoma, breast adenccarcinoma and metastatic mefanoma.
These compounds also demonstrated activity against multi-drug resistant bacteria which are responsible for a number
of life-threatening infections.

In addition to the above Lorus has a number of other technologies under pre-clinical development including a tumor
suppressor or gene therapy approach to inhibiting the growth of tumors.

Period from
inception
{amounts in Q00's) Years ended May 31 Sept. 5, 1986 to
Research and Development 2004 2003 2002 May 31, 2004
Immunotherapy
Expensed § 19,944 $ 7.433 $ 4,612 $ 56.865
Acquired - - - -
Antisense
Expensed 6,666 4,911 3,410 24,875
Acquired - - - 11,000
Small Molecules
Expensed 175 206 637 4,104
Acquired - - - 1,228
Total expensed $ 26,785 $ 12,550 $ 8,659 $ 85,844
Total acquired $ - $ - 3 - $ 12,228
SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Changes in non-cash working capitat balances for each of the periods ended are summarized as follows:
Period from
inception
Years ended May 31 Sept. 5, 1986 to
{amounts in 000's) 2004 2003 2002 May 31, 2004
(Increase) decrease
Prepaid expenses and amounts receivable $ (593} 3 91 $ 309 $ (1.120)
Increase (decrease)
Accounts payable 1,111 876 (2,686) 1,185
Accrued liabilities (647} 1,052 253 3,155
$ (129) § 2019 $ (2,124) $ 3,220

During the year ended May 31, 2004, the Company received interest of $1,151,000 (2003 - $1,679,000 and 2002
- $2,488,000).
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COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES
(a) Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered into operating leases for premises and office equipment under which it is obligated to make
minimum annual payments of approximately $110,600 in 2005.

During the year ended May 31, 2004, operating tease expenses were $141,000 (2003 - $122,060 and 2002 - $118,000).
(b) Other contractual commitments

In December 1997, the Company acquired certain patent rights and a sub-license to develop and commercialize the anti-
cancer application of certain compounds in exchange for:

(i} A 20% share interest in NuChem;
(i) A payment of U5$350,000 in shares of Lorus, and
(i) Up to US$3,500,000 in cash.

To date the Company has made cash payments of US$500,000. The remaining balance of up to U$$3,000,000 remains
payable upon the achievement of certain milestones based on the commencement and completion of clinical trials,
Additional amounts paid will be classified as acquired research and development and will be amortized over the estimat-
ed useful life of the licensed asset.

The Company holds an exclusive world-wide license from the University of Manitoba (the “University”) and Cancer Care
Manitoba ("CCM”) 10 certain patent rights to develop and sub-license certain oligonucleatide technologies. In consid-
eration for the exclusive license of the patent rights, the University and CCM are entitled to an aggregate of 1.67% of
the net sales received by the Company from the sale of products or processes derived from the patent rights and 1.67%
of all monies received by the Company from sub-licenses of the patent rights. Any and alt improvements to any of the
pateni rights derived in whole or in part by the Company after the date of the license agreement, being June 20, 1997,
are not included within the scope of the agreement and do not trigger any payment of royalties. To date the Company
has not paid any royalties pursuant to the license agreement.

{c) Guarantees

The Company entered into various contracts whereby contractors perform certain services for the Company.
The Company indemnifies the contractors against costs, charges and expenses in respect of legal actions or
proceedings against the contractors in their capacity of servicing the Company. The maximum amounts payable from
these guarantees cannot be reasonably estimated. Historically, the Company has not made significant payments related to
these guarantees.

The Company contracts with Clinical Research Organizations to facilitate some of our clinical irials. These contracts may be
terminated upon sixty days written notice.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended May 31, 2004, consulting fees of nil were paid to a company which is controlled by a director of
the Company (2003 - $48,874 and 2002 - $68,000). These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are
measured at the exchange amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

The amount payable to related parties as at May 31, 2004 was nil (2603 - nil and 2002 - $46,000).

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, amounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about the
financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and invalve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Financial instruments potentially exposing the Company to a concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash equiv-
alents and short-term investments, The Company mitigates this risk by investing in high grade fixed income securities.

REVENUE

During the year, the Company recorded license revenue of $546,000 (2003 - nil, 2002 - nil} in connection with a world-
wide exclusive license agreement entered into with Cyclacel Limited in the United Kingdom for the out-licensing of
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the Company’s library of clotrimazole analogs. Additional license fees of up to $11.6 million may be earned if Cyclacel
achieves certain defined research and development milestones. Under the agreement the Company will also receive
royalties on the sale of any products.

Revenue also includes product and royalty revenue from the sate of Virulizin® to Mayne Pharma, the Company's disiri-
bution partner for the Mexico market.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On October 5, 2004, subsequent to the 2004 fiscal year-end, we entered into an agreement to raise
aggregate net proceeds of $14.4 million through the issuance of $15 million of secured convertible debentures. The
debentures are secured by a first charge over all of the assets of the Campany. We received $4.4 million on October 5,
2004, and will receive $5.0 million on January 15, 2005 and on April 15, 2005. The debenturas will expire on October 1,
2009 and interest will accrue and be paid monthly at a rate of prime + 1% until the Company’s share price reaches $1.75
for 60 consecutive trading days, at which time interest will no longer accrue. Interest is to be payable in common shares
of Lorus until such shares trade at a price of $1.00 or more after which interest will be payable in cash or comman shares
at the option of the debenture holder. Common shares issued in payment of interest will be issued at a price equal to the
weighted average trading price of such shares for the ten trading days immediately preceding their issue in respect of
each interest payment. The $5.0 million principal amount of debentures issued on October 5, 2004 is convertible at the
holder’s option into common shares of the Company with an exercise price per share of $1.00. The $10.0 million pringi-
pal amount of debentures issued thereafter is convertible at an exercise price per share equal to the greater of $1.00 and
the weighted average trading price of our common shares for the twenty trading days prior to the investment of the
funds, tess any discount permitte¢ by the Toronto Stock Exchange. The agreement also provides for the issuance of
up to 4 million warrants, with a life of five years, to buy common shares at a price per share of $1.00.

CANADA AND UNITED STATES ACCOUNTING POLICY DIFFERENCES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples as applied in Canada (“Canadian GAAP"). In certain respects, generally accepted accounting principles as applied
in the United States (“United States GAAP") differ from those applied in Canada. There are no material measurement
differences between Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP that apply to the consolidated financial statements.

{a) SFAS 130 Reporting Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130 establishes standards for reporting and presentation of comprehensive income. This standard defines com-
prehensive income as the changes in equity of an enterprise except those resulting from shareholder transactions.
Comprehensive loss for the periods presented in these consolidated financial statements equaled the loss for the period.

(b) Recent United States Accounting Pronouncements

United States GAAP, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations” ["FAS 143"], was adopted by the Company effective June 1, 2003. The standard requires the Company to
estimate and accrue for the present value of its cbligations 10 restore leased premises at the end of the lease. At lease
inception, the present value of this obligation would be recognized as other long-term liabilities with a corresponding
amount recognized in fixed assets. The fixed asset amount would be amortized, and the liability amount would be
accreted, over the period from lease inception to the time the Company expects to vacate the premises resulting in both
depreciation and interest charges in the consolidated statements of income. There is no material impact on the consol-
idated financial statements resulting from the adoption of FAS 143 either in the current or prior years presented.

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board [“FASB”] amended Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities™ [“FIN 46R"}. FIN 46R requires that a variable interest entity [“VIE"] be consclidated by a
company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the VIE's activities and/or is entitled to receive a
majority of the VIE's residual returns. For the Company, the reguirements of FIN 46R apply in 2003 for all VIE's created
after January 31, 2003. For VIE's created before January 31, 2003, the requirements of FIN 46 apply as of May 31, 2005
for a VIE that does not meet the definition of a special-purpose entity [“SPE”] and as of June 1, 2004 for a VIE that is an
SPE. The application of this Interpretation will not have an effect on the Company’s financial statements.
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